Minutes



SECTION_]D _PAGENO;_|

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7" Street, Eurcka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

A. ROLL CALL
Director Sopoci-Belknap conducted the roll call. Directors Hecathorn, Sopoci-Belknap and
Woo were present. Directors Laird and Rupp were absent. General Manager Paul Helliker,
Superintendent Dale Davidsen, Business Manager John Friedenbach, Board Secretary Sherrie
Sobol and Operations and Maintenance Technician Jasson Klingonsmsith were also present.
John Winzler and Pat Kaspari of GHD were present for a portion of the meeting.

B. FLAG SALUTE
President Hecathorn led the flag salute.

C. ACCEPT AGENDA
Mr. Helliker stated the Safety Item time set for 9:15 am needs to be moved to 9:30 am due to
scheduling conflicts. On motion by Director Sopoci-Belknap, seconded by Director Woo, the
Board voted 3-0 to accept the agenda with the amended time set item.

D. MINUTES
On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Sopoci-Belknap, the Board voted 3-0 to
approve the minutes of the January 14" meeting,

E. PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. Neal Latt introduced himself and stated he applied for the Division 1 vacancy.

A member of the public stated he would like to request more time before for the Board
decides on the proposed retail rates. He requested the Board not make a decision today.
Director Sopoci-Belknap stated the public rate hearing is scheduled for next month on March
9. Since it is not on the agenda, they cannot discuss it. Mr. Friedenbach added the District
held an informational meeting on February 9 and will hold another one in Samoa Fire Hall on
February 17 from 4-7 pm.

F. CONSENT AGENDA
On motion by Director Woo, seconded by Director Sopoci-Belknap, the Board voted 3-0 to accept the
Consent Agenda.

G. CORRESPONDENCE

1. Letter to municipal customers re: domestic water use
Mr. Helliker shared the annual letter to the Municipal Customers. The letter transmits

information about domestic water use per the requirements of the Ordinance 16 contracts.
Included with the letter were three reports: the Domestic Water Use, Moving Five-Year
Average Water Use and the Peak Rate Allocation (PRA) by Municipality for calendar year
2015. Mr. Helliker noted the Peak Rate Allocation for each municipality occurs every five
years. The last review was in 2014 so the next review would be in 2019.

The City of Blue Lake and Manila CSD both have larger industrial customers that use a
higher percentage of water. The contracts for these two Municipal Customers state that in
the event they experience a reduction of 25% or more of their current Average Daily
Water Use caused by reducing water to, or loss of these customers, the Moving Five Year

|



SECTION._1)__PAGENO._ 2~ __

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

Average and the PRA will be adjusted in the fiscal year following the reduction. Mr.
Helliker stated he spoke with the General Manager of Manila CSD since they will lose a
larger retail customer next month when Sierra Pacific closes. Sierra Pacific uses
approximately 15% of overall water provided by Manila CSD so this clause would not
apply for Manila CSD.

2. Letter to Felicia Marcus re: Proposed Drought Emergency Conservation Regulations
Mr. Helliker discussed the letter he and the Municipal Customers sent to the State Water
Resources Control Board (SWRCB) regarding the proposed extension of emergency
conservation regulations. The letter noted the lack of drought conditions on the Mad River
and that conservation regulations do not make sense for the District and its Municipal
Customers given that Ruth Lake is full and has ample water supply for a few years. The
SWRCB went ahead and extended the regulations.

H. CONTINUING BUSINESS

1. Appointing New Director
Mr. Helliker stated the District received three applications for the Division 1 Director

position. They are all strong candidates and he recommended conducting interviews
with all three. The Board concurred and will conduct interviews at a Special Meeting
on February 29",

2. Update on Cannabis activities
Senator McGuire introduced SB 987, the Marijuana Value Tax Act, to the legislature.

This bill would place a 15% sales tax on medical marijuana with an estimated tax
revenue of $100 million annually. The bill proposes that 30% of the revenue be
distributed in grants to city and county agencies overseeing the cultivation, processing,
manufacturing and sale of medical marijuana and 30% would go to the state’s general
fund. The California Department of Parks and Recreation would receive 20% with
10% going to the California Natural Resource Agency for restoration and remediation
of private lands and watersheds damaged by cultivation and 10% to counties for drug
and alcohol treatment programs. Mr. Helliker inquired if the Board was interested in
supporting the bill. They requested he bring back an analysis of the bill to the March
meeting,

Last month Mr. Helliker stated the Mad River Alliance with the help of other agencies,
organized five compliance workshops “Grow Green Grow Legal” . A sixth workshop
was added and it is expected the workshops will be well attended. The workshop at the
Ruth Lake Community Center is scheduled for April 24™,

3. Water Resource Planning (WRP)

Local Sales

Mr. Helliker stated a meeting will take place on March 23 with our partners between
Rio Dell and Trinidad to organize a project for the State Revolving Loan Funds to
conduct the next level of planning and design for the expansion of the transmission
system north and south.




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICHON
828 7" Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

Transport
Mr. Helliker stated he received an unsolicited call from Jason Heywood regarding bulk

water transport to China via tankers. He informed Mr. Heywood the option would be
discussed with the Board. The Board concurred that the policy is to transport to
another Municipality, preferably local, so this is not an option.

Instream Flow

Mr. Helliker stated the Wildlife Conservation Board informed the District that its grant
proposal was not selected. He will try to get more information as to why and report
back at the next meeting. Director Woo suggested applying for grant with the Coastal
Conservancy.

Advisory Committee {AC)
The WRP AC met on February 3™, Director Sopeci-Belknap stated it was a good

meeting. In regards to transport, they understand the District has looked at numerous
options on the North Coast with no takers. The AC agreed that transport to the North
Coast would be best, however, should let all municipalities in California know that we
have water available to transport. They also agreed not to spend a lot of funding on
this. The AC is supportive of pursuing the Instream Flow option and keep moving it
forward. She noted that it was not known at that time that we did not get the grant.

Director Sopoci-Belknap stated the members are still very engaged and are
appreciative of the updates. The AC suggested filling “vacancies” since two people on
the committee were not in attendance at the last few meetings. They stated they would
like to meet at least twice a year, perhaps in the spring and fall. Mr. Helliker stated he
would send the AC the monthly WRP Board Reports to help keep them apprised.

The Board thanked Director Sopoci-Belknap for the report. Director Woo summarized
it sounds like the AC is supportive of the overall policy and would like the District to
the stay the course. Ms. Lincoln, a reporter in attendance at the Board meeting,
suggested the Humboldt County Board of Supervisors also receive updates on the
WRP process on semi-regular basis given her recent conversations with a Supervisor.
The Board briefly discussed options going forward.

Mr. Helliker discussed documentation of the WRP process. He stated he provided the
AC questionnaires to get their perspective and help document the process. He will
meet with Access Humboldt to discuss other options to document the WRP process.

I. NEW BUSINESS

1.

District Safety Program

Mr. Helliker provided an overview of the District’s Safety Program. Achieving employee
and public safety is a top priority for the District. The District provides personal protective
equipment required to help ensure employee safety and is supportive of training to
enhance this. The District and employees commitment to safety is evidenced by the low




S8ECTION_T) _ PAGE NO._L

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

workers comp ratio and the awards from JPIA. As part of the District’s Safety Program, a
safety recognition program is in place. Eligible full time employees with at least six
months of service, receive $200. Of those eligible, one name is randomly drawn as the
grand prize winner of $500. This year’s winner is Jasson Klingonsmith. Mr.
Klingonsmith accepted the award presented by President Hecathorn. He thanked the
Board for supporting a great safety program. Mr. Davidsen stated Mr. Klingonsmith is
doing a great job. He has taken the lead on several larger construction projects and has
been safe and successful. The Board congratulated Mr. Klingonsmith . President
Hecathorn added that she read the minutes from the Safety Committee Meeting and was
impressed with how safety conscious the staff really is. The employees are very pro-
active when it comes to safety.

Mr. Helliker concurred and stated the District also participates in the ACWA Commitment
to Excellence Program. Part of the program includes implementation of best practices to
reduce the potential and frequency of ergonomic {musculoskeletal) and fall injuries.

2. North Coast Resources Partnership (NCRP)
Mr. Helliker reported out on his attendance at the NCRP meeting. They received a
presentation on the Proposition 1 IRWM Program Guidelines. Funds should be available
in 2017. The next quarterly meeting will be on April 21¥ and will also be a 10 year
celebration of the NCRP.

J. REPORTS (from Staff)
1. Engineering

a) Ranney Collector 1 Lateral Replacement Project (partially funded by Prop 84
NCIRWMP grant)

Mr. Kaspari stated the Notice of Award was issued and the Notice to Proceed along
with Change Order 1 (as approved last month) will be sent very soon. The contractor
stated there will be a delay in the start date and will likely begin in July.

b) Blue Lake-FG CSD Water Line Replacement over Mad River (funded by Prop
84 NCIRWMP grant and FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant}

Mr. Kaspari received the Trenchless Feasibility Report from Bennett Trenchless
Engineers. The costs came in a bit lower than expected, however, does not
include connection to the District pipeline. GHD will incorporate the report into
their final feasibility analysis for the two options. This final analysis should be
ready by the April meeting.

c) Matthews Dam Survey Results
The District established on-going monitoring of three general areas of the
Matthews Dam. The areas are: 1) a Settlement Survey that has been conducted
since 1962 and measures the amount of settlement of 17 points located along the
crest of the dam; 2) a West Abutment Landslide Survey begun in 1998 that
measures the change in horizontal and vertical positions of eight points along the
toe of the superficial landslide upslope of the west abutment of the dam; and 3)




SECTH
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

828 7™ Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

d)

€)

g)

a)

b)

the Spillway Wingwall Survey begun in 2010 that measures the change in
horizontal position of fourteen points located along the top of the spillway walls
and fourteen other points along the spillway floor. Mr. Kaspari stated these
surveys are done every other year around the same time to monitor stability of the
dam. The most recent survey was done in September 2015. The full report
provides detailed information. The surveys show there are no noticeable changes
in any of these points that are of concern.

Essex Septic System Design
Mr. Kaspari stated he received a permit for the project. Mr. Davidsen noted that

in regards to budget, this project may carry over into the next year.

1 MG Reservoir

Mr. Kaspari stated the inspection of the reservoir is completed. Painting and welding
is an option that will extend the life of the tank about 10 years. Painting and replacing
the roof is the second option. With this option, the paint should last 20 years and the
roof 50 years. Option two is preferred but will cost about $500,000 which is $250,000
more than Option 1. Mr. Davidsen will prepare a memo for the meeting next month to
assist the Board in their decision as to which option.

FEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant Notice of Intent (NOI) submittals

Mr. Friedenbach stated the District is always looking at opportunities to fund projects
via grants. The District submitted an NOI for the Surge Tower, 12 kv Relocation, and
Spillway Wall reinforcement project. The NOI for the Surge Tower was deemed
eligible and the next step is to apply for a grant for the Surge Tower.

FERC Part 12

Mr. Friedenbach stated the FERC Part 12 report is required every five years and is in
process. The FERC approved consultant, Charles Ahlgren, will be here in May for a
site inspection of the dam and has already started working on the report.

Financial

Financial Report
Director Sopoci-Belknap provided the January 2016 financial statement &vendor

detail report. Director Woo reviewed the bills and stated all was good. On motion
by Director Sopoci-Belknap, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 3-0 to
approve the January 2016 financial statement and the vendor detail report in the
amount of $105,520.02.

US Bank line of credit for emergencies

Mr. Friedenbach reported that Ms. Marquez of US Bank previously informed the
Board of three options available if the District needed to seek emergency funding: 1)
Line of Credit 2) Traditional Loan and 3) Guidance Line. The Guidance Line
appeared to be best option and the Board requested more information about it. The
District received a letter from Mr. Kidd of US Bank providing the additional




HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7' Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

information. New regulations require the guidance line be collateralized and the
transaction needs to be documented through Bond Counsel. Additionally, US Bank
would need to charge an unused fee for the line. Mr. Kidd stated that since the
District is a long-time customer, he believes the bank could move quickly on analysis
of a credit transaction should the need arise.

c¢) FEMA Audit of Techite Pipeline HMGP grant
Mr. Friedenbach stated the District received a draft of an audit compliance report
from CalOES on the engineering contract with GHD for the Techite project. The
report is based on the review period of June 1-September 30, 2012. The report
contains two findings. The contract with GHD did not contain 13 sections required
by federal procurement regulations, such as the 1965 equal employment opportunity
executive order, the Copeland Anti-kickbact Act and the Davis —Bacon Act, etc. The
second finding is the contract file did not include a history of the procurement with
GHD, including demonstration that qualifications were adequate and that reasonable
prices were paid. Prior to completing the report, Cal OES is giving the District an
opportunity to supply the missing documentation on the procurement process. The
District is proposing remedies for both findings and will work with CalOES on the
documentation.

3. Operations
Mr. Davidsen provided the January operational report. He and his supervisors have spent

a lot of time this past month developing and prioritizing budget items for the FY16/17
budget process. They also conducted interviews for the Assistant Maintenance
Supervisor position. Several staff attended training on Drinking Water Sampling: A
Comprehensive Approach. The training was in Crescent City so they did not have to
travel too far. Some clean up and repairs were required after a storm in mid-January
downed a tree, which in turn crushed a fence. Topics at the January Safety Meeting
included the Workplace Illness and Injury Prevention Plan, EAP Dam Safety,
responsibilities regarding the AQMD generator permits.

Mr. Davidsen recommended several items be declared surplus. These items have been
replaced or are no longer needed. The items are Unit 9, 1990 Ford F-350 with utility bed
and lumber rack; Unit 13, 1999 Ford F-150 short bed with lumber rack and alurminum
cross bed box; two metal desks with 5 drawers and 1file drawer; wooden drafting table
with 2 drawers; card file style filing cabinet; fire proof locking file cabinet (needs the
combination reset since the combination is unknown); and a laminated wood computer
station with pull out keyboard tray.

On motion by Director Sopoci-Belknap, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 3-0
to declare the items surplus.

K. DIRECTOR REPORTS & DISCUSSION

1. ACWA
Director Woo reported out on the Region 1 Board meeting. She participated via phone



828 7 Street, Eureka

Minutes for Meeting of Board of Directors

February 11, 2016

and was voted the alternate Vice-Chair and selected to serve on the Aquatic Resources
Committee. She stated she expressed some concern about travelling to out of area
meetings. Dennis Mayo of McKinleyville CSD is the Vice Chair and assured her he
would be attending most if not all the meetings and the Aquatic Resources Committee
only meets during the ACWA conferences. She shared that Director Rupp was selected
to report out on the Finance Committee at the ACWA conference.

Director Woo stated she plans on attended the upcoming conference if approved to do so.
On motion by Director Sopoci-Belknap, seconded by Director Woo, the Board voted 3-0
to approve attendance for Board members/staff that want to attend the ACWA 2016
Spring Conference and Training,

4. Organizations on which HBMWD Serves: RCEA, RREDC. LAFCo

Director Woo reported out on the RCEA meeting. The highlight of the meeting was
Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) topic. The RCEA Board passed a resolution
Authorizing the Implementation of a Community Choice Aggregation Program by RCEA
as the Community Choice Aggregator. Mr. Helliker shared that he has been part of a
panel interviewing various companies wanting to be the energy provider for RCEA as the
Community Choice Aggregator. They will report out at the next RCEA meeting. He noted
they will recommend not rushing into a decision and allowing time to do proper reference
checks. This will likely result in a CCA going into effect in early 2017.

ADJOURNMENT
The meeting adjourned at 11:30 am.

Attest:

Barbara Hecathorn, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer



Consent



H.B8.MWD. FEB 29 106

STATE OF CALIFORNIA - NATURAL RESOURCES AGENCY

e et e

NS c. BrOWN IR, GOVERNOR

T ON 39vd
CALIFORNIA COASTAL COMMISSION SECTION_FL__PAGENO. 1 .

NORTH COAST DISTRICT OFFICE
1385 EIGHTH STREET, SUITE 130
ARCATA, CA 95521

(707) 826-8950 FAX (707) 826-8960

www.coastal.ca_gov

February 26, 2016
HBMWD. FEB 29 2018 -

IMPORTANT PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM

LCP AMENDMENT NO. LCP-1-HUM-15-0004-1

Samoa Town Master Plan development phasing changes

AMENDMENT DESCRIPTION:

Request by County of Humboldt to amend certified Land Use Plan and Implementation Plan
to change numerous planning and development phasing policies pertaining to the town of
Samoa to allow earlier development of the sewage treatment plant and an affordable housing

project.

HEARING DATE AND LOCATION:

DATE 3/9/2016
TIME 9:00 a.m. ITEM NO: W15a
PLACE Santa Monica Civic Auditorium — East Wing
1855 Main Street, Santa Monica, CA 90401
PHONE  (415)407-3211

HEARING PROCEDURES:

This item has been scheduled for a public hearing and vote, People wishing to testify on this matter may
appear at the hearing or may present their concerns by letter to the Commission on or before the hearing
date. The Coastal Commission is not equipped to receive comments on any official business by electronic
mail. Any information relating to official business should be sent to the appropriate Commission office
using U.S. Mail or courier service.

AVAILABILITY OF STAFF REPORT:

A copy of the staff report on this matter will be available no later than 10 days before the hearing on the
Coastal Commission’s website. Alternatively, you may request a paper copy of the report from Melissa
Kraemer, Supervising Planner at the North Coast District Office.

SUBMISSION OF WRITTEN MATERIALS:

If you wish to submit written materials for review by the Commission, please observe the following
suggestions:



\ 7 Page 2
SECTION -f-—--’ PAGE NO " February 26, 2016

IMPORTANT PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE
LOCAL COASTAL PROGRAM

- We request that you submit your materials to the Commission staff no later than three working days before
the hearing (staff will then distribute your materials to the Commission).

- Mark the agenda number of your item, the application number, your name and your position in favor or
opposition to the project on the upper right hand corner of the first page of your submission. If you do not
know the agenda number, contact the Commission staff person listed.

- If you wish, you may obtain a current list of Commissioners’ names and addresses from any of the
Commission’s offices and mail the materials directly to the Commissioners. If you wish to submit materials
directly to Commissioners, we request that you mail the materials so that the Commissioners receive the
materials no later than Thursday of the week before the Commission meeting. Please mail the same
materials to all Commissioners, alternates for Commissioners, and four non-voting members on the
Commission with a copy to the Commission staff person listed.

- You are requested to summarize the reasons for your position in no more than two or three pages, if
possible. You may attach as many exhibits as you feel are necessary.

Please note: While you are not prohibited from doing so, you are discouraged from submitting written
materials to the Commission on the day of the hearing, unless they are visual aids, as it is more difficult for
the Commission to carefully consider late materials. The Commission requests that if you submit written
copies of comments to the Commission on the day of the hearing, that you provide 20 copies.

ALLOTTED TIME FOR TESTIMONY:

Oral testimony may be limited to 5 minutes or less for each speaker depending on the number of persons
wishing to be heard.

Questions regarding the report or hearing should be directed to Melissa Kraemer, Supervising Planner at the
North Coast District Office.




<+ WEDNESDAY, MaRCH 2, 2016 <+

-

@

secion .2 PAGENO. )
EsT. 2013 < $1

New sea level alert

Humboldt Bay has highest rate in state

Paul Mann
Man River UNION
ARCATA — Global sea levels are
limbing at a rate faster than at any
ime in nearly 3,000 years, fueled
wimarily by human generation of
reenhouse gases, according to a

new report published by the National
Academy of Sciences.

The breakthrough reinforces re-
search here showing that Humboldt

Bay has the highest rate of sea level

rise in all of California, 18.6 inches
per century (Union, March 4, 2015).

The latest findings derive from the
creation of an unprecedented global
data base by international scientists.
It combines regional sea level recon-
structions from 24 localities to pro-
vide the first worldwide statistical
picture of ocean warming.

It is “extremely likely” that 20th

SEA LEVELS « A4

century sea level rise moved faster “than
during any of the previous 27 previous cen-
turies,” the National Academy of Sciences

report states.

Based upon an advanced statistical syn-
thesis, the findings derive, for example,
from tide gauge data and from radiocar-
bon dating of marine moliusks in South

America.

Participating scientists are from Har-
vard’s Department of Earth and Planetary
Sciences, Germany's Potsdam Institute for
Climate Impact Research, Nanyang Tech-

nological University in Singapore, Rutgers f
and Tufts Universities in the U.S., York ."I

University in England and the Woods Hole |
QOceanographic Institution on Cape Cod in f

Massachusetts.

Aldaron Laird, the North Coast’s leading ||'I
sea level research specialist, says the latest }

findings reinforce the fact that the climb is |
“not going to slow down or stop by 2100. |

Sea level rise will likely continue for centu- /

ries and rise tens of feet.

“We will not recognize our coastal land- |
scape in another century” from coastal

flooding and land subsidence, Laird said in
an email after reviewing the new synthesis.
Research, mapping and data collection
by his company here, Trinity Associates,
confirmed that Humboldt Bay has the
highest rate of sea level rise in the state.
Relative sea level is projected to climb

geven inches alone in the next i5 years,
across a range spanning five to 11 inches,

Laird projects.

“Woods Hole Oceanographic savs 44 per-
cent of the world’s human populatien (which
is 7.3 billion people and climbing) lives with-
in 100 miles of coastlines. It further states
that 9o percent of the heat from global
warming has been absorbed by the oceans.

Laird warns that global warming has
set in motion profound and determinative
changes and that humans lack the distant
time horizons needed to understand, and
prepare for, what they .are doing to them-
selves and the planet.

“As an environmental planner I am used
to considering a 20 year planning horizon
for land use, which is the standard for Gen-
eral Plans,” he said. “But with sea level rise,
we are now faced with planning for our re-
sponses to changes that may occur by 2050
and even 2100. We are not used to such
long-range planning; people are skeptical
of the value of such planning. But the facts
are that sea level rise has been happening

.. Jand] it will continue to happen.”

. West's Industrial Revolution.

Unchecked, global emissions are like-

ly to continue as human population, con-
sumption and travel rates surge, scientists
warn.
The co-authors of the National Academy
of Sciences report acknowledged that the
regional data they synthesized are incom-
plete and regional variability affects the
figures from coastlines along the Gulf of
Mexico, the South Pacific and Australasia.

Moreover, high resolution records are
“notably lacking from Asia, most of South
America and most of Africa,” they said.

Nevertheless, despite the incomplete
coverage and regional variability, “sen-
sitivity analyses of different data subsets
indicate that key features of the global sea
level curve” show a rise until A.D. 700, a
fall from A.D. 1000 to 1400 and a renewed
and enduring rise in the late 1gth century,
corresponding with the acceleration of the

I .



Correspondence



i _" ED""'.JF.’I G. e o

e f Ny M
o

’-\-/,._ secrion_ & | pagEmo._l___ &
EALIFORNLA ) ﬁ h"n-n Hf‘:t L -

iy M.

P

Water Boards N ST

State Water Resources Control Board

NOTICE TO WATER RIGHT PERMITTEE
February 19, 2016

. HBMW.D. FeB 23 208
Designated Contact or Agent:
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
PO BOX 95
EUREKA, CA 95502

Primary Owner: HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Application ID: A026657 Permit No. 018347

First three sources listed: Counties:

MAD RIVER Trinity

Direct Diversion Rate: 1000.000 Cubic Feet per Second Collection to Storage Amount:
120000.000 AC-FT

PERMITTEE REPORTING FOR 2015

As indicated in the California Code of Regulations title 23, section 847, the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board) requires annual reporting of water diversion and use under permits.
California Water Code chapter 2.7 section 348 authorizes the State Water Board to require online
reporting of water diversions. Consistent with these requirements, the State Water Board, Division of
Water Rights (Division) developed a new online Report Management System (RMS) as a component
of the enhanced Water Right Information Management System (eWRIMS). RMS allows electronic
submittal of water diversion and use reports, saving both paper and resources. All reports must be
compieted online through RMS; paper copies are not available. To report online, go to
www.waterboards.ca.govirms and login with your user |D and password. The information required
to login and access your online Progress Report by Permittee is:

User ID (Water Right ID): .
Password (Reporting Identifier):

***IMPORTANT: PLEASE NOTE BELOW***
Effective immediately the Division of Water Rights will NO LONGER notify you via mail in the future
when reporting is due. If you would like to be notified when reporting is due and other reporting
related material, please subscribe to our Lyris list (Water Rights Reporting Notification) at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml.

You are required to complete the online report for 2015 no later than June 30, 2016. If you do not
have a computer or internet access, you should use a friend’s computer, a computer in a public
library, or a Division computer to fill out the form. Unfortunately, Division staff cannot fill the form out
on your behalf. However, if you wish to seek assistance with the form, you may contact the Division
to request a listing of attorneys and consulting firms with water rights experience. You can aiso

Fogn o Mnn onamm | Toowas HONAGD, 1006 TWE DIaFCTOR

1005 | Steeel, Soovomento, CA G5314 1 Meong Aduress: L0 Box 100, Scuramerto, Ga RR4D-0100 | war walerborgh oe ge

&y o s asn



secTioN_ (3. |, PAGE NO._Z...

If you have multiple water rights, you must report water use separately for each right. Do not list
total combined diversions under multiple rights on the form. To document compliance with the
conditions of your water right(s), you may use RMS to submit photos (such as staff gages,
measuring devices, etc.), documents (California Department of Fish and Wildlife agreements, other
agency approvals, etc.), graphs, and spreadsheets.

REQUIRED NQ}"IFICATI_ON OF CHANGE IN OWNERSHIP

You are required t6 nofify the Division directly of any water right ownership change. Your county
assessor’s office or title company does not notify the Division of ownership changes. Failure to notify
the Division of an ownership change prior to assessment of annual water right fees will result in your
liability to pay the annual water right fee even if you transferred the property associated with the water
right. Notification to the Division should be made using the Change of Name/Address or Ownership
form by clicking on the Water Rights Forms link located at
www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/publications_forms/forms/index.shtml.

CHANGES FOR REPORTING AND MEASUREMENT OF DIVERSIONS MADE iN 2016, AND
THEREAFTER

e See attached “Fact Sheet” for updates.

LICENSING OF PERMITTED PROJECTS

Due to limited resources, the Division is unable to promptly inspect all projects with expired “complete
use” dates or otherwise reported ready for licensing. To expedite the licensing process, for any
permits that authorize diversion of water to a reservoir, you may retain a licensed land surveyor or civil
engineer to: (1) survey the reservoir and submit the certified survey to the Division with your request
for a license inspection; and (2) submit any records of diversion or calculations of beneficial use of
water under the permit. Whenever possible, the Division will prioritize inspections for license based on
the date that the survey and diversion/use information is submitted to the Division.

The permittee is responsible for maintaining records showing that all permit conditions have been
complied with. To facilitate licensing, this information should be submitted to the Division with items
(1) and (2) above. For example, if a staff gage is required you should submit photographic
documentation that the gage was installed and document that it was calibrated. -

CONTACT INFORMATION

Frequently asked questions pertaining to filling out online reports are posted at the RMS website and
we encourage you to read these first. However, if you still have any questions or need assistance
completing the report, please contact the Division at (916) 323-9393 or send an email to:
ewrims@waterboards.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

(o Mty

Amanda Montgomery, Manager
Permitting and Licensing Section
Division of Water Rights



Water Boards

% —=-oN39¥d™" " NOLO3S

State Water Resources Control Board

NOTICE TO WATER RIGHT PERMITTEE

February 19, 2018

Designated Contact or Agent: S
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT HBMWD FEB'2 3 201
PO BOX 85

EUREKA, CA 95502

Primary Owner: HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Application ID: A017291 Permit No. 011715
First three sources listed: Counties:

MAD RIVER | Trinity

Direct Diversion Rate: 116.000 Cubic Feet per Second Collection o Storage Amount:
20000.000 AC-FT

PERMITTEE REPORTING FOR 2015

As indicated in the California Code of Regulations title 23, section 847, the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board) requires annual reporting of water diversion and use under permits.
California Water Code chapter 2.7 section 348 authorizes the State Water Board to require online
reporting of water diversions. Consistent with these requirements, the State Water Board, Division of
Water Rights (Division) developed a new online Report Management System (RMS) as a component
of the enhanced Water Right Information Management System (eWRIMS). RMS allows electronic
submittal of water diversion and use reports, saving both paper and resources. All reports must be
completed online through RMS; paper copies are not available. To report online, go to
www.waterboards.ca.gov/rms and login with your user ID and password. The information required
to login and access your online Progress Report by Permittee is:

User ID (Water Right ID). .
Password {(Reporting Identifier):

**IMPORTANT: PLEASE NOTE BELOW***
Effective immediately the Division of Water Rights will NO LONGER notify you via mail in the future
when reporting is due. If you would like to be notified when reporting is due and other reporting
related material, please subscribe to our Lyris list (Water Rights Reporting Notification) at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml.

You are required to complete the online report for 2015 no later than June 30, 2016. If you do not
have a computer or internet access, you should use a friend’s computer, a computer in a public
library, or a Division computer to fill out the form. Unfortunately, Division staff cannot fill the form out
on your behalf. However, if you wish to seek assistance with the form, you may contact the Division
to request a listing of attorneys and consulting firms with water rights experience. You can also

Foooo e on, ovmm | Toeomas Howuid, 0L CUTIGE GIREGTOR

1004 ! Stree?, Secromento. CA 95R1 | Melir g Acdress: £,0. Box T00, Sacramsento, Ga 95812-HM0u | www.witetbear: ca.go



. j ’v-:\ Ceeovn G Brosen
% SECTION_ (31 PAGENC. LI { ™ ”

T 243 RN SR 1
§as

LALIFORNIS ‘\.’;}
Water Boards o

TR

State Water Resources Control Board

NOTICE TO WATER RIGHT PERMITTEE

February 19, 2016

Designated Contact or Agent: HB.MWD, FEB 2.3 201
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ’

PO BOX 95
EUREKA, CA 95502

Primary Owner: HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
Application ID: A016454 Permit No. 011714

First three sources listed: Counties:

MAD RIVER Trinity

Direct Diversion Rate: 0.000 Gallons per I_Jay Collection to Storage Amount: 48030.000 AC-FT
PERMITTEE REPORTING FOR 2015

As indicated in the California Code of Regulations title 23, section 847, the State Water Resources
Control Board (State Water Board) requires annual reporting of water diversion and use under permits.
California Water Code chapter 2.7 section 348 authorizes the State Water Board to require online
reporting of water diversions. Consistent with these requirements. the State Water Board, Division of
Water Rights (Division) developed a new online Report Management System (RMS) as a component
of the enhanced Water Right Information Management System (eWRIMS). RMS allows electronic
submittal of water diversion and use reports, saving both paper and resources. All reports must be
completed online through RMS; paper copies are not available. To report online, go to
www.waterboards.ca.govirms and login with your user ID and password. The information required
to login and access your online Progress Report by Permittee is:

User ID (Water Right ID):
Password (Reporting Identifier):

**IMPORTANT: PLEASE NOTE BELOW***
Effective immediately the Division of Water Rights will NO LONGER notify you via mail in the future
when reporting is due. If you would like to be notified when reporting is due and other reporting
related material, please subscribe to our Lyris list (Water Rights Reporting Notification) at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/email_subscriptions/swrcb_subscribe.shtml.

You are required to complete the online report for 2015 no later than June 30, 2016. If you do not
have a computer or internet access, you should use a friend's computer, a computer in a public
library, or a Division computer to fill out the form. Unfortunately, Division staff cannot fill the form out
on your behalf. However, if you wish to seek assistance with the form, you may contact the Division
to request a listing of attorneys and consulting firms with water rights experience. You can also
review the listing on the Division's Business Information Contacts webpage at:
www.waterboards.ca.gov/waterrights/board_info/contacts.shtml.

Frooa Mo, oHaR | Tredas Howazmo, FXE i GLEGIT0OR

1091 § Steagt, Sacraieato, CA §5814 ; Mo n3 Aadress: 2.0, Box 167, Szeran erts, Ca 85812-0100 | www waterodars.ca.ouy

ﬁ- BTTLIOLE PA b



SECTION (11 PAGE NO... 5.,

Updated February 9, 2016

Fact Sheet

Water Boards

EMERGENCY REGULATION FOR MEASURING AND REPORTING
ON THE DIVERSION OF WATER

Governor Edmund G. Brown Jr. signed Senate Bill (SB) 88 on June 24, 2015. Sections 15 through 18
of SB 88 add measurement and reporting requirements for a substantial number of diverters. The
State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) adopted a regulation to implement the new
law at its January 19, 2016 Board Meeting. The regulation will go into effect upon approval by the
Office of Administrative Law, which is anticipated to occur in February 2016.

The measurement requirements of the regulation apply to all water right holders who di\fert 10 acre-feet
of water or more per year. The annual reporting requirements in the regulation apply to all statement
holders as well as persons authorized to appropriate water under a permit, license, registration (small
domestic, small irrigation, or livestock stockpond), or certificate for livestock stockpond use.

Information on the regulation, SB 88, and related documents are available at:

http://www.waterboards.ca.goviwaterrights/water_issues/programs/measurement_regulation/

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact the Division of Water Rights (Division) at:

Email Address:
Phone Number:

dwr-measurement@waterboards.ca.gov
(916) 341-5300

Key Provisions of Regulation
Annual Water Use Reporting Requirements for Water Right Holders

All water right holders shall report on their diversion and use of water annually, beginning with reports
for the 2016 diversion season. Annual water use reports for permits, licenses, registrations and stock
pond certificates must be filed by April 1 of each year starting April 1, 2017 for diversions made in
2016. The annual use reports for statements shall be filed prior to July 1 of each year. All reports wil
continue to document diversions during the prior calendar year. The filing dates are for the annual
water use reports are summarized below:

DIVERSION/STORAGE " | °~ ‘WATER USE REPORT DEADLINES
PERIOD PERMITS LICENSES STATEMENTS REGISTRATIONS CERTIFICATES
2015 JULY 1, 2016 JULY 1, 2016 JULY 1, 2016 VARIES NOT REQUIRED
2016 APRIL 1, 2017 APRIL 1, 2017 JULY 1, 2017 APRIL 1, 2017 APRIL 1, 2017

Reporting Requirements for Water Right Holders During Times of Insufficient Suppl

When the amount of water available in a surface water source is not sufficient to support the needs of
existing water right holders and in-stream uses, the State Water Board may require monthly or more
frequent reporting in the affected areas to provide the most accurate assessment of water demand.
The State Water Board will notify diverters in affected areas when additional reporting is required.

CANEIFYOPREN | ENNV IR D HMENTAL PFPRDTEGTIOMN fAGEHMNGCLEY

_ STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD d
1001 | Street, Sacramento, CA 05814 « 916-341.5254 » Malling Address: P.O. Box 100, Sacramento, CA 95812-D100 « www.waterboards.ca.0ov .o |h o,




secmioN_ G| PAGENO._ G

Deadline for Complying with Measurement and Reporting Requirements

The regulation provides for a phased approach to compliance. The compliance deadlines, by volume
of water diverted, are shown in the table below. )

Required Accuracy for Measurement and Frequency for Monitoring

SB 88 set expectations for both the accuracy of measurement devices as well as the monitoring
frequency of the device. The regulation links both device accuracy and monitoring frequency to the
volume categories in the table above. Larger diversions and larger reservoirs or ponds have more
stringent measurement and monitoring requirements and more stringent requirements for the
installation and certification of measurement devices as described in the table below.

; . InstaHlation Required Required Qualifications For Installation
Type of Diversion Deadline Accuracy | Monitoring And Certification
Direct Diversion 2 1,000 afa ; ;
Storage > 1000 af January 1, 2017 10% | Hourly Engineer/Contractor/Professional
Direct Diversion = 100 afa/ ‘ ; .
Storage 2 200 af July 1, 2017 10% Daily Engineer/Contractor/Professional
Direct Diversion > 10 afa/ B Individual experienced with
Storage 2 50 af danuary 1, 2018 156 Weekly measurement and monitoring
Individual experienced with
Storage > 10 af January 1 2018 15% . Monthly measurement and monitoring

Measurement Methods

Diverters may propose a measurement method, in lieu of a measuring device, to comply with
measurement and accuracy requirements under the regulation. Examples of measurement methods
include:
* Multipte water right holders on a single surface supply can propose a collaborative
measurement approach.
* A single water right holder with multiple points of diversion can propose a measurement method
that may preciude the need to install a measurement device at each point of diversion.

Altemative Compliance

A water right holder may request an alternative compliance approach when strict compliance is not
feasible, would be unreasconable expensive, would unreasonable affect public trust resources, or would
result in the waste or unreasonable use of water,

The Division is preparing the forms to request alternative measurement or alternative compliance. All
requests must be submitted on the Division’s forms. Please note; persons subject to the regulation are
not allowed to claim “not locally cost effective”.

Certification of Water Measurement Device
The regulation requires that the accuracy of the water measurement device be certified every five

years, in accordance with the table above. The regulation calls for an initial certification with the first
water use report filed after the device has been installed.

EMERGENCY REGULATION ON MEASUREMENT AND REPORTING




Continuing Business



secm K1 <No_

e v el

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: March 3, 2016

Subject: ReMAT electricity generation contract — SGIA Contract

At the October, 2015 Board mesting, the Board authorized staff to establish a contract with JTN to
negotiate an interconnection agreement with PG&E, for a maximum cost not to exceed $5,000. At the
January, 2016 meeting, the Board approved the full contract with JTN to complete the interconnection
agreement and negotiate a ReMAT contract with PG&E.

JTN has succeeded in negotiating a Small Generator Interconnection Agreement that requires no
payments of additional fees (these were paid when we started selling power to PG&E in 1983). The
agreement is a standard CA Public Utilities Commission- approved contract that does not have many
provisions that can be modified. As described in the attached email from Mark Henwood, he believes
that contract meets our requirements and has a number of provisions that are advantageous to
HBMWD. An interconnection agreement is required even for our current Standard Offer contract, as
well as for a ReMAT contract or a contract with a Humboldt CCA. We currently have an
interconnection agreement related to our power sale contract, and this agreement would supercede the
existing agreement.

The only issue that arose in Russ Gan’s review of this agreement was whether or not the “Entire
Agreement” clause in Section 12.5 would nullify our Standard Offer contract with PG&E under which we
currently sell power. We sought PG&E’s opinion on this, and they have confirmed that the provisions in
the Standard Offer contract are not addressed as subject matter in the interconnection agreement, and
thus not affected by Section 12.5. See the confirmation email from Nancy Breckenridge, the manager
of contracts and reporting for PG&E. This position is consistent with the structure of the current power
sale contract and interconnection agreement that we have in place.

Staff recommends that the Board authorize approval by HBMWD of the interconnection agreement.



SECTION_i | PAGENO. 2z __
Paul Helliker

From: markhenwood@henwoodassociates.com

Sent: Woednesday, February 17, 2016 10:21 AM

To: Paul Helliker; Todd Thorner

Subject: Fw: Final SGIA: QF Conversion: Gosselin Hydroelectric Project (PG&E's Log Number
19HO051) (Action Requested)

Attachments: Gosselin Hydroelectric Project_SGIA_WDT_Final_021616.pdf

Paul/Todd,

Attached is the final version of the SGIA ready for execution. Larry's email explains the procedure.

In summary:

-—

. The agreement is a standard document that PG&E uses for this purpose.

2. The agreement recognizes that HBMWD paid the one time O&M fee and as a result there is no
ongoing charge.

3. The agreement is evergreen in HBMWD's favor.

4. No additional requirements are place on HBMWD by the agreement at this time. Changes in
laws or regulations could affect the agreement in the future.

5. We have received verification from PG&E that the existing PPA's power purchase provisions

will remain intact after the SGIA is executed. Paul you have a copy of Nancy Brekenridge's

email to the effect.

As a result | believe it is in HBMWD's interest to execute the agreement at this time thereby locking in
the interconnection mechanism to market power under any other arrangement than the SO1. Of
course, HBMWD needs to perform it's own review prior to execution.

Also, Todd please double check the agreement and provide feedback to Paul.

Regards,

Mark

On Tuesday, February 16, 2016 3:30 PM, "Doleman, Larry (ET)" <LXD6@pge.com> wrote:

Hey Mark,

Attached is the Final SGIA and QF Conversion for your Gosselin Hydroelectric Project (PG&E’s
Log Number 19H051). This document is submitted for your signature.

Please read these changes over carefully. If you could, please sign 2 single-sided copies and send
entire original documents in overnight mail to:



8E&TION__{1[ PAGENO._3

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Attention: Electric Generation Interconnection — Larry Doleman
245 Market Street

Mail Code N7L

San Francisco, California 94105-1702

Please sign and date pages 20 and 27 only leaving everything else blank. Please provide original
wet copies to me no later than COB Tuesday, March 1, 2016. Thank you for your continued support

and assistance.

Thank you for your continued support and assistance. Feel free to call me with any questions.
Larry Doleman, MBA | Interconnection Manager

Pacific Gas & Electric Company | Electric Generation Interconnection | www.pge.com/gen

245 Market Street Cffice 797B, San Francisco, CA 94105

Phone: 415-972-5423 | internal: 222-5423 | Mobile: 415-716-3424 | Email: [xd6@pge.com



SECTION_|4|._,PAGENO. [ ___

Paul Helliker

From: Breckenridge, Nancy <NJB6@pge.com>

Sent: Wednesday, February 10, 2016 9:26 AM

To: Paul Helliker; 'markhenwood@henwoodassociates.com’
Subject: 19H051 Humboldt Bay MWD - Interconnection Question
Paul / Mark -

{ wanted to get back to you regarding your interconnection question.

| have checked in with colleagues here and can confirm that executing an SGIA that will supersede the existing
interconnection agreement will not impact the power purchase provisions of the SO1, which will continue in force until
that agreement is terminated. An interconnection agreement must be in place throughout the life of your 501 contract
{i.e., smooth transition from one agreement to the other, no gap) ~ Mark, sounds like you experienced this type of
transition already with Salmon Creek.

Upon completion, please supply a copy of your executed SGIA for our records.

Thank you.
Mancy

From: Breckenridge, Nancy
Sent: Friday, February 05, 2016 5:09 PM

To: 'Paul Helliker’; markhenwood@henwoodassociates.com
Subject: RE: Contact manager for one of the old QF projects

Paul / Mark —

Thank you both for the information. | will be sure to update our database to reflect Paul Helliker as our contact at
Humboldt Bay MWD and include a note that we have received authority to speak with Mark Henwood and Todd Thorner
regarding this contract.

As | mentioned to Mark, | will be out of the office Monday, but back on Tuesday.
| already sent the question on to a couple of my colleagues just to check in and will loop back with you early next week.

Thanks.

Nancy Breckenridge
Manager | Contracts and Reporting
Energy Procurement | Pacific Gas and Electric Co.

415.973.4092 | NIB6@pge.com

From: Paul Helliker [mailto:helliker@hbmwd.com]
Sent: Friday, February 05, 2016 4:51 PM

To: markhenwood@henwoodassociates.com; Breckenridge, Nancy
Subject: RE: Contact manager for one of the old QF projects




sgoTiON AL PAGENO.G

i vy e e e

Alert: This message originated outside of PG&E. Use caution when opening attachments, clicking links or responding to

requests for information.
sk e s sf b ofe o ok o e o ok b e sk o b ke o e of e s o s ok sk oo ook o ol s sk o

Hi, Nancy — Mark Henwood and Todd Thorner are working with us to help get an interconnection agreement and ReMAT
contract drafted, for my Board of Directors to consider approving. | am glad to know that you are our contract manager
for PG&E, and | look forward to working with you in this process.

Mark has described well one of the concerns we have about how the SGIA would relate to our SC1 contract. | look
forward to your comments on the query.

Thariks,

Paul Helliker

General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 7" Street

Eureka, CA 95501

(707) 443-5018

From: markhenwood@henwoodassociates.com [ mailto:markhenwood @henwoodassociates.com]
Sent: Friday, February 05, 2016 4:38 PM

To: Breckenridge, Nancy

Cc: Curran, Chad; Lopez, Norman; Paul Helliker

Subject: Re: Contact manager for one of the old QF projects

Hi Nancy,

Nice to make contact with you. This email just follows up our call. I'm am copying this email to Paul
Helliker who is the General Manager of Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District. | trust that an email
from Mr. Helliker would be adequate to allow us to discuss the details of the PPA / SGIA matter.

By way of background, Larry Doleman of PG&E's interconnection group is in the process of preparing
an execution copy of a new SGIA for the project. One of the provisions in the SGIA states:

Section 12.5 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including all Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement
between the Parties with reference to the subject matter hereof, and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings or agreements, oral or written, between the Parties with respect to the
subject matter of this Agreement.

With this provision the old interconnection and SFA provisions in HBMWD's SO1 would be
superseded by the new SGIA. What we are looking for is confirmation that the power purchase
provisions of the SO1 will continue in force until that agreement is terminated. This is the exact
same scenario that our affiliate Salmon Creek Hydroelectric Company LLC went through at the end of
it's SO4 contract. We executed a SGIA prior to the end of the SO4 contract which remained in effect
until its termination. This allowed us to work through all the transition activities and have a
"seamless" transition to our new ReMAT contract.

Until next week,



SECTION_HL[ PAGENO. & ___

SMALL GENERATOR INTERCONNECTION
AGREEMENT (SGIA)

(For Generating Facilities No Larger Than 20 MW)

BETWEEN

PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY
AND

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

For Project:

Gosselin Hydroelectric Project

(PG&E’s Log Number 19H051)
Trinity County, CA



SEcTioN_ti | __ PaGENO._f___

B

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page No.

Article 1. Scope and Limitations of Agreement.........cccccocoii 1
1.5 Responsibilities of the Parties. ... 1

1.6  Parallel Operation Obligations .........ccoccviiiiiii i, 2

LS 2 |7 = (= 4 {3 T 3

1.8  ReEACHVE POWEN.....c e e e 3
Article 2. Inspection, Testing, Authorization, and Right of Access..........ccccccviiviriiinnee 3
2.1  Equipment Testing and InSpection...........ccoveeeei e 3

2.2  Authorization Required Prior to Parallel Operation. .............cccceeiviininninennns 3

2.3  Right Of ACCESS ...oiiii i 4

Article 3. Effective Date, Term, Termination, and Disconnection ............cccocnceeeene. 4
3.1 Effective Date ... e e e 4

3.2 Termof AGreement..... ...t e 4

R 30 TR -1 14113 =1 (o o SO 4

3.4 Temporary DiSCONNECHON ... .. e 5

3.4.1 Emergency Conditions.....c.ccccvviiiiinicirin et 5

3.4.2 Routine Maintenance, Construction, and Repair.............cccceeininee 5

3.4.3 Forced OULAgES .......cccoviieeeeeece e 6

3.4.4 Adverse Operating Effects ............couvvemni s 6

3.4.5 Modification of the Small Generating Facility ...........cccooceeeviiiceennnes 6

3.4.6 ReconNnectioN ..cccceeveencccicer e e s 6

Article 4. Cost Responsibility for Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades ... 6

4.1 Interconnection Facilities ........c.ovvviiiiis i e e ern rema e 6

4.2 Distribution Upgrades ............cccoceviiriciiinninircicinc e e 7
Article 5. Cost Responsibility for Network Upgrades ...........oooveeeiiii i 7
51 Applicability.......coeeeeeee e 7

5.2 Network Upgrades...............ocoiiciiimmmiincniimmc e 7

5.2.1 Repayment of Amounts Advanced for Network Upgrades.............. 7

5.3  Special Provisions for Affected Systems........cccocooiiriiiecinccccec e 8

5.4 Rights Under Other Agreements........cccccovvirerincimeen s 8

Article 6. Billing, Payment, Milestones, and Financial Security ..............cccoeviieeniicennne 8
6.1 Billing and Payment Procedures and Final Accounting ............cccceeeiieeen. 9

ST 1Y, 111 (o o T SO 9

6.3 Financial Security Arrangements...........cccove it 9

Article 7. Assignment, Liability, Indemnity, Force Majeure, Consequential Damages, and
7= = 11 PR 10

7.1 ASSINMENT ... . e 10

7.2  Limitation of Liability .....cc.ooeooeeerieci s 10



secTion_[\ ¢ paGENO._¥

7.3 INdeMNItY ..uiviiininiier i 10
7.4  Consequential Damages......c..cccurieiiiiirnriee e es e s ser e s ene e s 11
7.5 Force Majeure..............iiiciee s 11
T.6  DefaUlt ... 12
ArtICIE 8. INSUFANCE. ... et s s s ee s s s snr e e e e e e s s s e enenaas 12
Article 9. Confidentiality...............oooo e 13
ArCIE 10. DISPULES ... e e e e re e e e et e e e e e e s e e e e e eennan s rann s snan 14
F T [ R I R 14
Article 12. MISCIIANEOUS........ccco i e e e e e e e s e e s e e e e s s e e e e e emnmmmmmmmnn e 14
12.1 Governing Law, Regulatory Authority, and Rules ................................. 14
12.2 AMendmENt .......ccoiiiii e e ———— 15
12.3 No Third-Party Beneficiaries..........ccccco e 15
P S T - T P 15
12.5 Entire Agreement..... ..ot 15
12.6 Multiple Counterparts...........oovemmeiiieiiicr e 15
12.7 NO Partnership......cccccceeieiiiirrrsrinrerrese e s s e e e ree e eeaeeeas 15
12.8  SeVEIabDIlIY ..oooeeeeeeeeee et 15
12.9  Security AITANGEMENLS ......cueeeieiie e rere e e 16
12.10 Environmental Releases.........cccccveveiii i e 16
12,11 SUDCONITACIOIS. .. vuvieieitirir e e e e 16
12.12 Reservation of Rights.......cc.ccciiiiir e 16
Article 13, NOLICES .oovveiiiieie e 17

Attachment 1 — Glossary of Terms

Attachment 2 — Description and Costs of the Small Generating Facility, Interconnection
Facilities, and Metering Equipment

Attachment 3 - One-line Diagram Depicting the Small Generating Facility, Interconnection
Facilities, Metering Equipment, and Upgrades

Attachment 4 — Milestones

Attachment 5 — Additional Operating Requirements for the Distribution Provider's Distribution
and Transmission Systems and Affected Systems Needed to Support the
Interconnection Customer’'s Needs

Attachment 6 — Distribution Provider's Description of its Upgrades and Best Estimate of
Upgrade Costs

ii



SEOTION -Hit  PAGE NO._ .

This Interconnection Agreement ("Agreement"} is made and entered into this day of
, 20__ by PACIFIC GAS AND ELECTRIC COMPANY ("Distribution
Provider™), and HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT ("Interconnection
Customer™), each hereinafter sometimes referred to individually as "Party” or both referred to
collectively as the "Parties.”

Distribution Provider Information

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Attention: Electric Generation Interconnection - Contract Management
245 Market Street

Mail Code N7L

San Francisco, California 94105-1702

Phone: (415) 972-5394

Email: EGIContractMgmt@pge.com

Interconnection Customer Information

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Attention: John Friedenbach

828 Seventh St.

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 443-5018

Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

Interconnection Customer Application No: PG&E Project ID# N/A, Queue# N/A. In
consideration of the mutual covenants set forth herein, the Parties agree as follows:

Article 1. Scope and Limitations of Agreement

1.1 This Agreement shall be used for all Small Generating Facility Interconnection Requests
submitted under the Small Generator Interconnection Procedures (SGIP) or Generator
Interconnection Procedures {(GIP) except for those submitted under the 10 kW Inverter
Process contained in SGIP Attachment 5.

1.2 This Agreement governs the terms and conditions under which the Interconnection
Customer’'s Small Generating Facility wilf interconnect with, and operate in parallel with,
the Distribution Provider's Distribution System.

1.3 This Agreement does not constitute an agreement to purchase or deliver the
Interconnection Customer's power. The purchase or delivery of power and other services
that the Interconnection Customer may require will be covered under separate
agreements. The Interconnection Customer will be responsible for separately making all
necessary arrangements (including scheduling) for delivery of electricity.

1.4 Nothing in this Agreement is intended to affect any other agreement between the
Distribution Provider and the Interconnection Customer.

1.5 Responsibilities of the Parties



1.6

SECTION_L11_ PAGE NO. {0

1.5.1 The Parties shall perform all obligations of this Agreement in accordance with all
Applicable Laws and Regulations, Operating Requirements, and Good Utility
Practice.

1.5.2 The Interconnection Customer shall construct, interconnect, operate and
maintain its Small Generating Facility and construct, operate, and maintain its
Interconnection Facilities in accordance with the applicable manufacturer's
recommended maintenance schedule, in accordance with this Agreement, and
with Good Utility Practice.

1.5.3 The Distribution Provider shall construct, operate, and maintain its Distribution
System, Transmission System and Interconnection Facilities in accordance with
this Agreement, and with Good Utility Practice.

1.5.4 The Interconnection Customer agrees to construct its facilities or systems in
accordance with applicable specifications that meet or exceed those provided by
the National Electrical Safety Code, the American National Standards Institute,
IEEE, Underwriter's Laboratory, and Operating Requirements in effect at the time
of construction and other applicable national and state codes and standards. The
Interconnection Customer agrees to design, install, maintain, and operate its
Small Generating Facility so as to reasonably minimize the likelihood of a
disturbance adversely affecting or impairing the system or equipment of the
Distribution Provider or Affected Systems. The Interconnection Customer shall
comply with the Distribution Provider's Interconnection Handbook. In the event of
a conflict between the terms of this SGIA and the terms of the Distribution
Provider's Interconnection Handbook, the terms in this SGIA shall govern.

1.5.5 Each Party shall operate, maintain, repair, and inspect, and shall be fully
responsible for the facilities that it now or subsequently may own unless
otherwise specified in the Attachments to this Agreement. Each Party shall be
responsible for the safe installation, maintenance, repair and condition of their
respective lines and appurtenances on their respective sides of the point of
change of ownership. The Distribution Provider and the Interconnection
Customer, as appropriate, shall provide Interconnection Facilities that adequately
protect the Distribution Provider's Distribution and Transmission Systems,
personnel, and other persons from damage and injury. The allocation of
responsibility for the design, installation, operation, maintenance and ownership
of Interconnection Facilities shall be delineated in the Attachments to this
Agreement.

1.5.6 The Distribution Provider shall coordinate with all Affected Systems to support
the interconnection.

Parallel Operation Obligations

Once the Small Generating Facility has been authorized by the Distribution Provider to
commence parallel operation, the Interconnection Customer shall abide by all rules and
procedures pertaining to the parallel operation of the Small Generating Facility in the
applicable control area, including, but not limited to; 1) the rules and procedures
concerning the operation of generation set forth in the Tariff or by the applicable system
operator(s) for the Distribution Provider's Distribution and Transmission Systems and; 2)
the Operating Requirements set forth in Attachment 5 of this Agreement.



eFrTION g1 ,PAGENO. U ____

1.7 Metering
The Interconnection Customer shall be responsible for the Distribution Provider's

reasonable and necessary cost for the purchase, installation, operation, maintenance,
testing, repair, and replacement of metering and data acquisition equipment specified in
Attachments 2 and 3 of this Agreement. The Interconnection Customer's metering (and
data acquisition, as required) equipment shall conform to applicable industry rules and
Operating Requirements.

1.8 Reactive Power
The Interconnection Customer shall design its Small Generating Facility to maintain a
composite power delivery at continuous rated power output at the Point of
Interconnection at a power factor within the range of 0.95 leading to 0.95 lagging, unless
the Distribution Provider has established different requirements that apply to all similarly
situated generators in the control area on a comparable basis. The requirements of this
paragraph shall not apply to wind generators.

1.9 Capitalized terms used herein shall have the meanings specified in the Glossary of
Terms in Attachment 1 or the body of this Agreement.
Article 2. Inspection, Testing, Authorization, and Right of Access

2.1 Equipment Testing and Inspection

2.1.1 The Interconnection Customer shall test and inspect its Small Generating Facility
and Interconnection Fagcilities prior to interconnection. The Interconnection
Customer shall notify the Distribution Pravider of such activities no fewer than
five Business Days (or as may be agreed to by the Parties) prior to such testing
and inspection. Testing and inspection shall occur on a Business Day. The
Distribution Provider may, at its own expense, send qualified personnel to the
Small Generating Facility site to inspect the interconnection and observe the
testing. The Interconnection Customer shall provide the Distribution Provider a
written test report when such testing and inspection is completed.

2.1.2 The Distribution Provider shall provide the Interconnection Customer written
acknowledgment that it has received the Interconnection Customer's written test
report. Such written acknowledgment shall not be deemed to be or construed as
any representation, assurance, guarantee, or warranty by the Distribution
Provider of the safety, durability, suitability, or reliability of the Small Generating
Facility or any associated control, protective, and safety devices owned or
controlled by the Interconnection Customer or the quality of power produced by
the Small Generating Facility.

2.2 Authorization Required Prior to Parallel Operation

2.2.1 The Distribution Provider shall use Reasonable Efforts to list applicable parallel
operation requirements in Attachment 5 of this Agreement. Additicnally, the
Distribution Provider shall notify the Interconnection Customer of any changes to
these requirements as soon as they are known. The Distribution Provider shall



SECTION_i3 | _PAGENO._[Z-

make Reasonable Efforts to cooperate with the Interconnection Customer in
meeting requirements necessary for the Interconnection Customer to commence
parallel operations by the in-service date.

2.2.2 The Interconnection Customer shall not operate its Small Generating Facility in
parallel with the Distribution Provider's Distribution System without prior written
authorization of the Distribution Provider. The Distribution Provider will provide
such authorization once the Distribution Provider receives notification that the
Interconnection Customer has complied with all applicable parallel operation
requirements. Such authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld,
conditioned, or delayed.

2.3 Right of Access

2.3.1  Upon reasonable notice, the Distribution Provider may send a qualified person to
the premises of the Interconnection Customer at or immediately before the time
the Small Generating Facility first produces energy to inspect the interconnection,
and observe the commissioning of the Small Generating Facility (including any
required testing), startup, and operation for a period of up to three Business Days
after initial start-up of the unit. In addition, the Interconnection Customer shall
notify the Distribution Provider at least five Business Days prior to conducting any
on-site verification testing of the Small Generating Facility.

2.3.2 Following the initial inspection process described above, at reasonable hours,
and upon reasonable notice, or at any time without notice in the event of an
emergency or hazardous condition, the Distribution Provider shall have access to
the Interconnection Customer's premises for any reasonable purpose in
connection with the performance of the obligations imposed on it by this
Agreement or if necessary to meet its legal obligation fo provide service to its
customers.

2.3.3 Each Party shall be responsible for its own costs associated with following this
article.

Article 3. Effective Date, Term, Termination, and Disconnection

3.1 Effective Date
This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by the Parties subject to
acceptance by FERC (if applicable), or if filed unexecuted, upon the date specified by
the FERC. The Distribution Provider shall promptly file this Agreement with the FERC
upon execution, if required.

3.2  Term of Agreement
This Agreement shall become effective on the Effective Date and shall remain in effect
for a period of ten years from the Effective Date or such other longer pericd as the
Interconnection Customer may request and shall be automatically renewed for each
successive one-year pericd thereafter, unless terminated earlier in accordance with
article 3.3 of this Agreement.

3.3 Termination



3.4

SECTION_h| PAGENO._[2_.

No termination shall become effective until the Parties have complied with all Applicable
Laws and Regulations applicable to such termination, including the filing with FERC of a
notice of termination of this Agreement (if required), which notice has been accepted for
filing by FERC.

3.31 The Interconnection Customer may terminate this Agreement at any time by
ghving the Distribution Provider 20 Business Days written notice.

3.3.2 Either Party may terminate this Agreement after Default pursuant to article 7.6.

3.3.3 Upon termination of this Agreement, the Small Generating Facility will be
disconnected from the Distribution Provider's Distribution System. The
termination of this Agreement shall not relieve either Party of its liabilities and
obligations, owed or continuing at the time of the termination.

3.3.4 The provisions of this article shall survive termination or expiration of this
Agreement.

Temporary Disconnection
Temporary disconnection shall continue only for so long as reasonably necessary under

Good Utility Practice.

3.4.1 Emergency Conditions -- "Emergency Condition" shall mean a condition or
situation: (1) that in the judgment of the Party making the claim is imminently
likely to endanger life or property; or (2) that, in the case of the Distribution
Provider, is imminently likely (as determined in a non-discriminatory manner) to
cause a material adverse effect on the security of, or damage to the Distribution
System, the Distribution Provider's Interconnection Facilities any Affected
Systems; or (3) that, in the case of the Interconnection Customer, is imminently
likely (as determined in a non-discriminatory manner) to cause a material
adverse effect on the security of, or damage to, the Small Generating Facility or
the Interconnection Customer's Interconnection Facilities. Under Emergency
Conditions, the Distribution Provider may immediately suspend interconnection
service and temporarily disconnect the Small Generating Facility. The
Distribution Provider shall notify the Interconnection Customer promptly when it
becomes aware of an Emergency Condition that may reasonably be expected to
affect the Interconnection Customer's operation of the Small Generating Facility.
The Interconnection Customer shall notify the Distribution Provider promptly
when it becomes aware of an Emergency Condition that may reasonably be
expected to affect the Distribution Provider's Distribution System or other
Affected Systems. To the extent information is known, the notification shall
describe the Emergency Condition, the extent of the damage or deficiency, the
expected effect on the operation of both Parties' facilities and operations, its
anticipated duration, and the necessary corrective action.

3.4.2 Routine Maintenance, Construction, and Repair
The Distribution Provider may interrupt interconnection service or curtail the

output of the Small Generating Facility and temporarily disconnect the Small
Generating Facility from the Distribution Provider's Distribution System when
necessary for routine maintenance, caonstruction, and repairs on the Distribution
Provider's Distribution System and/or Transmission System. The Distribution



SECTION_ /11, PAGENO._j« __

Provider shall provide the Interconnection Customer with five Business Days
notice prior to such interruption. The Distribution Provider shall use Reasonable
Efforts to coordinate such reduction or temporary disconnection with the
Interconnection Customer.

3.4.3 Forced Outages
During any forced outage, the Distribution Provider may suspend interconnection

service to effect immediate repairs on the Distribution Provider's Distribution
System and/or Transmission System. The Distribution Provider shall use
Reasonable Efforts to provide the Interconnection Customer with prior notice. If
prior notice is not given, the Distribution Provider shall, upon request, provide the
Interconnection Customer written documentation after the fact expiaining the
circumstances of the disconnection.

3.4.4 Adverse Operating Effects
The Distribution Provider shall notify the Interconnection Customer as soon as

practicable if, based on Good Utility Practice, operation of the Small Generating
Facility may cause disruption or deterioration of service to other customers
served from the same electric system, or if operating the Small Generating
Facility could cause damage to the Distribution Provider's Distribution System or
Affected Systems. Supporting documentation used to reach the decision to
disconnect shall be provided to the Interconnection Customer upon request. If,
after notice, the Interconnection Customer fails to remedy the adverse operating
effect within a reasonable time, the Distribution Provider may disconnect the
Small Generating Facility. The Distribution Provider shall provide the
Interconnection Customer with five Business Day notice of such disconnection,
uniess the provisions of article 3.4.1 apply.

3.4.5 Modification of the Small Generating Facility
The Interconnection Customer must receive written authorization from the

Distribution Provider before making any change to the Small Generating Facility
that may have a material impact on the safety or reliability of the Distribution
System and/or Transmission System. Such authorization shall not be
unreasonably withheld. Modifications shall be done in accordance with Good
Utility Practice. If the Interconnection Customer makes such modification without
the Distribution Provider's prior written authorization, the latter shall have the right
to temporarily disconnect the Small Generating Facility.

3.4.6 Reconnectiocn
The Parties shall cooperate with each other to restore the Small Generating
Facility, Interconnection Facilities, and/or the Distribution Provider's Distribution
System or Transmission System to their normal operating state as soon as
reasonably practicable following a temporary disconnection.

Article 4. Cost Responsibility for Interconnection Facilities and Distribution Upgrades

4.1 Interconnection Facilities

4.1.1 The Interconnection Customer shall pay for the cost of the Interconnection
Facilities itemized in Attachment 2 of this Agreement. The Distribution Provider



SECTION_ ML _,PAGENO._ IS _

shall provide a best estimate cost, including overheads, for the purchase and
construction of its Interconnection Facilities and provide a detailed itemization of
such costs. Costs associated with Interconnection Facilities may be shared with
other entities that may benefit from such facilities by agreement of the
Interconnection Customer, such other entities, and the Distribution Provider.

4.1.2 The Interconnection Customer shall be responsible for its share of all reasonable
expenses, including overheads, associated with (1) owning, operating,
maintaining, repairing, and replacing its own Interconnection Facilities, and (2)
operating, maintaining, repairing, and replacing the Distribution Provider's
Interconnection Facilities.

4.2 Distribution Upgrades
The Distribution Provider shall design, procure, construct, install, and own the

Distribution Upgrades described in Attachment 6 of this Agreement. If the Distribution
Provider and the Interconnection Customer agree, the Interconnection Customer may
construct Distribution Upgrades that are located on land owned by the Interconnection
Customer. The actual cost of the Distribution Upgrades, including overheads, shall be
directly assigned to the Interconnection Customer.

Article 5. Cost Responsibility for Network Upgrades

5.1 Applicability
No portion of this article 5 shall apply unless the interconnection of the Small Generating
Facility requires Network Upgrades.

52  Network Upgrades
The Distribution Provider or the Transmission Owner shall design, procure, construct,
install, and own the Network Upgrades described in Attachment 6 of this Agreement. [f
the Distribution Provider and the Interconnection Customer agree, the interconnection
Customer may construct Network Upgrades that are located on land owned by the
Interconnection Customer. Unless the Distribution Provider elects to pay for Network
Upgrades, the actual cost of the Network Upgrades, including overheads, shall be borne
by the Interconnection Customer unless Section 5.2.1 directs otherwise.

5.2.1 Repayment of Amounts Advanced for Network Upgrades
To the extent the CAISO Tariff, currently Section 12.3.2 of Appendix Y, provides
for cash repayment to the Interconnection Customer for contribution to the cost of
Network Upgrades, the Interconnection Customer shall be entitled to a cash
repayment, equal to the total amount paid to the Distribution Provider and
Affected System operator, if any, for Network Upgrades, including any tax gross-
up or other tax-related payments associated with the Network Upgrades, and not
otherwise refunded to the Interconnection Customer, to be paid to the
Interconnection Customer on a dollar-for-dollar basis for the non-usage sensitive
portion of transmission charges, as payments are made under the Distribution
Provider's Tariff and Affected System’s Tariff for transmission services with
respect to the Small Generating Facility. Any repayment shall include interest
calculated in accordance with the methodolegy set forth in FERC's regulations at
18 C.F.R. ‘35.19a(a}(2)(iii) from the date of any payment for Network Upgrades
through the date on which the Interconnection Customer receives a repayment of




SECTION LI __ PAGENO._[b__

such payment pursuant to this subparagraph. The Interconnection Customer may
assign such repayment rights to any person.

5.2.1.1 Ifthe Interconnection Customer is entitled to a cash repayment
pursuant to Article 5.2.1, the Interconnection Customer, the Distribution
Provider, and Affected System operator may adopt any alternative
payment schedule that is mutually agreeable so long as the Distribution
Provider and Affected System operator take one of the following actions
no later than five years from the Commercial Operation Date: (1) return
to the Interconnection Customer any amounts advanced for Network
Upgrades not previously repaid, or (2) declare in writing that the
Distribution Provider or Affected System cperator(s) will continue to
provide payments to the Interconnection Customer on a dollar-for-dollar
basis for the non-usage sensitive portion of transmission charges, or
develop an alternative schedule that is mutually agreeable and provides
for the return of all amounts advanced for Network Upgrades not
previously repaid; however, full reimbursement shall not extend beyond
twenty (20) years from the commercial operation date.

5.2.1.2 If the Small Generating Facility fails to achieve commercial operation,
but it or another generating facility is later constructed and requires use
of the Network Upgrades, the Distribution Provider and Affected System
operator shall at that time reimburse the Interconnection Customer for
the amounts advanced for the Network Upgrades if the Interconnection
Customer is entitled to a cash repayment pursuant to Article 5.2.1.
Before any such reimbursement can occur, the Interconnection
Customer, or the entity that ultimately constructs the generating facility,
if different, is responsible for identifying the entity to which
reimbursement must be made.

5.3  Special Provisions for Affected Systems
Unless the Distribution Provider provides, under this Agreement, for the repayment of

amounts advanced to Affected System operator(s) for Network Upgrades, the
Interconnection Customer and Affected System operator shall enter into an agreement
that provides for such repayment. The agreement shall specify the terms governing
payments to be made by the Interconnection Customer to Affected System operator as
well as the repayment by Affected System operator.

5.4 Rights Under Other Agreements
Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement, nothing herein shall be construed
as relinquishing or foreclosing any rights, including but not limited to firm transmission
rights, capacity rights, transmission congestion rights, or transmission credits, that the
Interconnection Customer shall be entitled to, now or in the future, under any other
agreement or tariff as a result of, or otherwise associated with, the transmission
capacity, if any, created by the Network Upgrades, including the right to obtain cash
reimbursements or transmissicn credits for transmission service that is not associated
with the Small Generating Facility.

Article 6. Billing, Payment, Milestones, and Financial Security



6.1

6.2

6.3

SECTION [\ | PAGENO. (T _

e ]

Billing and Payment Procedures and Final Accounting

6.1.1 The Distribution Provider shall bill the Interconnection Customer for the design,
engineering, construction, and procurement costs of Interconnection Facilities
and Upgrades contemplated by this Agreement on a manthly basis, or as
otherwise agreed by the Parties. The Interconnection Customer shall pay each
bill within 30 calendar days of receipt, or as otherwise agreed to by the Parties.

6.1.2 Within three months of completing the construction and installation of the
Distribution Provider's Interconnection Facilities and/or Upgrades described in
the Attachments to this Agreement, the Distribution Provider shall provide the
Interconnection Customer with a final accounting report of any difference
between (1) the Interconnection Customer's cost responsibility for the actual cost
of such facilities or Upgrades, and (2) the Interconnection Customer's previous
aggregate payments to the Distribution Provider for such facilities or Upgrades. If
the Interconnection Customer's cost responsibility exceeds its previous
aggregate payments, the Distribution Provider shall invoice the Interconnection
Customer for the amount due and the Interconnection Customer shall make
payment to the Distribution Provider within 30 calendar days. If the
Interconnection Customer's previous aggregate payments exceed its cost
responsibility under this Agreement, the Distribution Provider shall refund to the
Interconnection Customer an amount equal to the difference within 30 calendar
days of the final accounting report.

Milestones

The Parties shall agree on milestones for which each Party is responsible and list them
in Attachment 4 of this Agreement. A Party's obligations under this provision may be
extended by agreement. If a Party anticipates that it will be unable to meet a milestone
for any reason other than an Uncontrollable Force Event, it shall immediately notify the
other Party of the reason(s) for not meeting the milestone and (1) propose the earliest
reasonable alternate date by which it can attain this and future milestones, and (2)
requesting appropriate amendments to Attachment 4. The Party affected by the failure to
meet a milestone shall not unreasonably withhold agreement to such an amendment
unless it will suffer significant uncompensated economic or operaticnal harm from the
delay, (2) attainment of the same milestone has previously been delayed, or (3) it has
reason to believe that the delay in meeting the milestone is intentional or unwarranted
notwithstanding the circumstances explained by the Party proposing the amendment.

Financial Security Arrangements

At least 20 Business Days prior to the commencement of the design, procurement,
instaliation, or construction of a discrete portion of the Distribution Provider's
Interconnection Facilities and Upgrades, the Interconnection Customer shall provide the
Distribution Provider, at the Interconnection Customer's option, a guarantee, , letter of
credit or other form of security that is reasonably acceptable to the Disfribution Provider
and is consistent with the Uniform Commercial Code of the jurisdiction where the Point
of Interconnection is located. Such security for payment shall be in an amount sufficient
to cover the costs for constructing, designing, procuring, and installing the applicable
portion of the Distribution Provider's Interconnection Facilities and Upgrades and shall
be reduced on a dollar-for-dollar basis for payments made to the Distribution Provider
under this Agreement during its term. In addition:




SECTION_1) _,PAGENO. (&

6.3.1 The guarantee must be made by an entity that meets the creditworthiness
requirements of the Distribution Provider, and contain terms and conditions that
guarantee payment of any amount that may be due from the Interconnection
Customer, up to an agreed-to maximum amount.

6.3.2 The letter of credit must be issued by a financial institution or insured reasonably
acceptable to the Distribution Provider and must specify a reasonable expiration
date.

Article 7. Assignment, Liability, Indemnity, Uncontrollable Force, Consequential
Damages, and Default

71

7.2

7.3

Assignment
This Agreement may be assigned by either Party upon fifteen (15) Business Days prior

written notice and opportunity to object by the other Party; provided that:

7.1.1 Either Party may assign this Agreement without the consent of the other Party to
any affiliate of the assigning Party with an equal or greater credit rating and with
the legal authority and operational ability to satisfy the obligations of the
assigning Party under this Agreement;

7.1.2 The Interconnection Customer shall have the right to assign this Agreement,
without the consent of the Distribution Provider, for collateral security purposes to
aid in providing financing for the Small Generating Facility, provided that the
Interconnection Customer will promptly notify the Distribution Provider of any
such assignment.

7.1.3 Any attempted assignment that violates this article is void and ineffective.
Assignment shall not relieve a Party of its obligations, nor shall a Party's
obligations be enlarged, in whole or in part, by reason thereof. An assignee is
responsible for meeting the same financial, credit, and insurance obligations as
the Interconnection Customer. Where required, consent to assignment will not be
unreasonably withheld, conditicned or delayed.

Limitation of Liability

Each Party's liability to the other Party for any loss, cost, claim, injury, liability, or
expense, including reasonable attorney's fees, relating to or arising from any act or
omission in its performance of this Agreement, shall be limited to the amount of direct
damage actually incurred. In no event shall either Party be liable to the other Party for
any indirect, special, consequential, or punitive damages, except as authorized by this
Agreement.

Indemnity

7.3.1 This provision protects each Party from liability incurred to third parties as a
result of carrying out the provisions of this Agreement. Liability under this
provision is exempt from the general limitations on liability found in article 7.2.

7.3.2 The Parties shall at all times indemnify, defend, and hold the other Party
harmless from, any and all damages, losses, claims, including claims and actions

10



74

7.5

SECTION_111__PAGENO.J4 __ _

i i e

relating to injury to or death of any person or damage to property, demand, suits,
recoveries, costs and expenses, court costs, attorney fees, and all other
obligations by or to third parties, arising out of or resulting from the other Party's
action or failure to meet its obligations under this Agreement on behalf of the
indemnifying Party, except in cases of gross negligence or intentional
wrongdoing by the indemnified Party.

7.3.3 I an indemnified person is entitled to indemnification under this article as a result
of a claim by a third party, and the indemnifying Party fails, after notice and
reasonable opportunity to proceed under this article, to assume the defense of
such claim, such indemnified person may at the expense of the indemnifying
Party contest, settle or consent to the entry of any judgment with respect to, or
pay in full, such claim.

7.3.4 If an indemnifying party is obligated to indemnify and hold any indemnified
person harmless under this article, the amount owing to the indemnified person
shall be the amount of such indemnified person's actual loss, net of any
insurance or other recovery.

7.3.5 Promptly after receipt by an indemnified person of any claim or notice of the
commencement of any action or administrative or legal proceeding or
investigation as to which the indemnity provided for in this article may apply, the
indemnified person shall notify the indemnifying party of such fact. Any failure of
or delay in such notification shall not affect a Party's indemnification obligation
unless such failure or delay is materially prejudicial to the indemnifying party.

Consequential Damages

Other than as expressly provided for in this Agreement, neither Party shall be liable
under any provision of this Agreement for any losses, damages, costs or expenses for
any special, indirect, incidental, consequential, or punitive damages, including but not
limited to loss of profit or revenue, loss of the use of equipment, cost of capital, cost of
temporary equipment or services, whether based in whole or in part in contract, in tort,
including negligence, strict liability, or any other theory of liability; provided, however,
that damages for which a Party may be liable to the other Party under another
agreement will not be considered to be special, indirect, incidental, or consequential
damages hereunder.

Uncontrollable Force

7.5.1 As used in this article, an Uncontrollable Force shall mean "any act of God, labor
disturbance, act of the public enemy, war, insurrection, riot, fire, storm, flood,
earthquake, explosion, breakage or accident to machinery or equipment, any
curtailment, order, regulation or restriction imposed by governmental, military or
lawfully established civilian authorities, or any other cause beyond the
reasonable control of the Distribution Provider or Interconnection Customer
which could not be avoided through the exercise of Good Ultility Practice. An
Uncontrollable Force Event does not include an act of negligence or intentional
wrongdaing by the Party claiming Uncontrollable Force."

7.5.2 If an Uncontrollable Force Event prevents a Party from fulfilling any obligations
under this Agreement, the Party affected by the Uncontrollable Force Event

11



SECTION_ 1| PAGENO._Zo _

(Affected Party) shall promptly notify the other Party, either in writing or via the
telephone, of the existence of the Uncontrollable Force Event. The notification
must specify in reasonable detail the circumstances of the Unconftrollable Force
Event, its expected duration, and the steps that the Affected Party is taking to
mitigate the effects of the event on its performance. The Affected Party shall
keep the other Party informed on a continuing basis of developments relating to
the Uncontrollable Force Event until the event ends. The Affected Party will be
entitled to suspend or modify its performance of obligations under this Agreement
(cther than the obligation to make payments) only to the extent that the effect of
the Uncontrollable Force Event cannot be mitigated by the use of Reasonable
Efforts. The Affected Party will use Reasonable Efforts to resume its performance
as soan as possible.

7.6 Default

7.6.1 No Default shalf exist where such failure to discharge an obligation (other than
the payment of money) is the result of an Uncontrollable Force Event as defined
in this Agreement or the result of an act or omission of the other Party. Upon a
Default, the non-defaulting Party shall give written notice of such Default to the
defaulting Party. Except as provided in article 7.6.2, the defaulting Party shall
have 60 calendar days from receipt of the Default notice within which to cure
such Default; provided however, if such Default is not capable of cure within 60
calendar days, the defaulting Party shall commence such cure within 20 calendar
days after notice and continuously and diligently complete such cure within six
months from receipt of the Default notice; and, if cured within such time, the
Default specified in such notice shall cease to exist.

7.6.2 If a Default is not cured as provided in this article, or if a Default is not capable of
being cured within the period provided for herein, the non-defaulting Party shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement by written notice at any time until cure
occurs, and be relieved of any further obligation hereunder and, whether or not
that Party terminates this Agreement, to recover from the defaulting Party all
amounts due hereunder, plus all other damages and remedies to which it is
entitled at law or in equity. The provisions of this article will survive termination of
this Agreement.

Article 8. Insurance

8.1 The Interconnection Customer shall, at its own expense, maintain in force general
liability insurance without any exclusion for liabilities related to the interconnection
undertaken pursuant to this Agreement. The amount of such insurance shall be sufficient
to insure against all reasonably foreseeable direct liabilities given the size and nature of
the generating equipment being interconnected, the interconnection itself, and the
characteristics of the system to which the interconnection is made. The Interconnection
Customer shall obtain additional insurance only if necessary as a function of owning and
operating a generating facility. Such insurance shall be obtained from an insurance
provider authorized to do business in the State where the interconnection is located.
Certification that such insurance is in effect shall be provided upon request of the
Distribution Provider, except that the Interconnection Customer shall show proof of
insurance to the Distribution Provider no later than ten Business Days prior to the

12



8.2

8.3

secTioN T { PAGENO._21 ...

R |

anticipated commercial operation date. An Interconnection Customer of sufficient credit-
worthiness may propose to self-insure for such liabilities, and such a proposal shall not
be unreasonably rejected.

The Distribution Provider agrees to maintain general liability insurance or self-insurance
consistent with the Distribution Provider's commercial practice. Such insurance or self-
insurance shali not exciude coverage for the Distribution Provider's liabilities undertaken
pursuant to this Agreement.

The Parties further agree to notify each other whenever an accident or incident occurs
resulting in any injuries or damages that are included within the scope of coverage of
such insurance, whether or not such coverage is sought.

Article 9. Confidentiality

9.1

9.2

9.3

Confidential Information shall mean any confidential and/or proprietary information

provided by one Party to the other Party that is clearly marked or otherwise designated
"Confidential." For purposes of this Agreement all design, operating specifications, and
metering data provided by the Interconnection Customer shall be deemed Confidential
Information regardless of whether it is clearly marked or otherwise designated as such.

Confidential Information does not include information previously in the public domain,
required to be publicly submitted or divulged by Governmental Authorities (after notice to
the other Party and after exhausting any opportunity to oppose such publication or
release), or necessary to be divulged in an action to enforce this Agreement. Each Party
receiving Confidential Information shall hold such information in confidence and shall not
disclose it to any third party nor to the public without the prior written authorization from
the Party providing that information, except to fuffill obligations under this Agreement, or
to fulfill legal or regulatory requirements. ‘

9.2.1 Each Party shall employ at least the same standard of care to protect
Confidential Information obtained from the other Party as it employs to protect its
own Confidential Information.

9.2.2 Each Party is entitled to equitable relief, by injunction or otherwise, to enforce its
rights under this provision to prevent the release of Confidential Information
without bond or proof of damages, and may seek other remedies available at law
or in equity for breach of this provision.

Notwithstanding anything in this article to the contrary, and pursuant to 18 CFR § 1 b.20,
if FERC, during the course of an investigation or otherwise, requests information from
one of the Parties that is otherwise required to be maintained in confidence pursuant to
this Agreement, the Party shall provide the requested information to FERC, within the
time provided for in the request for information. In providing the information to FERC, the
Party may, consistent with 18 CFR § 388.112, request that the information be treated as
confidential and non-public by FERC and that the information be withheld from public
disclosure. Parties are prohibited from notifying the other Party to this Agreement prior to
the release of the Confidential Information to FERC. The Party shall notify the other
Party to this Agreement when it is notified by FERC that a request to release
Confidential Information has been received by FERC, at which time either of the Parties

13



SECTION_[11 _ PAGE NO._22 _

may respond before such information would be made public, pursuant to 18 CFR §
388.112. Requests from a state regulatory body conducting a confidential investigation
shall be treated in a similar manner if consistent with the applicable state rules and
regulations.

Article 10. Disputes

10.1  The Parties agree to attempt to resolve all disputes arising out of the interconnection
process according to the provisions of this article.

10.2 In the event of a dispute, either Party shall provide the other Party with a written Notice
of Dispute. Such Notice shall describe in detail the nature of the dispute.

10.3 If the dispute has not been resolved within two Business Days after receipt of the Notice,
either Party may contact FERC's Dispute Resoclution Service (DRS) for assistance in
resolving the dispute.

10.4 The DRS will assist the Parties in either resolving their dispute or in selecting an
appropriate dispute resolution venue (e.g., mediation, settlement judge, early neutral
evaluation, or technical expert} to assist the Parties in resolving their dispute. DRS can
be reached at 1-877-337-2237 or via the internet at http://www.ferc.gov/legal/adr.asp.

10.5 Each Party agrees to conduct all negotiations in good faith and will be responsible for
one-half of any costs paid to neutral third-parties.

10.6 If neither Party elects to seek assistance from the DRS, or if the attempted dispute
resolution fails, then either Party may exercise whatever rights and remedies it may have
in equity or law consistent with the terms of this Agreement.

Article 11. Taxes

11.1 The Parties agree to follow all applicable tax laws and regulations, consistent with FERC
policy and Internal Revenue Service requirements.

11.2 Each Party shall cooperate with the other to maintain the other Party's tax status.
Nothing in this Agreement is intended to adversely affect the Distribution Provider's tax
exempt status with respect to the issuance of bonds including, but not limited to, local
furnishing bonds.

Article 12. Miscellaneous

12.1 Governing Law, Regulatory Authority, and Rules
The validity, interpretation and enforcement of this Agreement and each of its provisions
shall be governed by the [aws of the state of (where the Point of Interconnection is
located), without regard to its conflicts of law principles. This Agreement is subject to all
Applicable Laws and Regulations. Each Party expressly reserves the right to seek
changes in, appeal, or otherwise contest any laws, orders, or regulations of a
Governmental Authority.

14



SECTION_H\[__PAGENO._23 _

12.2 Amendment
The Parties may amend this Agreement by a written instrument duly executed by both
Parties.

12.3 No Third-Party Bengficiaries

This Agreement is not intended to and does not create rights, remedies, or benefits of
any character whatsoever in favor of any persons, corporations, associations, or entities
other than the Parties, and the obligations herein assumed are solely for the use and
benefit of the Parties, their successors in interest and where permitted, their assigns.

12.4 Waiver

12.4.1 The failure of a Party to this Agreement to insist, on any occasion, upon strict
performance of any provision of this Agreement will not be considered a waiver
of any obligation, right, or duty of, or imposed upon, such Party.

12.4.2 Any waiver at any time by either Party of its rights with respect to this Agreement
shall not be deemed a continuing waiver or a waiver with respect to any other
failure to comply with any other obligation, right, duty of this Agreement.
Termination or default of this Agreement for any reason by Interconnection
Customer shall not constitute a waiver of the Interconnection Customer's legal
rights to obtain an interconnection from the Distribution Provider. Any waiver of
this Agreement shall, if requested, be provided in writing.

12.5 Entire Agreement
This Agreement, including all Attachments, constitutes the entire agreement between the
Parties with reference to the subject matier hereof, and supersedes all prior and
contemporaneous understandings or agreements, oral or written, between the Parties
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement. There are no other agreements,
representations, warranties, or covenants which constitute any part of the consideration
for, or any condition to, either Party's compliance with its obligations under this
Agreement.

12.6 Multiple Counterparts
This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which is deemed

an original but all constitute one and the same instrument.

12.7 No Partnership
This Agreement shall not be interpreted or construed to create an association, joint

venture, agency relationship, or partnership between the Parties or to impose any
partnership obligation or partnership liability upon either Party. Neither Party shall have
any right, power or authority to enter into any agreement or undertaking for, or act on
behalf of, or to act as or be an agent or representative of, or to otherwise bind, the other
Party.

12.8 Severability
If any provision or portion of this Agreement shall for any reason be held or adjudged to

be invalid or illegal or unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction or other
Governmental Authority, (1) such portion or provision shall be deemed separate and
independent, (2) the Parties shall negoetiate in good faith to restore insofar as practicable

15



SECTION_i1| PAGENO.__2Y

o e e ]

the benefits to each Party that were affected by such ruling, and (3) the remainder of this
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

129 Security Arrangements
Infrastructure security of electric system equipment and operations and control hardware
and software is essential to ensure day-to-day reliability and operational security. FERC
expects all transmission providers, market participants, and interconnection customers
interconnected to electric systems to comply with the recommendations offered by the
President’s Critical Infrastructure Protection Board and, eventually, best practice
recommendations from the electric reliability authority. All public utilities are expected to
meet basic standards for system infrastructure and operational security, including
physical, operational, and cyber-security practices.

12.10 Environmental Releases
Each Party shall notify the other Party, first orally and then in writing, of the release of
any hazardous substances, any asbestos or lead abatement activities, or any type of
remediation activities related to the Small Generating Facility or the Interconnection
Facilities, each of which may reasonably be expected to affect the other Party. The
notifying Party shall (1) provide the notice as soon as practicable, provided such Party
makes a good faith effort to provide the notice no later than 24 hours after such Party
becomes aware of the occurrence, and (2) promptly furnish to the other Party copies of
any publicly available reports filed with any governmental authorities addressing such
events.

1211 Subcontractors
Nothing in this Agreement shali prevent a Party from utilizing the services of any
subcontractor as it deems appropriate to perform its obligations under this Agreement;
provided, however, that each Party shall require its subcontractors to comply with all
applicable terms and conditions of this Agreement in providing such services and each
Party shall remain primarily liable to the other Party for the performance of such
subcontractor.

12.11.1 The creation of any subcontract relationship shall not relieve the hiring Party of
any of its obligations under this Agreement. The hiring Party shall be fully
responsible to the other Party for the acts or omissions of any subcontractor the
hiring Party hires as if no subcontract had been made; provided, however, that in
no event shall the Distribution Provider be liable for the actions or inactions of the
Interconnection Customer or its subcontractors with respect to obligations of the
Interconnection Customer under this Agreement. Any applicable obligation
imposed by this Agreement upon the hiring Party shall be equally binding upon,
and shall be construed as having application to, any subcontractor of such Party.

12.11.2 The obligations under this article will not be limited in any way by any limitation
of subcontractor's insurance.

1212 Reservation of Rights
The Distribution Provider shall have the right to make a unilateral filing with FERC to
modify this Agreement with respect to any rates, terms and conditions, charges,
classifications of service, rule or regulation under section 205 or any other applicable
provision of the Federal Power Act and FERC's rules and regulations thereunder, and
the Interconnection Customer shall have the right to make a unilateral filing with FERC

16



SECTION_Hii_PAGENO.25

to modify this Agreement under any applicable provision of the Federal Power Act and
FERC's rules and regulations; provided that each Party shall have the right to protest
any such filing by the other Party and to participate fully in any proceeding before FERC
in which such modifications may be considered. Nothing in this Agreement shall limit the
rights of the Parties or of FERC under sections 205 or 206 of the Federal Power Act and
FERC's rules and regulations, except to the extent that the Parties otherwise agree as
provided herein.

Article 13. Notices

131

13.2

General

Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement, any written notice, demand, or request
required or authorized in connection with this Agreement ("Notice™) shall be deemed
properly given if delivered in person, delivered by recognized national courier service, or
sent by first class mail, postage prepaid, to the person specified below:

If to the Interconnection Customer:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Attention: John Friedenbach

828 Seventh St.

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 443-5018

Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

If to the Distribution Provider:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Attention: Electric Generation Interconnection - Contract Management
245 Market Street

Mail Code N7L

San Francisco, California 94105-1702

Phone: (415) 972-5394

Email: EGIContractMgmt@pge.com

Billing and Payment
Billings and payments shall be sent to the addresses below:

Interconnection Customer:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Attention: John Friedenbach
828 Seventh St.
Eureka, CA 95501
Phone: (707) 443-5018
Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

17



13.3

SECTION_\}_ PAGENO._2L__

Distribution Provider:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Attention: Electric Generation Interconnection - Contract Management
245 Market Street

Mail Code N7L

San Francisco, California 94105-1702

Phone: (415) 972-5394

Email: EGIContractMgmt@pge.com

Alternative Forms of Notice

Any notice or request required or permitted to be given by either Party to the other and
not required by this Agreement to be given in writing may be so given by telephone,
facsimile or e-mail to the telephone numbers and e-mail addresses set out below:

If to the Interconnection Customer:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Attention: John Friedenbach

828 Seventh St.

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: {707} 443-5018

Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

13.4

If to the Distribution Provider:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Attention: Electric Generation Interconnection - Contract Management
245 Market Street

Mail Code N7L

San Francisco, California 94105-1702

Phone: (415) 972-5394

Email: EGIContractMgmi@pge.com

Designated Operating Representative
The Parties may also designate operating representatives to conduct the

communications which may be necessary or convenient for the administration of this
Agreement. This person will also serve as the point of contact with respect to operations
and maintenance of the Party’s facilities.

Interconnection Customer’s Operating Representative:

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Attention: John Friedenbach

828 Seventh St.

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 443-5018

Email: friedenbach@hbmwd.com

18



SECTION__H1_PAGENO. 2% _

e e e st

Distribution Provider's Operating Representative:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Humboldt — Electric Control Center Operations
2211 Mitchell Heights Rd, Eureka, CA 95503
Attention: Humboldt Desk - Distribution Operator
Phone: (707) 455-5638

13.5 Changes to the Notice Information
Either Party may change this information by giving five Business Days written notice

prior to the effective date of the change.

19



SECTION__Hi |, PAGE NO. 2%

Article 14. Signatures

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have caused this Agreement to be executed by their
respective duly authorized representatives.

For the Distribution Provider: Pacific Gas and Electric Company

Signature:

Name: John Galloway

Title: Supetrvisor, Electric Generation Interconnection
Date:

For the Interconnection Customer: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Signature:

Name: Pzaul Helliker
Title: General Manager
Date:

20



Attachment 1

Glossary of Terms

Affected System — An electric system other than the Distribution Provider's Distribution System that may
be affected by the proposed interconnection, including but not limited to the Transmission System,

Applicable Laws and Regulations — All duly promulgated applicable federal, state and local laws,
regulations, rules, ordinances, codes, decrees, judgments, directives, or judicial or administrative orders,
permits and other duly authorized actions of any Governmental Authority.

Business Day — Monday through Friday, excluding Federal Holidays.

Default — The failure of a breaching Party to cure its Breach under the Small Generator Interconnection
Agreement.

Distribution Owner — The entity that owns, leases or otherwise possesses an interest in the portion of
the Distribution System at the Point of Interconnection and may be a Party to the Small Generator
Interconnection Agreement to the extent necessary.

Distribution Provider — The public utility (or its designated agent) that owns, controls, or cperates
transmission or distribution facilities used for the transmission of electricity in interstate commerce and
provides transmission or wholesale distribution service under the Tariff. The term Distribution Provider
should be read to include the Distribution Owner when the Distribution Owner is separate from the
Distribution Provider.

Distribution System — Those non-ISO transmission and distribution facilities owned, controlled and
operated by the Distribution Provider that are used to provide distribution service under the Tariff, which
facilities and equipment are used to transmit electricity to ultimate usage points such as homes and
industries directly from nearby generators or from interchanges with higher voltage transmission networks
which transport bulk power over longer distances. The voltage levels at which Distribution Systems
operate differ among areas.

Distribution Upgrades — The additions, modifications, and upgrades to the Distribution Provider's
Distribution System at or beyond the Point of Interconnection to facilitate interconnection of the Small
Generating Facility and render the service necessary to effect the Interconnection Customer's wholesale
sale of electricity in interstate commerce. Distribution Upgrades do not include Interconnection Facilities.

Good Utility Practice — Any of the practices, methods and acts engaged in or approved by a significant
portion of the electric industry during the relevant time period, or any of the practices, methods and acts
which, in the exercise of reasonable judgment in light of the facts known at the time the decision was
made, could have been expected to accomplish the desired result at a reasonable cost consistent with
good business practices, reliability, safety and expedition. Good Utility Practice is not intended to be
limited to the optimum practice, method, or act to the exclusion of all others, but rather to be acceptable
practices, methods, or acts generally accepted in the region.

Governmental Authority — Any federal, state, local or other governmental regulatory or administrative
agency, court, commission, department, board, or other governmental subdivision, legislature, rulemaking
board, tribunal, or other governmental authority having jurisdiction over the Parties, their respective
facilities, or the respective services they provide, and exercising or entitled to exercise any administrative,
executive, police, or taxing authority or power; provided, however, that such term does not include the
Interconnection Customer, the Interconnection Provider, or any Affiliate thereof.

21



SECTION_H| _,PAGENO._39__

Interconnection Customer ~ Any entity, including the Distribution Provider, the Distribution Owner, the
Transmission Owner or any of the affiliates or subsidiaries of either, that proposes to interconnect its
Small Generating Facility with the Distribution Provider's Distribution System.

Interconnection Facilities — The Distribution Provider's Interconnection Facilities and the
Interconnection Customer's Interconnection Facilities. Collectively, Interconnection Facilities include all
facilities and equipment between the Small Generating Facility and the Point of Interconnection, including
any modification, additions or upgrades that are necessary to physically and electrically interconnect the
Small Generating Facility to the Distribution Provider's Distribution System. Interconnection Facilities are
sole use facilities and shall not include Distribution Upgrades or Network Upgrades.

Interconnection Handbook - A handbook, developed by the Distribution Provider and posted on the
Distribution Provider's website or otherwise made available by the Distribution Provider, describing the
technical and operational requirements for wholesale generators and loads connected to the Distribution
System, as such handbook may be modified or superseded from time to time. In the event of a conflict
between the terms of this SGIA and the terms of the Distribution Provider's Interconnection Handbook,
the terms in this SGIA shall govern.

Interconnection Request — The Interconnection Customer's request, in accordance with the Tariff, to
interconnect a new Small Generating Facility, or to increase the capacity of, or make a Material
Maodification to the operating characteristics of, an existing Small Generating Facility that is
interconnected with the Distribution Provider's Distribution System.

ISO Tariff — The California Independent System Operator Agreement and Tariff, dated March 31, 1997,
as it may be modified from time to time, and accepted by the Commission.

Material Modification — A modification that has a material impact on the cost or timing of any
Interconnection Request or any other valid interconnection request to the Distribution Provider or the ISO
with a later queue priority date.

Network Upgrades — Additions, modifications, and upgrades to the Distribution Provider's Transmission
System required at or beyond the point at which the Distribution System connects to the Distribution

Provider's Transmission System to accommodate the interconnection of the Small Generating Facility to
the Distribution Provider's Distribution System. Network Upgrades do not include Distribution Upgrades.

Operating Requirements — Any operating and technical requirements that may be applicable due to
Regional Transmission Organization, California Independent System Operator, control area, or the
Distribution Provider's requirements, including those set forth in the Small Generator Interconnection
Agreement.

Party or Parties — The Distribution Provider, Distribution Owner, Transmission Owner, Interconnection
Customer or any combination of the above.

Point of Interconnection — The point where the Interconnection Facilities connect with the Distribution
Provider's Distribution System.

Reasonable Efforts — With respect to an action required to be attempted or taken by a Party under the
Small Generator Interconnection Agreement, efforts that are timely and consistent with Good Utility
Practice and are otherwise substantially equivalent to those a Party would use to protect its own interests.

Small Generating Facility — The Interconnection Customer's device for the production and/or storage for

later injection of electricity identified in the Interconnection Request, but shall not include the
Interconnection Customer's Interconnection Facilities.

22



arCTION _HAL__ PAGE NO. 3!

e e P  mumend

Tariff — The Distribution Provider's Wholesale Distribution Tariff through which open access distribution
service and Interconnection Service are offered, as filed with the FERC, and as amended or
supplemented from fime to time, or any successor tariff.

Transmission System — Those facilities owned by the Distribution Provider that have been placed under
the 1SO’s operational control and are part of the 180 Grid.

Upgrades — The required additions and modifications to the Distribution Provider's Distribution System, at

or beyond the Point of Interconnection. Upgrades may be Network Upgrades of Distribution Upgrades.
Upgrades do not include interconnection Facilities.

23



QECTION i PAGENO._%Z-

Attachment 2

Description and Costs of the Small Generating Facility,
Interconnection Facilities and Metering Equipment

Gosselin Hydroelectric Facility is a Hydroelectric Generating Facility located at the base of R. W.
Matthews Dam, Trinity County, CA 95552 with a nameplate rating of 2.0 MW. It has been operating in
parallel with the PG&E Distribution System while connected to PG&E's (Substation) (Circuit) - 12kV
distribution circuit. This circuit is supplied by the 12 kV (Bank Number) at PG&E's (Substation) Substation
since May, 1987.

Equipment, including the Small Generating Facility, Interconnection Facilities, and metering equipment
shall be itemized and identified as being owned by the Interconnection Customer, the Distribution
Provider, Distribution Owner or the Transmission Owner. The Distribution Provider will provide a best
estimate itemized cost, including overheads, of its Interconnection Faciliies and metering equipment, and
a best estimate itemized cost of the annual operation and maintenance expenses associated with its
Interconnection Facilities and metering equipment.

Project Information

Project Name: Gosselin Hydroelectric Facility Project
Number of Generators: 2
Manufacturer Model Name & Number: Ideal Electric (SN 320036 and SN 320037
Number of Inverters: N/A
Manufacturer Model Name & Number: N/A
Total Output: 2.0 MW
Transformer Data: Westinghouse 2000 KVA 1 52;_;1_'2101‘5 6_8130I:|
PG&E Grid Voltage at Interconnection: 12 kV

Interconnection Facilities
The following Interconnection Facility Net Cost is used to determine final Monthly Cost of Ownership or
Equivalent One Time Charge. The Interconnection Facility Charges identified below {$64,825) are not
billable but merely used as historical reference in order to determine Operation and Maintenance cost
relevant to this Interconnection Agreement.

Interconnection Facilities (Subject to Cost-of-Ownership) : § w7 e gs Costs

Reclose blocking at Low Gap Substation at Reclosure #4160

50 amp closed delta regulator

Revenue Metering

350 feet of 12 kV conductor

Miscellaneous

Total -- Interconnection Facility Costs (Subject to Cost-of-Ownership) $ 64,825

ITCC Tax'

¥ Not subject to ITCC (Income Tax Calculation Component) on contribution. ITCC is exempt for wholesale generators that meet the
IRS Safe Harbor Provisions. PG&E currently does not require the Interconnection Customer to provide security to cover the
potential tax liability on the Interconnection Facilities, Distribution Upgrades, and Network Upgrades per the IRS Safe Harbor
Provisions (IRS Notice 88-129). PG&E reserves the right to require, on a nondiscriminatory basis, the Interconnection Customer to

24



SECTION_H | _PAGENO._2% __

e et

Attachment 3

One-line Diagram Depicting the Small Generating Facility, Interconnection
Facilities, Metering Equipment, and Upgrades

One-Line Conceptual Diagram of Gosselin Hydroelectric Facility

=
o s
® Ao
cae rea T W Eeae A kS
- e ann = 3 AE -
o - L B RN
* chw
N L L it e B LA

S e AMATSE 2 A T
ATH A s TG SR E Ay A B
D e TUN TLa RMRRE o RS

P U SRt AR

mr AR K Ab AN

Ber RGN M AD T

Sp— ——— e . 1
L e j - Gj(‘jn Om 4
- e "“j . '19:";’ h-” L

i O T A\lyf':ra \;

provide such security, in a form reasonably acceptable to PGA&E as indicated in Article 11 of the SGIA, an amount up to the cost
consequences of any current {ax liahility. Upon request and within sixty (60) Calendar Days’ notice, the Interconnection Customer
shall provide PG&E such 1TCC security or ITCC payment in the event that Safe Harbor Provisions have not been met, in the form

requested by PG&E.

25



vEeT ‘L Aed

SECTION_H1__ PAGENO.%Y

Vicinity Map of Gosselin Hydroelectric Facility

/."“i—a_r‘“a_)]_4|s-'fa[7|si

A AT .
[ o

oERRTOn
;[ : LTSS ST s
Vs

'] tme TREWSA v B
{] GrroHeRs PRD MOUnT fovtod
¥, PRLPALEO A% PhlEw

M PR SLovees
Apd TAWGTRMER. GROUHMOING TENIL

% "0°S

26

&
B
BEILEAMS NOIIWOOT AMIAITHQ J0 INICA

WRes T



SECTION H1__ PAGENO. 35 _

Attachment 4
Milestones
In-Service Date: January 13, 1983
Critical milestones and responsibility as agreed to by the Parties:
Milestone Date Responsible Party
1 | Financial Security Posting Due Date Unknown Interconnection Customer
Completion of the Interconnection Facilities T .
i ; Distribution Provider &
2 DIS:tI.’l!JLItlon Upgrades, and Network Upgrade Unknown Interconnection Customer
facilities
. Distribution Provider &
3 | In-Service Date (back-feed power) January 13, 1983 Interconnection Customer
. . Distribution Provider &
4 Pre-parallel Inspection and Testing Unknown Interconnection Customer
5 | Initial Synchronization Unknown Interconnection Customer
Provide written approval to Interconnection
Customer for the operation of the facilities e .
6 (PTO) and Commercial Operation Date January 13, 1883 Distribution Provider
{COD)

Note: Supplemental Billing and Payment Provisions:

fif financial security postings are required to fulfill this Small Generator interconnection Agreement (SGIA)
or its amendment, the Interconnection Customer will receive instructions for posting those financial
securities from PG&E no later than 30 calendar days after PG&E has executed this document.

In accordance with Article 6.3 of this project’s SGIA, the financial security posting(s) must be completed
by the Interconnection Customer before the Distribution Provider may begin any capital work. The
Interconnection Customer may negotiate a milestone date to post the financial security(-ies) up to 180
Calendar Days (CD) after the execution of this SGIA. This negotiated date is shown in the milestones
table above. If the financial security posting(s) is/are not completed by the date shown in the table above,
a notice of default will be issued to the Interconnection Customer in accordance with Article 7.6 of this
SGIA.

Billing Procedures for Actual Costs:
Per Section 6.1.1 of this project’s SGIA, PG&E will bill the Interconnection Customer on a monthly basis

for actual labor and/or material costs incurred during the prior month.

Agreed to by:
For the Distribution Provider Date:
For the Interconnection Customer Date:

27



SECTION_ 1\ |_ PAGE NO._36 _
Attachment 5

Additional Operating Requirements for the Distribution Provider's Distribution System,
Transmission System and Affected Systems Needed to Support
the Interconnection Customer's Needs

5.1 General Operating Requirements

The Distribution Provider shall also provide requirements that must be met by the Interconnection
Customer prior to initiating parallel operation with the Distribution Provider's Distribution System.

The Interconnection Customer must comply with all applicable rules and tariffs including but not limited to
the Distribution Interconnection Handbook and the Wholesale Distribution Tariff.

5.2 Deliverability Status

The Interconnection Customer has elected for this Small Generating Facility to have Energy Only
Deliverability Status, as defined in the CAISQO Tariff. As a result, this Small Generating Facility was
studied for Energy Only Deliverability Status by the Distribution Provider. Per the results of those studies,
the Interconnection Customer and the Distribution Provider acknowledge and understand that the
Participating Small Generating Facility will have Energy Only Deliverability Status.

28



SECTION_H\I__,PAGE NO,_37

Attachment 6

Distribution Provider's Description of its Upgrades
and Best Estimate of Upgrade Costs

The Distribution Provider shall describe Upgrades and provide an itemized best estimate of the cost,
including overheads, of the Upgrades and annual operation and maintenance expenses associated with
such Upgrades. The Distribution Provider shall functionalize Upgrade costs and annual expenses as
either transmission or distribution related.

Distribution Upgrades
The estimated costs associated with the system upgrades required to interconnect the project to the
Distribution Provider’s Distribution System.

Distribution Upgrades

Distribution Upgrades (- Subject to Cost-of-Qwnership)

None $0
Total — Distribution Upgrade Costs ( Subject to Cost-of-Ownership) $0
ITCC Tax’

Network Upgrades: None

? Not subject to ITGC (Income Tax Calculation Component) on contribution. ITCC is exempt for wholesale generators that
meet the IRS Safe Harbor Provisions. PG&E currently does not require the Intercennection Customer to provide security to cover
the potential tax liability on the Interconnection Facilities, Distribution Upgrades, and Network Upgrades per the IRS Safe Harbor
Provisions {IRS Notice 88-129). PG&E reserves the right to require, on a nondiscriminatory basis, the [nterconnection Customer to
provide such security, in a form reasonably acceptable to PG&E as indicated in Article 11 of the SGIA, an amount up to the cost
consequences of any current tax liability. Upon request and within sixty (60) Calendar Days’ notice, the Interconnection Customer
shall provide PG&E such [TCC security or ITCC payment in the event that Safe Harbor Provisions have not been met, in the form
requested by PGEE.

29



SECTION_ | PAGENO._%% __

Total Project Costs

Amount Subject to Amount NOT Total Cost Category
Cost Category COO0 (%) Subject to COO ($) Amount ($)
Interconnection Facilities
Costs (Attachment 2) $ 64,825 NiA $ 64,825
Distribution Upgrade Costs
(Attachment 6) %0 MIA ¥ 8
Network Upgrade Costs
(Attachment 6) NG nu $0
Total Project Costs ($) $ 64,825* $0 $ 64,825

Total Cost-of-Ownership Charges for Project:
The Interconnection Customer has elected the following by placing a check mark against it for Cost-of-

Ownership for the applicable Interconnection Facilities and/or Distribution Upgrades. The Cost-of-
Ownership will commence upon the In-Service Date per Section 4.1.2.

Al] Monthly Cost-of-Ownership Charge
$ 64,825 x 1.55%° (monthly percentage rate in 1983) = § 246.33

[ Total Monthly Cost-of-Ownership Charge | $ 246.33/ month

B.[x ] Eguivalent One-Time Charge (in lieu of recurring Monthly Cost-of-Ownership Charge)

$ 64,825 x 18.6% (annual percentage rate in 1983) x 8.2 {(worth factor* in 1983) = § 98,871*

[ Total Equivalent One-Time Charge | $ 98,871

* This amount is not billable to the Interconnection Customer as the Equivalent One-Time Charge was
paid by the Interconnection Customer under the superseded Special Facilities Agreement, dated January
13, 1983.

3 The COST-OF-OWNERSHIP Charge for Interconnections provided under this Agreement is determined in accordance with
PG&E’s applicable percentage rates calculated using PG&E's most recent distribution owner revenue requirement on file with and
accepted by FERC. PG&E currently charges the following COST-OF-OWNERSHIP rates for distribution facilities: Customer
financed, Distribution-level Rate of 0.48% monthly.

4 The Present Worth Factor (PWF), which is also known as the perpetuity factor, is used under this agreement to determine the
equivalent One-Time Payment. This financial factor Is the reciprocal of the after-tax Rate of Retum on Rate Base (ROR). The after-
tax ROR is calculated by the Economic and Project Analysis Department and is based on CPUC decisions, which establish the
Return on Rate Base.

30



SECTION_ H Z,PAGE NO.___ |

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: March 3, 2016

Subject: Water Conservation Regulations

| will be discussing with State Water Board staff on Tuesday, March 8 the extension of the water
conservation regulations adopted by the State Water Board on February 2, and potential changes to
them in late April or early May. Also on the call will be Chris DeGabriele from North Marin Water
District, Jennifer Burke from the City of Santa Rosa and Stephanie Locke from the Monterey Peninsula
Water Management District. We submitted comments on January 28 recommending that the State
Water Board rescind the conservation regulations in areas where no drought conditions exist, including
ours, due to the fact that precipitation was 150% of normal and Ruth Reservoir began spilling on
December 21 and had continued doing so through then. Precipitation in Eureka is currently 127% of
normal, and Ruth has continued to spill since December 21.

Del Norte County agencies have requested to join us in our effort to rescind these regulations on the
north coast, and Marin and Sonoma agencies have also requested significant reductions in the
requirements. | joined the Del Norte agencies for a conference call with Senator McGuire on February
19, and he has offered to organize a meeting with State Water Board members prior to the April/May
meeting, to advocate our position. | have briefed Assemblymember Wood'’s staff on the issue, and
have requested that he send a letter supporting our position in advance of the State Water Board
meeting. We will also be seeking similar letters of support (as we did last spring) from the Boards of
Supervisors in Del Norte and Humboldt Counties, from Chambers of Commerce and others.

We already have a number of conservation requirements that we must meet, including SB X7-7 20 by
2020 requirements, the water efficient landscaper ordinance, SB 407 plumbing fixture retrofit
requirements and AB 1420 demand management measure compliance requirements (on which we
must report in our Urban Water Management Plans). We will be reminding the State Water Board that
these measures will continue, even if there is no ongoing drought emergency.



secrion_12_ Pace no._ |

e S| e . v e

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: March 2, 2016

Subject: Cannabis Activities

On the state legislation front, two bills have been introduced by our local legislators, and will be
discussed with the Board in a later item on today’s agenda.

Compliance workshops have been being organized by the Mad River Alliance and EPIC, consisting of
presentations by the Regional Board, CDFW, CalFIRE and industry specialists, all of whom present
information about regulatory requirements, compliance mechanisms, best management practices and
more. HBMWD provided financial assistance for these workshops, paying for the preparation of the
workbooks that are provided to each attendes.

The compliance workshops are scheduled as follows:

Mad River Grange (Bue Lake) February 28
Mateel Community Center March 13
Willow Creek March 19
Mattole April 3
Eureka (Redwood Acres) April 17
Ruth Lake Community Center April 24

The first workshop was quite successful, attracting 70 participants.



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT secrion_H S paceNo._|___
To: Board of Directors
From: Paul Helliker
Date: March 2, 2016
Subject: Water Resource Planning (WRP) — Status Report

The purpose of this memo is to summarize recent activities and introduce next steps for discussion.

1) Top-Tier Water Use Options

a} Local Sales
The Harbor District is working with the County to update the Local Coastal Plan and to adopt
an ordinance that would establish guidelines and criteria for interim leases on Coastal
Dependent Industrial-designated parcels (such as the former pulp mill sites). This ordinance
would allow the Harbor District to move quickly to lease facilities to tenants who do not
qualify as “coastal dependent,” until such time as tenants who do qualify show up and ask
for space.

George Wheeler, the chair of the McKinleyville Community Services District Board of
Directors, called to alert me to the fiber optic data link project that it being proposed for the
CA 299 corridor. Associated with that proposal is a possible data center, which would
require significant cooling and could be a customer for water supply. He recommended that
we contact Inyo Networks, the project proponent, to discuss potential partnership.

We have a meeting scheduled for March 23 with our partners between Rio Dell and Trinidad
to organize a project proposal for State Revolving Loan funds to conduct the next level of
planning and design for expansion of the transmission system northwards and southwards.

b) Transport
Bob Simpson came to meet with me recently, and said that he has potential partners who
would like to discuss with us the possibility of establishing a water shipment terminal. Bob’s
suggestion would be to run a line through the outfall to a riser at an appropriate distance
offshore, where ships could connect to load water for delivery to other destinations. | told
him | would need to research the water rights requirements associated with place of use for
water that is transferred elsewhere (particularly if it were to another state or nation). And, of
course, discuss whatever proposal he puts forward with the Board of Directors.

c) Instream Flow Dedication
Neither our application to the Wildlife Conservation Board nor our application to the
Fisheries Restoration Grant Program were selected for funding in 2016. We will be meeting
with the WCB grant program manager in March to review our proposal and discuss the
reason(s) it was not selected.

We received the FRGP review document, which stated that our proposal did not receive
approval because we failed to note that we have a water conservation and education
program. There were additional comments that we did not rate well because the project
description was not clear, the flow regimes proposed were not well-defined, and



SECTION_I15 PAGE NO.__2-

subcontractor budgets did not include adequate detail. There was also a question about
which assessment protocols we are proposing to use.

Because the deadline for submitting proposals for FRGP funding in 2016/17 is March 11, it
does not appear that we will be able to consult with CDFW and collect the information
necessary to revise the proposal to be successful. We do, however, plan to submit a
proposal to the Coastal Conservancy in the fall, during the general solicitation cycle for
Proposition 1-funded projects (which can include streamflow enhancement planning projects
such as ours.)



SECTION. LG PAGENO. __.2...

Th 'IFE:I":*:H State of California — Natural Resources Agency EDMUND G. BROWN JR., Govemnor i
L] Y | A

= DEPARTMENT OF FISH AND WILDLIFE CHARLTON H. BONHAM, Director |
Qi Fisheries Branch :
830 "S" Street

¥ Sacramento, CA 856811
(916) 327-8840

www.wildlife.ca.qgov

February 10, 2016

Mr./Ms. Carol Rische

828 Seventh Street _
Eureka, CA 95502 HBMWD., re8 12 i
Subject: FRGP Proposal Not Funded

Dear Caro! Rische:

We regret to inform you that your fisheries restoration proposal, as listed below, has not
been approved for funding.

Proposal # _Project Title
205 Mad River Estuary Physical and Biological Habitat Assessment

In February 2015, the Fisheries Restorafion Grant Program (FRGP) advertised a
Proposal Solicitation Notice (PSN) for Fiscal Year (FY) 2015/16. The FRGP received
156 proposals requesting more than $45 million in grant money which resulted in a
highly competitive selection process. Your proposal was disqualified for not indicating
that your organization had a Water Conservation and Efficiency Plan. This was a
requirement for all applicants per a governor mandate. The proposal was still reviewed
by the technical ieam and that review is included with this letter. We hope this will
assist you to improve your proposal should you decide to resubmit it in the future.

You may resubmit your proposal(s) under the 2016 PSN, which closes March 11, 2016,
Proposals submitted under the 2016 PSN can only be submitted via the online
application system. A copy of the 2016 PSN can be downloaded at:

hitp .//Awww.dfg.ca.govifish/Administration/Grants/FRGP/Solicitation.asp.

If you have questions concerning the proposal process, please contact the FRGP Grant
Coordinator Patty Forbes at (916) 327-8842 or by emall at patty.forbes@wildlife.ca.gov.

Sincerely,

Wl R Buirs

Helen Birss, Chief
Watershed Restoration Grants Branch

attachment

Conserving California’s Wildlife Since 1870



FRGP Not Funded
February 10, 2016
Page 2

ec. Kevin Shaffer, Environmental Program Manager
Fisheries Branch
Wildlife and Fisheries Division
Kevin.shaffer@wildiife.ca.gov

Patty Forbes, Senior Envnronmental Sclentlst
Fisheries Branch:~ . '
Wildlife and Fisheries Dt\nsmn

Patty forbes@wildlife.ca.gov

Gail Seymour, Senior Fisheries Biologist
Bay Delta Region (Regicn 3)

Gail.seymour@wildlife.ca gov

Margaret Paul, Senior Environmental Scientist
Central Region (Region 4)

Margaret. paul@wildlife.ca.qov

Mary Larson, Senior Environmental Scientist
South Coast Region (Region 5)
Mary larson@wildlife.ca.qov

Trevor Tollefson, Environmental Scientist
Northern Region (Region 1)

Trevor.tollefson@wildlife.ca.qov

sgCTION_{1 3 PAGENO._

Y

e



SECTION M & PAGE No._ G

FRGP Watershed Evaluation, Assessment, Planning and Restoration Project
Planning (PL)

Proposali: 205 Region: 1 Reviewer: Technical Review Team Date: 06/04/2015
Proposal Name: Mad River Estuary Physical and Biological Habitat Assessment

Scientific and Technical Review

initial score is 5. Points are deducted when the propased project does not correspond to or meet the intent of the PSN.
Final score range: 5 (High) to 0.

Circle one

Yes | Med | Low | No

1. The proposal as written addresses the identified Recovery Task and can \ < vesil| g .
accomplish the Task in part or in whole. \ bl

2. Proposal demonstrates that the project proponent/organization has the w
qualifications, experience, and capacity to perform the proposed tasks \
(including subcontracts). Yes = Appropriate level of expertise and/or \
successfully completed previously funded grants, Med = lacks some \
expertise, some problems with successful completion of previously funded \ 051 4 |
projects, and/or named subcontractors not appropriate for work, Low = )

Iacks a lot of expertise and/or many problems with successful completion \

of previously funded projects, No = unqualified, problematic

subcontractors, persistent problems with completing funded grants, and/or

uncooperative. \

3. Project description includes required details necessary to write a statement
of work for the grant agreement. Yes = narrative clear and comprehensive,

\q
Med = some clarity needed on activities to be done, Low = Activities 0 \ 2 | -5
N

proposed are inadequately described and more clarity needed, No =
narrative general and/or a list of activities with no detail.
4. Project budget is appropriate to the work proposed, is cost effective, and

sufficiently detailed to describe project costs. Yes = budget is detailed, :
accurate, appropriate, and cost effective, Med = some budget detail is \\\

needed, a few inaccuracies, and 1 or 2 unspecified lump sums, Low = 0 ! 2|5
more than 2 unspecified lump sums, lacks detail, many inaccuracies, \
and/or includes inappropriate costs, No = Many unspecified lump sums, \
insufficient detail, inaccurate, and/or not cost effective. s
5. Supplemental information is sufficient as described in PSN Part V & VI \\ [y
Yes = all supplemental information is sufficient, Low = one or more pieces \ - . .
of supplemental information are insufficient, No = all supplemental a2
information is insufficient. k\ 2
6. Based on the DFW/NMFS Engineering and Geo Technical Level Review, [ a7 \
the proposal should be considered for funding. Yes = should be I R
considered for funding; DNF = should not be considered for funding. RS &
7. Field review conducted; if no, explain in comments. wais | 5
8. Project will utilize CDFW acceptable assessment protocols, 0 NN -1 | -6
9. _
-5

of the watershed, the proposal adequately addresses those issues, or
references a prior document adequately addressing those issues.

If there are significant social issues associated with successful restoration 7/ sl

FRGP 2015/2016 PSN D2



SECTION NS _PAGENO.L__.

PL 205 Circle one
Yes | Med | Low | No

10. Extent to which proposed project encompasses or completes an entire e
watershed or sub-watershed; Yes = 80-100% of the watershed; Med = 70- o | 025! -05 %
80% of the watershed; Low = 60-70% of the watershed; No = <50% of the ’ ’ /

Q Z

watershed.

11. Extent to which project will develop complete watershed plan: Yes =
Complete watershed plan or NA; Med = Specific assessment based on
CDFW-acceptable watershed plan; Low = CDFW-acceptable ranch
implementation plan; No = Specific assessment not based on previous
planning effort.

12. Extent to which project will develop and maintain a database: Yes =
Complete database that address FRGP needs or NA; No = not provide a
complete ready to use database, does not meet FRGP needs, or appropriate
QA/QC/maintenance. :

13. The proposed deliverables include plans, reports, databases, maps, and
outreach efforts and will effectively convey limiting factors and prioritized [
solutions to landowners and other interested people. ’

Z
:
T4 Proposal documents sufficient local landowner interest for plan %
%
_
0

g 0.5 | -1 -2

implementation or a detailed description of how landowner support will be
secured. Yes = Landowner support is documented by landowner access or |
a description is adequate to ensure landowner interest, Med =2 few
landowners have not been contacted, Low = landowner support is
questionable, No = applicant has not demonstrated contact with
landowners or has not described how landowner support will be achieved.
15. The project proposal has been favorably reviewed by a CDFW or NOAA w
Fisheries Hydraulic Engineer (for project which require engineer review) W o
and plan determined to be appropriate. e s, &
16. Level of cost share (from matrix). -1

05 | -1 -2

Final Score (lowest score possible = 0): DNF
No water conservation plan.

#3. The project description needs some clarity on activities to be done. The project fails to properly describe
how the conditions in the estuary are impacted by existing municipal diversion.

#4. Project budget lacked budget detail in the subcontractor expenses line items.

#6. Based on the Engineering and Technical Level Review, the proposal should be not be considered for
funding.

#8. Tt was unclear if CDFW acceptable assessment protocols will be used.

#10. The proposed project encompasses 5% (less than 50%) of the watershed.

#11. This proposed project would develop less than a complete watershed plan.

#15. The project proposal has not been favorably reviewed by the Engineer and the plan was not determined
to be appropriate.

This project would provide a model to allow the proponent to evaluate the impacts of water releases on the
Mad River Estuary. Coho salmon are a relatively minor component of the salmon assemblage in the Mad
River. A study and modeling of the Mad River estuary conditions to include temperature, salinity, depth,
topography, and fish habitat and how they change with flow and the tidal cycle could be useful for future
planning in terms of the potential for instream flow dedication. One season of sampling combined with the
low coho salmon numbers make it of questionable benefit.

FRGP 2015/2016 PSN D3



SECTION H{S_PAGENO._f__

Engineering and GecoTechnical Level Review Fisheries Restoration Grants Program
Fisheries Engineering Program Staff

;mp . J;(% .?{fil:ct Mad River Estuary Physical and Biological Habitat Assessment

Question; ‘ YES | NO | N/A Comments

1. Given the background information and/or ! checked yes because the wiitfen objectives are very

data provided in the proposal, is the project general, The data collection and modeling would help

described thoroughly enough, is the approach - evaluate the conditions of habitat under various flow

appropriate to the problem, and does the conditions and sea level rise. But the stafed objective

project approach/design match the stated was lo study further augmenting low flows which was

goals? not considered a beneficial use of water in the

N previous feasibility study. | think physical and

biological data collection in the estuary is desirable by
agencies for future restoration opportunities but the
data collection plan should define the existing hourly
conditions of the estuary and how the data will be
collected and evaluated.

2. Does the Intermediate er Conceptual Plan The project faifs fo properly describe the constraint of

Report describe the set of conditions, the flow conditions in the estuary caused by the

constraints, and requirements necessary for existing municipal diversion and from the site visit

project design and are the plans >65 percent meeting the project proponent described the plan to

plan development for the following project sludy augmented low flow conditions as he said was

categories: FP, HB, HS, WD (and some HI and identified as & need in the previously funded feasibility

HUY? X sfudy. In the previous feasibility sfudy, HBMWD said
that matching low flows below Essex "Can’t be done due
to municipal diversion schedule” therefore must remain
augmented. The agencies did not identify augmenting
summer low flows as a beneficial use in the feasibility
sfudy.

3. Are any refinements that need 1o be made to

the design reascnable to make between the

65% and 100% design? Does the project X

proponent/designer seem willing to, capable of,

and have funds for making the necessary

changes?

4, If the project is likely to require future

consultation or evaluation of a

conceptual/intermediate plan as it is being

developed, is this consultation reflected in the X

project time line and budget or can it be

accomplished within the project

timeline/budget?

5. Does the project team have the experience or

compliment of expertise required for project

success (e.g., demonstrated experience on

similar projects; technical expertise appropriate | X

to the project; communication, coordingtion

| and logistical capabilities)?

6. If'the project is likely fo require the

participation of a licensed engineer or

geologist, is the licensed professional =

identified?

7. If applicable, has the responsible party

signed a letter agreeing to the operation and

maintenance responsibilities identified in the X

PSN for the O&M 1600 for the project after

the FRGP grant ends? (applies to SC projects).

FRGP 2015/2016 PSN

D4




SECTION_H.S PAGENO.__ B
PL 205

8. From an engineering perspective, should the
proposal be considered for funding? Note: If
any of the above questions were answered
“NO¥, then the proposal should not be
considered for funding at this time. If there are
other engineering/feasibility reasons why the

proposel should not be funded, state them here.

Physical and biological monitoring of the estuary is an
identified data need in the Coho Recovery Plan. I
funded, the consideration of extending the data
coffection o other times of the year is of interest to
understand the habitat use throughout the year. Also,
extending the physical monitoring to the HEMWD
diversion should be considersd fo help understand the
habitat availability form the estuary to the point of
diversion. Consider.postponing the modelling portion
of the project until after physical and habitat dafe
collfection to identify the goals of the model better.

The type of data collection proposed in the estuary is
needed and would help identify existing habitat and
potential habitat restoration opportunities. However,
the HBMWD flow release options are not well
described or understandable from the proposal. The
appficant did not describe potential flow releases fo be
evaluated otfier than augmenting flow above the
existing and already augmented flows in the low flow
season. The previous FRGP funded feasibility
efiminated augmenting flows above the already
augmentied level from potential 1707 beneficial flow
refease. Duning the site review the project proponent
stated that the previous feasibility study did identify
fow flow augmentation as a potential beneficial use
which confficts with the written document. | remain
confused about the objective of the study. If funded,
the first task should be o define the hourly low flows
that are necessary fo meet the HEMWD municipal
waler supply. This existing condifion would establish
the baseline above which flow releases may be
proposad. NMFS and COFW have established that
augmenting the hourly low flows above the already
augmented low flows causing the hydrogreph to vary
farther from the unimpaired condition would not be
considered beneficial because of the further impacts
of the fall hydrograph. | cannot understand a scenario
thal needs fo be modeled since the condition already
exists in the estuary because of the limitations of the
axisting diversion and the established agency position
that further augmented summer flows are not an
option for a beneficial use of stored waler,

FRGP 2015/2046 PSN

DS



SEGTION_\/S_ PAGE NO. a...-

FRGP Cost Share Scoring Matrix

Proposal#: 205 Project Type: PL Region: 1Reviewer: Technical Review Team Date: 06/04/2015
Proposal Name: Mad River Estuary Physical and Biological Habitat Assessment

% Soft Cost Share = (Soft Cost Share / Total Project Cost) x 100
(80 /%344 883)x100=0

% Hard Cost Share = (Hard Cost Share / Total Project Cost) x 100
(24,354 / $344.883 x 100 = 7%

Cost Share
1. Cost share nof suitable: projects, personnel, or supplies and equipment previously
funded by CDFW, resources expended prior to the term of the grant; salaries of
permanently funded employees working for the CDFW or NOAA Fisheries; mitigation
funds; cost share funds that will not be confirmed by February 1, 2016.

2. Hard cost share: All hard cost share must be Non-Federal sourced money or in-kind
contributions which do not come from a Federal source. Hard cost share can be
provided by the applicant and/or the applicant’s partners involved in the impiementation
of the proposed project confirmed prior to August 15, 2015.

3. Soft cost share: All soft cost share is Federal sourced money or in-kind contributions
which come from a Federal source. Soft cost share can be provided by the applicant
and/or the applicant’s partners involved in the implementation of the proposed project.
The following in-kind contributions can only be counted as soft cost share regardless of
funding source: administrative overhead or the components of administrative overhead
(as described in Part IV page 30); and cost share funds that will be confirmed after
August 15, 2015 up until February 1, 2016.

Cost share scoring matrix:

% Hard

90-99 | 80-89 | 70-79 | 60-69 | 50-59 | 40-49 | 30-38 | 20-29 | 1019 | 6- 9| 0-4
% Soft % % % % % % % % % % %
90-99 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
80-89 % (o 0 0 0 0 0 0 () 0 0 0
70-79 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
60-69 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
50-59 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| 025
40-48 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0] 0.25] 026
30-39 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0{ -025
20-28 % 0 0 0 0 0 0 0| -0.25 0.75 | - -0.76
1019 % 0 0 0 0 0 0] -0.25 075  10f -0
0-9% 0 0 0 0 0 0 078 | 075 A% 10

FRGP 2015/2016 PSN Dl



RESOLUTION NO. 201601 SECTON_T \_PAGENO, |

Resolution of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Recognizing and Honoring the OQutstanding Service of
Kaitlin Sopoci-Belknap

WHEREAS, Kaitlin Sopoci-Belknap has served the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District with
distinction, as Director of Division One, from January 2005 to March 2016; and,

WHEREAS, her service has included President from January 2009 to January 2013; Secretary /Treasurer
from January 2007 to January 2009, and Assistant Secretary/Treasurer from January 2013 to March
2016; and,

WHEREAS, she served the District in many ways beyond the normal duties of a Director including being
on the Water Resources Planning Advisory Committee from October 2007 to March 2016; serving on
the Committee to Advance Local Water Sales and Advance Consideration of the “Transport” Option,
and the District Website Social Media Ad-Hoc Committee; and,

WHEREAS, she was the first female to serve on the Board, and to also serve as President; and

WHEREAS, she has brought valuable perspective and background to the Board, especially in regards to
environmental issues that have and will continue to benefit the District; and,

WHEREAS, she exhibits tact and grace and has the ability to calmly mediate issues and bring them into
perspective; and

WHEREAS, the Board wishes to acknowledge her departure from the Board to move to the State Capital
to continue her work with Democracy Unlimited and does hereby wish her all the best,

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board and Staff of the Humboldt Bay Municipal
Water District does hereby sincerely and gratefully acknowledge Kaitlin Sopoci-Belknap’s
contributions and years of dedicated service.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board and Staff of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
thank Kaitlin Sopoci-Belknap, and her family, for the years of service she contributed to the District
and the Humboldt Bay Community.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of March 2016, by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NAYES:
ABSENT:
ATTEST:
Barbara Hecathorn J. Bruce Rupp

President of the Board of Directors Secretary/Treasurer of the Board of Directors



secTion £33 paceno._ !
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: March 3, 2016

Subject: Assembly Bill 2243 and Senate Bill 987

Two bills have been introduced for the 2016 session to address funding needs associated with the
regulation of medical marijuana production and distribution. Staff is recommending that HBMWD
support both measures.

Assembly Bill 2243

Assembiymember Wood introduced this bill iast month, to create the Medical Cannabis Tax Law. The
law would impose a tax on licensed cultivators at a rate of $9.25 per ounce of medical cannabis
flowers, $2.75 per ounce of medical cannabis leaves, and $1.25 per immature medical cannabis plant
from the sale of all medical cannabis flowers, medical cannabis leaves, immature medical cannabis
plants distributed to a licensed distributor in this state. The Board of Equalization shall collect the tax
and deposit it in the Cannabis Production and Environmental Mitigation Fund.

The funds will be distributed as follows:

= Thirty percent to the for disbursement for local law enforcement-related activities
pertaining to illegal cannabis cultivation. Funds allocated pursuant to this paragraph shall be
allocated on a competitive grant application process administered by the .

« Thirty percent to the Natural Resources Agency to fund a competitive grant program for
environmental cleanup restoration and protection of public and private lands that have been
damaged by illegal cannabis cultivation

¢ Thirty percent to the multiagency task force, the Department of Fish and Wildlife and State
Water Resources Control Board, to address the environmental impacts of cannabis cultivation
on public and private lands in California and fund other state enforcement-related activities
pertaining to illegal cannabis cultivation.

¢ Ten percent to the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulations, and other state agencies or
departments that the bureau determines is appropriate, to conduct ongoing studies of areas that
may create challenges to compliance of the Medical Marijuana Regulation Safety Act

Senate Bill 987

Senator McGuire introduced this bill last month to create the Marijuana Value Tax Act. The law would
impose an excise tax on the consumption or other use in this state of medical marijuana purchased
from any retailer for the consumption or other use in this state at the rate of 15 percent of the sales
price of the medical marijuana. The Board of Equalization would collect the tax and deposit the funds
in the Marijuan Value Tax Fund.

Moneys in the Fund shall be allocated by the Controller as follows:

= Thirty percent to the General Fund.

s Thirty percent to the Bureau of Medical Marijuana Regulation for the administration of a grant
program to distribute grants to local agencies that oversee the regulation of cultivating,
processing, manufacturing, distributing, and selling of medical marijuana upon appropriation by
the Legislature.



SECTION_L- 3 PAGENC. 2-

« Twenty percent to the Department of Parks and Recreation for base operations of state parks,
upon appropriation by the Legislature.

e Ten percent to county and city human service departments for drug and alcohol treatment
programs, distributed based on population, upon appropriation by the Legislature.

» Ten percent to the Natural Resources Agency for restoration and remediation of public and
private lands and watersheds damaged by medical marijuana cultivation, including lands
affected by medical marijuana cultivation before the operative date of this section, upon
appropriation by the Legislature.



Engineering



|
SECTION._1 C._ PAGE NO,__|

.. EDMUND G BROWN JR. Govemor

STATEOF CALIFDR.D!IQ” = CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSPORTATION AGENCY

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE

STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE & INVESTIGATIONS
111 Grand Avenue, Room 10-400

OAKLAND, CA 94612-3717 =
PHONE (510) 286-6188 Flex your power!
FAX (510)286.0353 Be energy efficient!

T a—— s o o

November 05, 2015

Ms. Cardl Rische

General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 Seventh Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Dear Ms. Rische:

In accordance with Title.23 of the Code of Federal Regulations (Federal Highway Act) and the
National Bridge Inspection Standards (NBIS), Caltrans Structure Maintenance and Investigations
performed a Fracture Critical inspection of 1 bridge(s) under your jurisdiction, The bridges have been
rated to indicate their deficiencies, structural adequacy, safe load carrying capacity and overall general
condition,

Enclosed are copies of the Bridge Inspection Reports for the structures noted on the attached
transmittal sheet. These reports contain descriptions of physical changes to the structures since the last
inspection, recommendations for work to be done, and additional information not recorded in the
previous Bridge Reports.

Your attention is directed to the requirements of Title 23, Part 650 of the Code of Federal Regulations,
where newly completed structures or any modification of existing structures shall be entered in the
inventory within 90 days. Please notify this office of any newly constructed bridge or culvert within
your jurisdiction, more than 20 feet measured along the center of the roadway and carrying public
vehicular traffic or over a public roadway, in order that it may be entered in the inventory of bridge
structures in compliance with Federal requirements.

Should you have any questions regarding the enclosed Bridge Inspection Report(s), please contact
Vassil Simeonov @ (916) 227-0719.

Office Chief
Structure Maintenance & Investigations - {Investigations - Toll)

Enclosures

For NAME and/or ADDRESS CHANGES, please E-mail smi.office@dot.ca.gov
*Caltrans impraves mobllity across California”



i
SECTION.\C. _ PAGENO._2-

S'I'A'I'EOFCALIFORNIA CAHFDIINIA STATE TII..-\NSPDRTATIDN AOENC\’ EDMUND G. BROWNJR . G

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION -

DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE

STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE & INVESTIGATIONS
111 Grand Avenue, Room 10-400

OAKLAND, CA 84612.3717

PHONE (510) 286-6188

FAX (510) 286-0253

WEB SITES:

The National Bridge Inspection Standards (NBIS) Recording and Coding Guide for the Structure
Inventory and Appraisal of the Nation's Bridges, Element Level Inspection, Structure Maintenance
and Investigations Manuals, Local Assistance Program Guidelines and other related information are
posted on Division of Maintenance, Structure Maintenance and Investigations; Division of Local
Assistance, Local Highway Bridge Program (HBP) and FHWA websites.

The websites can be accessed at:

1. "Caltrans Structure Maintenance and Investigations™ http://www.dot.ca.gov/hg/structur/strmaint/
2. "Cahltrans Division of Local Assistance”
http/www.det.ca.gov/hg/LocalPrograms/hbrr99/hbrr99a.htm

3. "FHWA" http/www.fhwa.dot.gov/BRIDGE/mtguide.pdf

Inspection Type Definitions

Routine Inspection:

Routine Inspections consist of both the initial Inventory Inspection (the first inspection of the bridge
that places it in the bridge inventory or when there has been a change in the configuration of the
structure) and subsequent regularly scheduled inspections. The initial inspection provides all the
Structural Inventory & Appraisal (SI&A) dala required by federal and state regulations, determines the
baseline structural conditions, lists any existing problems, and establishes the Joad capacity of the
structure. Subsequent inspections consist of observations, measurements needed to determine the
physical and functional condition of the bridge, to identify any changes from the previously recorded
conditions, and verification of its load capacity. These inspections are generally conducted from the
deck, ground and/or water level, and from permanent work platforms and walkways, if present.
Inspection of underwater portions of the substructure is limited to observations during low-flow
periods and/or probing for signs of undermining. Special equipment should be utilized in circumstances
where its use provides the only practical access to areas of the structure,

Fracture Critical, Special Feature & Underwater Inspections:

Fracture Critical, Special Feature, and Underwater Inspections are up close, hands-on inspections of
one or more members above or below the water level to identify any deficiencies not readily detectable
using Routine Inspection procedures. These inspections generally require special equipment such as
under-bridge inspection equipment, manlifts, boats, traffic control, and railroad flagging. Personnel
with special skills such as divers or structural steel inspectors trained in non-destructive testing
techniques may be required.

Other Inspections:

Other Inspections are conducted on damaged structures, structures that have developed specific
problems, or structures suspected of developing problems. The scope of these investigations should be
sufficient to determine the need for emergency load resirictions or closure of the structure, monitor a
changing condition, and to assess the level of effort necessary to effect a repair.

For NAME and/or ADDRESS CHANGES, please E-mail smioffice@dot.ca.pov
“Calirans intproves mobility occross Callfornia® -



STATE OF CALIFORNIA - = CALIFORNIA STATE TRANSI'ORTATION AGENCY I

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

DIVISION OF MAINTENANCE
STRUCTURE MAINTENANCE & INVESTIGATIONS
111 Grand Avenuve, Room 10-400

-

=

SECTION JC LPAGENO._2

_EDMUND G, BROWN JR , Gevernar

OAKLAND, CA 945123717
PHONE {5 10) 286-5188 Flex your poveer!
FAX (510)286-0353 Be energy efficient!
Bridge Report Transmittal Sheet
Batch 33221
Inspection Outstanding
Br. Number Bridge Name Date Type Work
05C0219 RUTH DAM 09/22/2015 Fracture Critical N

1  Bridge(s) in this Transmittal

For NAME and/or ADDRESS CHANGES, please E-mail smi.office@dot.ca.gov

“Cafsrany improves mobility across California®



sEcTioN_{C _pacE D, Y |

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION Bridge Number : N5C0218
Structure Maintenance & Investigations Facility Carried: RUTH DAM ROAD

f 2

Location : 100" W MAD RIVER ROAD
x/roone City :

Inspection Date : 05/22/2015

Inspection

Bridge Inepection Report Routine FC Undexwater Special Other

STRUCTURE NAME: RUTH DAM

CONSTRUCTION INFORMATION

Year Built : 1972 Skew (degrees}: 0
Year Widened: N/A No. of Joints : 2
Length (m) : 31.7 Ne. of Hinges : 0

Structure Description: Single span composite welded steel plate girders {2) with
reinforced concrete {RC) deck on RC seated abutments. All are
founded on spread footings.

Span Configuration :1 @ 101.0 ft

EAFE _LOAD CAPACITY AND RATINGE
Design Live Load: MS-18 OR HS8-20

Inventory Rating: 29.1 metric tons Calculation Method: LOAD FACTOR
Operating Rating: 55.6 metric toms Caleulation Method: LOAD FACTOR
Permit Rating :  XXXXX
Posting Load : Type 3: 14 U.8, Tons Type 352: 18 U.S5. Tons Type 3-3: 19 U.8. Tons
DESCRIPTION ON STRUCTURE
Deck X-Secticn: 0.30 ft br, 1.4 ft cu, 14.0 £t, 1.4 ft cu, 0.30 £t br
Total Width: 5.1m Net Width: 4,3 m ¥No. of Lanes: 1 Speed: 25 mph
Min. Vertical Clearance: Unimpaired Ovexlay Thicknees: 0.9 Inches
Rail Code: 000D
Rail Type| Location th (ft)iRail Modiffcations

Misc. Right /Left €0 . chain link fence

Steel

RLE i BTRUCTURE

Channel Description: Concrete-lined rectangular chammel.
INSPE COMMENTARY

ECOPE AND ACCESSE

A fracture critical member inspection was performed on 09/22/2015 by Chaz Russoy from the
Office of Specialty Investigatiens.

The structure was accessed with the UBIT operated by Stephen Teesdale. Lane closures and
traffic control were provided by the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District.

The investigation was conducted in accordance with the Fracture Critical Member
Inspection Plan, dated 10/11/2007.
SUPERSTRUCTURE

A hande-on visual inspection was performed on the steel girders in Span 1. No fractures
or cracks were found.

The butt welds at the bottom flange transitions are of poor quality and will continue to
be monitored in future inspections.

Printed on:Thursday 11/19/2015 03:17 PM 05C0219/AARN/33221



!
=
SECTION_NC_ PAGENO, & mage 20t3
T S
STEEL INVESTIGATIONS
This structurs gualifiss for am in-depth Steel investigation because it poseesses the

following fracture critical or fatigue prone details :

Piate Girder: FC Membere

Fracture Critical: Yes Inspection Freq.: 24 Next Inspection: 08/22/2017
Team Leader : Chaz Kussoy

Report Author : Chaz Kussoy
Inspected By : C.Kussoy

e L

Chaz Kuesoy {Registered Civil Engineer) (Date) ! 1’5\ ol "’""’"774/5 *

Printed on: Thursday 11/19/20i5 03:17 PM 05C0219/AARN/33221



RUTH DAM SECTION .__?_E_, PAGE NO,_

S

100' W MAD RIVER ROAD 09/2212015 [AAAN] 05C0219

108 - PHOTO-Supor-Dotalls

Photo No. 1
Lateral bracing between the two girders

110 = PHOTO-Supor-Misc.

Photo No, 2
Butt welds at botiom flangas



SECTION <'D PAGENO. |
Sherrie Sobol ) S

From: John Friedenbach [friedenbach@hbmwd.com]

Sent: Friday, February 19, 2016 3:50 PM

To: Paul Helliker; Pat Kaspari; Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com)
Subject: FW: Your HMGP NOI is eligible - Control No. is 0039

Hi All,

Pat- you did it! Way to go!
Now we have to figure out how to pay for the $1M match.

We will talk further about strategy on whether to apply for grant or not on this one.
But good job getting them to reconsider our NOI.

John Friedenbach

Business Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
(707) 443-5018

Fax (707) 443-5731

————— Original Message-----

From: Marcia Sully [mailto:Marcia Sully@ops.calema.ca.gov]
Sent: Friday, February 19, 2016 3:33 PM

To: John Friedenbach

Subject: Your HMGP NCI is eligible - Control No. is @39

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) has received the Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) Notice of Interest (NOI) submitted by your agency.

Project Number: DR-4240-0039.

Applicant Name: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Activity Title: HBMWD Matthews Dam
Left Spillway Wall Retrofit.

Federal Share Request: $3,000,000.00.

Required Application Match: $1,000,000.€0.

Your NOI was reviewed by Cal OES HMGP staff and was determined to represent an eligible HMGP
activity.

This email confirms the formal invitiation for the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District to
develop a full application for HMGP funding.

Applications are available at www.caloes.ca.gov. Applications must be sent to Cal OES
postmarked by June 16, 2016.

Please direct any questions or concerns to HMGP@caloes.ca.gov.

This e-mail has been scanned for viruses



SECTION <\'() PAGENO._2__

Sherrie Sobol

From: John Friedenbach [friedenbach@hbmwd.com]

Sent: Monday, February 01, 2016 1:30 PM

To: Paul Helliker; Pat Kaspari; Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com)
Cc: Becky Moyle

Subject: FW: Your HMGP NOI is eligible - Control No. is 0011
Importance: High

Hi All,

See below from CalOES regarding our NOI for the surge tower.
Way to go Pat!!!

Now we have to complete the application.
Pat - Let's talk about scope and fee to complete the application.

John Friedenbach

Business Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
(707) 443-5018

Fax (707) 443-5731

----- Original Message-----

From: Marcia Sully [mailto:Marcia Sully@ops.calema.ca.gov]
Sent: Monday, February ©1, 2@16 1:86 PM

To: John Friedenbach

Subject: Your HMGP NOI is eligible - Control No. is @011

The California Governor's Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) has received the Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) Notice of Interest (NOI) submitted by your agency.

Project Number: DR-4240-0011.

Applicant Name: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Activity Title: HBMWD Surge Tower
Retrofit.

Federal Share Request: $562,500.00.

Required Applicatin Match: $187,500.00.

Your NOI was reviewed by Cal OES HMGP staff and was determined to represent an eligible HMGP
activity.

This email confirms the formal invitiation for the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District to
develop a full application for HMGP funding.

Applications are available at www.caloes.ca.gov. Applications must be sent to Cal OES
postmarked by June 16, 2016.

Please direct any questions or concerns to HMGP@caloes.ca.gov.

This e-mail has been scanned for viruses



SECTION |0 PAGENO:_3_

Sherrie Sobol

From: Pat Kaspari [Pat.Kaspari@ghd.com]

Sent: Wednesday, March 02, 2016 4:33 PM

To: Sherrie Sobol

Cc: Paul Helliker; John Friedenbach; Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com})
Subject: FW: Your PDM NOI is eligible - Control No. is 16-0003

Sherrie,

Can you add this email to the Blue Book under Item d) as well please?

I guess we need to decide if we are doing this application as well. I would like to if we can
afford it, as we are going to have to replace that switchgear some day...

Patrick Kaspari, PE
Associate Engineer

GHD

T: 707 443 8326 | F: 707 444 8330 | C: 707 599 5123 | V: 842262 | E: pat.kaspari@ghd.com
718 Third Street, Eureka, CA 95501, USA | www.ghd.com WATER | ENERGY & RESOURCES |
ENVIRONMENT | PROPERTY & BUILDINGS | TRANSPORTATION

Please consider our environment before printing this email

----- Original Message-----

From: John Friedenbach [mailto:friedenbach@hbmwd.com]

Sent: Wednesday, March 82, 2016 4:23 PM

To: Pat Kaspari; Paul Helliker; Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com)
Subject: FW: Your PDM NOI is eligible - Control No. is 16-06e€3

Hi All,

This came in last Friday when I was in Sacramento.
When it rains, it pours!

John

----- Original Message-----

From: Julie Norris [mailto:julie.norrisfdcaloes.ca.gov]
Sent: Friday, February 26, 2016 16:11 AM

To: John Friedenbach

Subject: Your PDM NOI is eligible - Control No. is 16-0093

The California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES) has received the Notice of
Interest (NOI) submitted by your agency.

Your NOI has been reviewed by the Cal OES Pre-Disaster and Flood Mitigation
(PDFM) Division and represents an eligible Pre-Disaster Mitigation (PDM} activity.

Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant (PDM)} Program NOI submitted by your agency
is:

Project Number: 16-0003



secTIoN_\!D_PAGENO. A

Applicant Name: Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Activity Title: HBMWD 12kV Switchgear Relocation.
Federal Share Request: $1,350,000.00.

Required Application Match: $450,000.00.

This email confirms the formal invitation for the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District to
develop a full sub-application for PDM funding.

Sub-applications will be submitted via FEMA’s web-based Mitigation Electronic Grants
(eGrants) Management System at https://portal.fema.gov.

A helpful on-line training course for development of sub-grant applications via eGrants can
be found at the following link:
http://www.training.fema.gov/is/courseoverview.aspx?code=15-30.a

You will be contacted by a representative of the PDFM Division for further instructions and
deadline for application submittal.
Please direct any immediate questions or concerns to PDFM@caloes.ca.gov.

This e-mail has been scanned for viruses

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This email, including any attachments, is confidential and may be
privileged. If you are not the intended recipient please notify the sender immediately, and
please delete it; you should not copy it or use it for any purpose or disclose its contents
to any other person. GHD and its affiliates reserve the right to monitor and modify all email
communications through their networks.




secTion_'E pAGENO, L

Enclosure 4

90 Day Pre-PFMA Review/Inspection Conference Call

. Purpose of call

a. To discuss what is expected from the Owner.

b. To discuss what is expected from the Part 12D Consultant.

¢. To discuss what is expected during the PFMA review.

d. To discuss outstanding studies and items of special interest.

. Responsibilities of Owner

a. The Owner should provide a copy of the STID, the three most recent Part

" 12D Reports, and any items of special interest to the IC well in advance of

the inspection.

b. All portions of the site must be readily assessable and cleared of excessive
vegetation. If a comprehensive visual inspection cannot be completed, the
IC will need to re-inspect the site before the Part 12D Report is submitted.

. Responsibilities of Part 12D Consultant

a. The Consultant must review the STID, including the PFMA report, as well
as the past Part 12D Inspection Reports, prior to the inspection.

. Discussion of PFMA Report

a. FERC will review and provide clarification regarding the PFM categories.

b. The discussion should include the current PFMs and the level of effort that
may be expected for their review. This may range from a review of the
PFMA report to a complete revision of the PFMA process, including a
Facilitator and a full document review.

. Items of special interest

Outstanding studies.

. Past Part 12D recommendations that have not been fulfilled.

Schedule for inspection.

. Any other items of interest.

o o

Page 1 of 1



John Friedenbach

From:

Sent:

To:

Cc:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi Garrett,

sECTION - PAGE NO._

e ]

John Friedenbach

Monday, February 29, 2016 8:59 AM

'garrettcoonrod@yahoo.com’

Paul Helliker; Dale Davidsen (supt@hbmwd.com); Pat.Kaspari@ghd.com
Proposed Development

Coonrod maps.pdf

Attached are two GIS aerial view maps of your property. As you know from the recorded deeds on the property, we
have a floating easement over the entire property which dates back to the early 1960’s. We are willing to negotiate a
fixed location to our easement with you. Attached are two aerial maps of your property. One shows our proposed fixed
easements approximate locations relative to our pipelines beneath your property. The other shows our pipelines,
easements, and your proposed subdivision. It appears that some of your proposed development may interfere with

access to our pipelines.

We would like to set up a meeting with our District staff and you to discuss the details of our proposed modifications to

our existing floating easement.

Kindly contact me at your earliest convenience to set up a meeting.

Regards,

John Friedenbach,

Business Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 7" Street, Eureka CA 95501-1114
Phone: 707-443-5018 Fax: 707-443-5731




g
g
ad
|
5
3

Aiepunog Auadolg EwE_xEnﬁ

s(e0uEd Man
Ui 181 IHSHIO0 ===
W2IN JSISAA MELBLISTIPU] ——
WOURIET Y Gy ncer

WOWESET Gy 40 UBWESET UG e

“2Epdn pue UORDEL0D 'eIUBLSIIELW IO SIEIS
JUEISUGD B L pue aieuAp aJ8 sdew pus ‘UCHELLIOII ‘B8P &U) Je) 1o eul Buipnpu
‘suojieywy) ye s)desae pue salipapouxoe 1osanbel &) esodind Jerosed e 1oy ssSUy
1o Aljj|gEjueyaty 50 gORURAEM PEIdW] OU BB alal] eusl] paLiBIqS UOHEWOL]

oL J0 96N 2 0} e ‘paldw) Jo Eseudxa 'sepUBLiem oU STNELL o

lediojuny Aeg Ipfoquinge syl Jejsaenbeu awy uo Aj2jos Sisa) 98N Jo) 5
6L} Jo Jo) S8aUY PUe A)lGEIUBYDISL 'SSaUI|BLUG ‘SEaLE)S|l

Bupupuwelep o) UspINg @y L “sesusiatdwien Jo sseujjawp Hoeinooe Jo uoleasaIde)
fue o hueses noum 5| 58, pepiaod 4 sdew pue 'LogeLLOM E1eE Y

£88) UBIUSWY YHON [wnieq

JUas [BuLoies Hequen uogoalold

1884 LOPO Sdid | BILLOYED SUBIdBIBIS £85) QYN ‘Wajsig ajeupioo)
sauel usyia Joyiny

ozl 06 09 0t 51 0
joo ) RN




Aimpunog Auedoug snswaﬁ%u

U SR, SHEeWe] ==
B J2UBM MO L/BUISTIEU|

NRART Y B o

WIWEINT 5F O WRWESET Y 5 s

“FEpdN PUR UOROALND 'sauBLIGIEL jo ejes

WUEISUOD B Ui puR MWedp oe sdal pUE ‘UoBWIOILY ‘BIEE BLY JELR 198) sl SuphpL
'suopey) ¢ $)de008 pue sebpajmousoe Jnsenbel sy ‘esodind Jenopsed & a0y sseuy
10 AUNQBILEYOISW JO SHILELIEM DPOIdLU] U U8 BJ6Y) "SI0y PAUIEIGD LOQEULIOM

ay} jo asn ay) 0] 6t 'pe||dW| Jo ssaidxe 'saquelem qU SSYEW PINSK] JEJEWM

{edojunyy Aed ploquiny ayL Jejeanbey sl uo £je|os s1s8. @sn 1o) sseusjeldoudde

By 10 1oy sSBLGY pUB AY)IqEIUBLEIEL ‘'SSaUNaI) ‘SeeUe)a|dLICD Kaeinooe

Bujujuuaiap Joj ueping ay) ‘ssauajeidied 1o sgeUIEW] 'AIBINSIR 10 UopBIUesalds)
AUe Jo fjuesem Ingum .81 98, DepnId ale SdEW DU ‘UGLBULIOIUI "B18D iy

EB51 UBIpaWY YUON UimRg
SIUOY [BULICKIO) HequeeT Uojvelald

1924 LOVO Sdld | Bllol(eD sue|daie)s €861 OVN (WaISAS 01BUIPI0OD
SSuULey uaylfen Loyny

0748 06 09 0 5L O
joo ] RN YW




Financial



8ECTION_{ 2 & pAGE No,_|

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Memo to: Board of Directors

From: Becky Moyle, Accounting & Human Resources Specialist
Date: March 4, 2016

Subject: Financial Report for February 2016

The Financial Report for February 2016 was not completed by the BlueBook publish
date. 1 expect to have the Financial Report completed by the end of the day on Monday
and will email it to you as soon as it is completed. Please let me know if you would like a
paper copy delivered to you.



SECTION_S2bpagEng, |

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

To: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach

Date: March 4, 2016

Re: FY2016/17 Preliminary Budget Estimate
Introduction

The purpose of this agenda item is to share with you our preliminary estimate of incremental
percentage change between the current year’s budget and the projected FY 2016/17 budget.
Staff requires additional time to finalize the budget estimate and will be providing summary
information and a verbal presentation at the Board meeting.

We are still in the early stages of budget development. However, this process is being
introduced now to assist our municipal customers in their budget planning needs which may
include consideration of Proposition 218 requirements for any proposed rate increases.

The following is a brief background on the status of Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) -related
projects.

Capital Improvement Plan Update

Background

In November 2011, the Board approved the District’s CIP to address aging infrastructure. Staff
is currently in the process of updating the CIP. The first major projects to be completed were:
the Ranney Collector 3 Rehabilitation, Techite Line replacement, and Prop 50 Intertie Project.

In the short term, the project sequence in our CIP calls for the following projects:

e The Ranney Collector 1 & 1A Lateral Replacement project. (in process with construction
during summer and fall 2016)

* The Blue Lake/FCSD River Crossing project. (in process with construction during
2016/17 fiscal year)

¢ Ruth Lake Cabin replacement (construction during 2016/17 fiscal year)
SCADA system upgrade (in process with implementation during 2016/17 fiscal year)

Financing of the initial CIP Projects
With the assistance of Bartle Wells & Associates, a District Financial Plan was developed in

early 2011 to prepare and guide the District for future financing, especially for CIP projects. To
finance the Ranney 3 and Techite projects it was concluded that the best option was to use bank



secTioN 2 b PaGENO._2-

financing for both projects combined. In August 2011, the Board approved securing financing
for both projects in the amount of $1.4 million. US Bank was selected to provide the loan to
finance the two projects at a 2.63% interest rate over 10 years. In addition, a portion of the
Techite project funding was obtained through a FEMA/CalOES hazard mitigation grant and
customer charges.

The Ranney Collector 1 & 1A Lateral Replacement project is partially funded through a Prop 84
IRWMP grant of $666,000. The remainder will be financed through customer charges and use
of reserves.

The Blue Lake/FCSD River Crossing project is anticipated to be 100% grant funded through a
combination of FEMACalOES hazard mitigation grant of $2.1M and a Prop 84 IRWMP grant of
$700,000. The project feasibility study will be completed soon which will include an updated
cost estimate for the preferred project alternative — over or under the river. Adequacy of the
funding for the project will be evaluated at that time.

Status of Priority Projects

The Ranney Collector 1 & 1A Lateral Replacement project construction contract has been
awarded. Staff is awaiting receipt of the construction schedule from the contractor.

The Blue Lake/FCSD River Crossing project is anticipated to be constructed in FY16/17.
District has applied for a FEMA hazard mitigation grant in the amount of $2.1M. The
FEMA/CalOES grant will be received once FEMA completes the NEPA process. As you know,
there were some challenges with the cultural resource findings. It is expected that this project
will be 100% grant funded with no cost to the District or our municipal customers. Accordingly,
there is a net zero affect for this project in our FY16/17 draft budget.

The Ruth Lake Cabin replacement was put out to bid and no responses were received. District
staff is evaluating available options to move this project forward.

The SCADA System upgrade design is going out for competitive bid this spring.
Implementation will occur during the FY16/17.

Preliminary Budget for 2016/17

Staff will make a verbal presentation at the Board meeting.

Next Steps:

There is a Muni meeting on March 16th and with the Board’s concurrence, staff will share the
preliminary FY16/17 draft budget estimates and get input on the project budget funding so as to
advance the discussion, Staff will continue to refine the draft budget and present components to
the Board over the next several months with the goal of final adoption at our July 2016 Board
meeting,.



SECTION J Z.C pAGE NO._ | .

o o o

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Memo to: Board of Directors

From: John Friedenbach, Business Manager
Date: March 3, 2016

Subject: Audit FYE June 30, 2015

The District Audit Committee and staff will meet with the Auditor on March 7, 2016, See attached Audit
Committee agenda. A draft audited financial statement, a copy of which is attached, will be reviewed and the
auditor will present a detailed explanation of their audit process and findings. The final audited financial
statements will be distributed to cur Board via hard copy at the March o™ meeting.

Once again, the District has received a “clean” audit opinion. |.E. “_..In our opinion, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the business-type activities of
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District as of June 30, 2015, and the changes in financial position and cash flows
thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America. ...”

The auditor will also make a summary presentation at our Board meeting on March o™,

This is the third and final year under contract with Hunter, Hunter, and Hunt for auditing services. Staff has been
impressed with their service and professionalism. We appreciate the level of competency of their firm’s
personnel.

The Audit Committee will make a recommendation to the Board regarding approval of the Audit Report.



SECTION \J2C PAGENO.__2
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
828 7' Street, Eureka

Audit Committee Meeting

March 7, 2016 3:00 pm.

The Audit Committee is a standing committee of the Board composed of the following
representatives: the Secretary/Treasurer and one additional Board member appointed by the
President.

The purpose of the Audit Committee is to oversee the District’s annual audit process, and to

provide input to the Board about the process. The Committee is advisory to the Board of
Directors and shall have no decision-making authority.

1. Review the draft audit report for FY 2014-15
2. Status report on internal controls
3. Discussion of documents to be signed or issued

4. Other discussion items, if any

Note: The Brown Act requires posting of agendas for meetings of standing committees of the Board. This is
such a notice.

(Posted and mailed March 1, 2016)



SECTION_JJ2¢_PAGENO. .3

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
and

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Year Ended Juie 30, 2015

& i
RO
Ty



SECTION )2 ¢ PAGENO._{___

TABLE OF CONTENTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

Statement of Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes
In Net Position - Proprietary Fund

Statement of Cash Flows - Proprietary Fund

Notes to Financial Statements

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Schedule of the Local Government’s Proportionate Share of the Net
Pension Liability

Schedule of Pension Contributions

3

Schedule of Funding Progress For Other Post—EmQonment Benefits

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION,
Independent Auditors’ Report on Interrf”a,l Obntrol over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and other Matters BaSed on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors’ Report on Compliance for Each Major Program
And on Internal Control over Compliance required by OMB Circular A-133

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
Summary Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings

12

13
14

16-38

39
40

41

42 - 43

44 - 46
47
48 - 53

54 - 55



SECTION_J2¢_PAGENO.S

Hunter, Hunter? Hunt, LLP

Phone 707-476-0674

1315 Fourth Street CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Fax TO7A76.0678

Eureka, California 95501 — SN, www.hhh-cpa.com
Members of the AICPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Eureka, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities of Humboldt Bay
Municipal Water District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which comprise the District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generaliy accepted in the United States of America as well as
accounting systems prescribed by the State Confroller's Office and state regulations governing special
districts; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’'s Responsibility ,;:"'---

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these_ﬁfﬁm‘al statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standard#’’ g’én;brally accepted in the United States of America and
the standards applicable to financial audits etMained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States aﬁd,!he State Controller's Minimum Audit Requirements and
Reporting Guidelines for California Special Districts. Those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to cobtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity's internal control. According, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinions.

Opinions
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the business-type activities of Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District as of June 30,

2015, and the changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

o=



SECTION_J42< paGE NO.
Emphasis of Matter B ..CL,_

Change in Accounting Principle

As discussed in Note 16 of the financial statements, the District adopted the provisions of Governmentai
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions
- an Amendment of GASB Statement No. 27 and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date - An Amendment to GASB Statement No. 68.
Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's
discussion and anaiysis, the schedule of local government’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability, the schedule of pension contributions, and the schedule of funding progress for other post-
employment benefits be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any. sgurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purposesa?ﬂformlng an opinion on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Humboldt Bay mblpal Water District's basic financial statements. The
accompanying schedule of expenditures of Yederal awards is presented for purposes of additional
analysis as required by Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audifs of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, and is not a required part of the basic financial statements.
Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a
whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 22,
2016, on our consideration of Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District's internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of
an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

February 22, 2016



SECTION_.J 2 ¢ PAGE NO,_ t

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

&
&
QO



SECTION_.\2¢. PAGE NO. %’

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
For FY 2014-15

The purpose of this section of the financial statements is to present management's discussion
and analysis of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District’s (District) financial performance
during the fiscal year that ended on June 30, 2015 (FY 2014-15). We recommend that readers
review this in conjunction with the remainder of the financial statements.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

We would first like to provide a brief overview of the District and the customers served which will
provide a context for the financial statements and the discussion which follows.

The Regional Water System:

The District was formed in 1956 pursuant to the Municipal Water District Act of the California
Water Code. The District completed construction of the regional water system in 1961, and
service commenced to the Cities of Eureka and Arcata and two pulp mills on the Samoa
Peninsula. Since the initial construction, a number of additions and improvements to the
regional system have been made, and additional wholesale customers have joined the regional
system. Since inception, this regional water system has efficiently and reliably served the
municipal and industrial water needs of customers in the Humboldt Bay region.

The regional water system includes the following components: R.W. Matthews Dam (which
forms Ruth Lake) and the Gosselin Power House, |r;£|' rinity County; and the following facilities in
Humboldt County: 1) diversion works on the MadR ves northeast of Arcata capable of supplying
75 million gallons per day, 2) treatment facnllue ,including the Lloyd L. Hecathorn Turbidity
Reduction Facility, 3} over 35 miles of pipe W¥astructure around the Humboldt Bay area to
deliver water to the wholesale customers,g 4' extensive communication and control systems
to operate and control the regional syﬁte}n including the John R. Winzler Operations and
Control Center.

Customers Served and Associated Wholesale Water Contracts:

The District supplies treated domestic water to seven municipal agencies on a wholesale basis.
The municipalities served by the District are the Cities of: Arcata, Blue Lake and Eureka, and
the Community Services Districts of: Fieldbrook/Glendale, Humboidt, Manila and McKinleyville.
Via the wholesale relationship, the District serves water to an estimated residential population of
88,000 (approximately 65% of the entire County), and to numerous businesses, industries and
educational institutions.

The District provides retail water service to about 200 customers who reside outside the service
territory of other water purveyors, but are located in close proximity to District facilities.

The District also has facilities to supply unireated water to customers on the Samoa Peninsula.
The District was serving one wholesale industrial customer (puip mill) until it ceased operations
on October 15, 2008.

The District has long-term contracts in place with each of its seven wholesale municipal
customers. These contracts have a 20-year term and will be in place through 2019 (or
technically until the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Debt service to the
State is paid in full shortly thereafter). The wholesale municipal customers have an opportunity
to extend these contracts by up to ten years.



8ECTION_J 2¢ PAGENO._ 9

These contracts define the terms and conditions by which the District provides water service to
its customers. The contracts specify that all operating, maintenance and capital costs
associated with the regional water system are paid for by the wholesale customers. The
contracts also specify the manner in which these costs are allocated among the wholesale
customers. Furthermore, they specify that revenues received by the District, other than those
associated with wholesale water sales, are credited back to the wholesale customers, and thus
offset the costs that the wholesale customers otherwise pay. Exampies of such revenues which
are credited back to the wholesale customers inciude the District's share of 1% property taxes,
power sales from the hydro-electric facility, interest income, revenues associated with retail
water service, and other miscellaneous revenues.

A summary of the current cost allocation provisions of the wholesale contract is as follows:

Municipal Industrial
Type of Cost Customers’ Cost Customer(s)
Share Cost Share
Debt Service for Turbidity Reduction Facility 100% 0%
Operation, Maintenance and Capital Expenditures 100% 0%
associated with drinking water treatment facilities
(i.e. facilities associated with providing safe
drinking water in accordance with federal and
state requirements) ,-f.‘
s
L
Operation, Maintenance and Capital Expendiffufes
associated with all other aspects of th;—;».f.__grh.f;fdﬁal 55% increased to | 45% decreased
water supply, pumping and distributiéﬂ_1s_'ys'tem 100% effective to 0% effective
(other than power for pumping water) April 1, 2009* April 1, 2009*
*Change in % due to puip mill closure.
Power Costs for Pumping Water In proportion to nfa
actual power
use.

Additionally, the wholesale contracts provide that "Additions to Reserves” may be charged to the
wholesale customers should the District need to replenish its General Reserve level. There
were $100,000 in charges for additions to reserves to the wholesale customers for FY 2014-15,
and $145,000 in charges for additions to reserves to the wholesale customers for FY 2013-14.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements. The District's basic financial statements are comprised of several
components: a) the Statements of Net Position {page 12), b) the Statements of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (page 13), and ¢) the Statements of Cash Flows (page
14). These financial statements present the District’s financial position on an enterprise fund
basis. An enterprise fund accounts for goods or services which are provided to outside parties
—in the District’s case, this is wholesale and retail water service.

-4



SECTION_J2¢ ,PAGENO. (O __

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the District's
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statements offer short- and
long-term financial information about District activities.

The Statement of Net Position includes all of the District's assets and liabilities and provides
infformation about the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and the
obligations to District creditors (liabilities). It also provides the basis for evaluating the capital
structure of the District and assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District.

All of the current year's revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the results of the
District's operations over the past year and can be used to determine the District's general
financial well-being and whether the District has recovered its costs through its water charges.

The final financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The primary purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the District's cash receipts and cash payments during
the reporting period. The statement reports cash receipts, cash payments, and the changes in
cash resulting from operations and investments. It also provides answers to such questions as
where did cash come from, what was cash used for, and what was the change in cash balance
during the reporting period.

There may be minor rounding differences betwe@n the following tables and the financial

statements. f %
""-.f’
\'ﬁ w?

0 The District's net position was $18, 8@8 33’3 as of June 30, 2015, an increase of $3,998,220
compared to June 30, 2014.

o Revenues were $9,823,844, an increase of $826,976 from FY 2013-14.
0 Expenses were $5,825,624, a decrease of $1,637,172 from FY 2013-14.

0 Notes payable net of current portion is $4,930,551, a decrease of $685,068 from FY 2013-
14,

DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our analysis of the District begins on page 12 of the financial statements. The Statements of
Net Position present information on all of the District's assets and liabilities, with the difference
between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating. A summary of the District's Condensed Statements of Net Position is presented
in Table 1.



SECTION_{z¢ PAGENO._!l___

TABLE 1
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
As Restated Change

ASSETS FY 201415 FY 2013-14 $ %

Current Assets $2,004,777 $4,954,592 1 -$2,049,815 | -59.5%

Restricted Cash & Investments $3,421,185 $3,800,109 -$378,924 | -10.0%

Land, Property & Equipment

{net Accumulated Depreciation) $22,765,357 $18,945,068 | $3,820,289 | 20.2%

Total Assets $28,191,319 $27,609,769 $491,550 1.8%
Deferred Outflows of Resources $261,630 $230,637 $30,993 | 13.4%
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities $1,433,582 $4,317,414 | -$2,883,832 | -66.8%

Unearned grant revenue $30,005 $33,321 -$3,316 | -10.0%

Post-Retirement Health Benefits Obligation $691,690 $562,404 $129,286 | -23.0%

Net Pension Liability $1,969,634 $2,561,635 -$592,001 | -23.1%

Long-term Debt $4,930,551 $5,615,619 -$685,068 | -12.2%
Total Liabilities $9,055,462 $13,090,393 | -$4,034,931 | -30.8%
Deferred Inflows of Resources $559,254 - $559,254 N/A
NET POSITION V4
Net Investment in Capital Assets $1 T_[gﬂ' 9,315 $12,647,910 | $4,501,805 | 356%

Restricted (for debt service) ~5707,178 $706,962 $216 0.0%

Restricted (for capital projects) L/ ';_%’I',%QAOG $1,685,098 -$415,692 | -24.7%

Restricted (for credits to municipalities) L, ~ $403,085 $346,872 $56,213 | 16.2%

Unrestricted i -$691,151 -$546,829 -$144,322 26.4%

TOTAL NET POSITION $18,838,233 $14,840,013 $3,998,220 26.9%

As documented in Note 16 to the audited financial statements, recording the full pension liability
for PERS at June 30, 2014, caused the unrestricted net position to be a deficit balance as of
June 30, 2014. The deficit continued for the year ended June 30, 2015.

As can be seen from the table above, the net position as of June 30, 2015 was $18,838,233, an
increase of $3,998,220 (26.9%) as compared to June 30, 2014. The majority of this increase is
related to the grant funded construction projects.

The largest portion of the District’s net position is its investment in capital assets called property
and equipment (e.g., land, buildings, equipment, and water system infrastructure), less any
related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The District uses these capital
assets to provide water services to its wholesale and retail customers, and consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the District's investment in its capital
assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this
debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used
to satisfy these liabilities.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position (page 13) present
information showing how the District's net position changed during the most recent fiscal year.
All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the
change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in this statement for some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods

-6 -




SEGTION_ ]2 C_PAGENO._(Z- _

{e.g. uncollected taxes, or earned but unused vacation leave). A summary of the District's
Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position is presented in
Table 2.

TABLE 2
CONDENSED STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET
POSITION
As
Restated Change
FY 201415 | FY 2013-14 $ %

REVENUES

*Operating:

Water Sales $5,119,386 | $4,938,217 $181,169 3.7%
Power Sales $143,226 $122,682 $20,544 16.8%
SRF Debt Service Receipt $547,337 $547,337 $0 0.0%

Other Operating $17,026 $11,102 $5,924 53.4%

*Non-Operating:

Taxes $811,219 $764,167 $47,052 6.2%
Interest Income $23,260 $25,109 -$1,849 -7.4%
Grant Revenues $3,162,390 | $2,588,254 $574,136 22.2%
Total Revenues $9,823,844 | $8,096,868 $826,976 9.2%

EXPENSES &

Operating expense $4,629,181 | §4,494,739 $137,442 3.1%
Non-operating expense $26,838 .,‘.';.‘.;f:-i$33,007 -$6,169 | -18.7%
Loss on asset disposal $0,008+ V' $4,548 -$4,548 | -100.0%
Depreciation $1 ,056,2@2 ' $975,723 $80,519 8.3%
Grant expenses $337‘1§'ﬂ 1 $2,164,154 | -$1,826,483 -84.4%
Less Reimbursements -$224,308 -$206,375 -$17,933 8.7%
Total Expenses $5,825,624 | $7,462,796 | -$1,837,172 -21.9%

Change in Net Position $3,998,220 | $1,534,072 $2,464,148 | 160.4%

Beginning Net Position $14,840,013 | $15,636,939 -$796,926 -5.1%

Restatement for Pension Liability - | -$2,330,998 | $2,330,998 | -100.0%

Ending Net Position $16.838,233 | $14,840,013 $3,998,220 26.9%

While the Statements of Net Position show the changes in financial position, the Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position explain the nature and source of these
changes. As shown in Table 2, the change in net position increased by $3,998,220 compared
to the prior year. The changes in revenues and expenses which contributed to this change in
net position are reflected in the above line-item detail.

Although the change in current year net position is shown as an increase of $3,998,220, it is
important to understand that depreciation (a non-cash expense) is included in the expenses.
Absent depreciation, the change in current year net position would be a gain of $5,054,462
($3,998,220 + 1,056,242). The majority of this increase is related to the grant funded
construction projects.

As a supplement to the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position,

Chart 1 presents operating and non-operating revenues eamed in FY 2014-15 by category

along with the proportionate share of the total revenue each category represents. The total
~ -



SECTION_{2C PAGENO._[3

revenues reflected in Chart 1 are $9,823,844. The municipal customer receipts of $547,337 for
repayment of the Districts SRF Loan for the Turbidity Reduction Facility, which is further
described in the subsequent Long-Term Debt section and the grant funding receipts of
$3,162,390, are associated with repayment of long-term debt and special funding respectively
and not current operations. The major fluctuations in revenues and expenses relate to the
increased grant funding and related expenditures. The Power revenue was slightly higher due
to increased rainfall compared to the prior year and management's decision to reduce outflows
to maximize water retention in the reservoir in response to the drought conditions during the
prior year.

CHART 1
REVENUES RECEIVED BY CATEGORY FOR FY 2014-15

Other Revenues,
$40,286; 0.4%

i Grants,

$3,162,390; 32.2% Total Revenues

$9,823,844

& O Wholesale Municipal
Q [ Retail
OTax Revenues
@ Power

O Debt Service
Debt Service,
$547,337; 5.6%

@ Grants

Other Revenues

\
_/ )

|
|

i Power, Wholesale Municipal,
| $143,226; 1,5%

$4,800,525; 48.9%

Tax Revenues, 1
$811,219; 8.2% Retalil,
$318,861; 3.2%

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The District has invested approximately $58,200,000 in a broad range of infrastructure for the
regional water system. Table 3 presents a summary of the District’'s property and equipment.
The majority of the current year additions in the amount of $5,420,161 is comprised of the
Techite transmission line replacement in the amount of $4,193,499. As described below in
Capital Improvement Program, this project was partially funded through the FEMA Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program. Correspondingly, there was a reduction in Projects in Progress of
$655,337 resulting from the reclassification of prior year capitalization of costs related to the
Techite project.



SEGTION .J2 € PAGENO. 1% ___
TABLE 3
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Change
FY 2014-15 FY 2013-14 $ %
Buildings $1,483,244 $1,221,352 $261,892 | 21.4%
Equip - Auto/Mobile/Office/Radio/Tools $2,417,532 $2,280,645 $136,887 6.0%
Water System Infrastructure (excludes land) $54,312,395 | $49,291,013 | $5,021,382 | 10.2%
Total Property and Equipment $58,213,171 | $52,793,010 | $5,420,161 | 10.3%
Less Accumulated Depreciation -$37,856,493 | -$36,817,763 | -$1,038,730 2.9%
Add Projects in Progress $1,036,707 $1,597,849 -$561,142 | -35.1%
Total Property & Equipment {net of Depr) $21,393,385 | $17,573,096 | $3,820,289 | 21.8%

LONG-TERM DEBT

At FY 2014-15 year-end, the District has two long-term notes payable outstanding for a totai
amount of $5,615,643. The first has an outstanding balance of $4,652,363 (long-term note
payable of $4,105,026 plus current liabilities-current portion of note payable of $547,337). This
is the SRF Loan used to finance the Turbidity Reduction Facility. The SRF loan carries no
interest (i.e. zero percent), and has a repayment term of 20 years. The initial SRF loan balance
at its inception in 2004 was $10,946,736. The debt service for the SRF Loan is paid in its
entirety by the District's wholesale municipal custoﬁQqs in accordance with the wholesale water
contracts (via Price Factor 1). X 2: ’
"

The second note payable has an outstandﬁﬁﬁalance of $963,280 (long-term note payable of
$825,525 plus current liabilities-current pbrtion of note payable of $137,755). This is the Water
System Improvement Loan or US Bank loasf, used to finance various improvements to the water
system consisting generally of well and pump improvements, and pipeline replacement. The US
Bank loan carries interest at 2.63%, and has a repayment term of 10 years. The District makes
semi-annual payments of $81,094 including principal and interest to US Bank, for a resulting
annual payment of $162,188. The Water System Improvement loan balance at its inception in
2011 was $1,418,000. The debt service for the Water System Improvement Loan is paid in its
entirety by the District's wholesale municipal customers in accordance with the wholesale water
contracts (via Price Factor 2).

DESCRIPTION OF CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS OR CONDITIONS THAT MAY HAVE A
SIGNIFICANT EFFECT ON THE FINANCIAL POSITION OR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Pulp Mill Closure
On October 15, 2008 (FY2008-09), the District's only industrial customer, Evergreen Pulp, shut

down its pulp mill for “three to six months”. The mill did not reopen and was sold on February 6,
2009 to Samoa Acquisition Corporation (SAC). The District had an interim agreement with the
new owner until April 30, 2009. The District shut off the water supply to the mill on May 1, 2009.

The mill had been paying 45% of the District’s operation, maintenance, and capital expenditure
costs associated with all aspects of the regional water supply except for the drinking water
treatment facilities. For 2008-09, the mill's contribution to the cost of the regional water system
would have been approximately $1.1 million.



SECTION.Jz ¢ PAGENO. (5

Under the terms of the District's Ordinance 16 contracts, costs were shifted to the remaining
wholesale customers (seven municipal agencies) beginning April 1, 2009. Whereas the
municipalities had previously been paying 55% of costs, they now pay 100%.

SAC did try, under the name Freshwater Tissue, to raise financing to restart the mill but
announced on September 28, 2010, that it was unsuccessful and was trying to sell off assets.
The mill is not expected to reopen in the foreseeable future. This industrial property was
recently acquired by the Humboldt Bay Harbor Recreation and Conservation District for
development.

In order to replace the revenue that was being generated by its former industrial customers, the
District has been conducting a comprehensive water resources planning effort to identify
possible new customers or uses for the water that is now available. Any water use options that
are deemed feasible will likely take several years to implement.

Capital Improvement Program
Going forward, the District needs to implement a substantial capital improvement program (CIP)

given the age of its infrastructure (50 years). Mechanisms to finance CIP projects include
pursuing grant funding, issuing new long-term debt, and working with wholesale municipal
customers to increase revenues through water rates.

The first completed large infrastructure project undertaken was the Ranney Collector #3
Rehabilitation project. For financing purposes this was bundled with the Techite Pipeline
Replacement project. The funding plan for these combined projects consists of the following

components; &
,v-' N
Collected from District’s wholesale customers 'f(ar the Ranney project $ 322,000
Utilization of the District’s Drinking Water. Famﬂﬁes Plant Reserve 630,000
US Bank Loan (10 year loan at 2. 63%) St 1,418,000
FEMA Grant for Techite project 9y 2.795.000*
Total Projected Project Costs and Flnaﬁang $ 5,165.000

*For the Techite Replacement project, the District received the grant agreement for a Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) grant in the amount of $2,795,000. The project was
put out to bid and a contractor was selected prior to the June 30, 2014 fiscal year end. The
contractor commenced the construction project in August 2014 and completed it prior to June
30, 2015.

Another large project is replacement of the District's pipeline that crosses over the Mad River to
serve the City of Blue Lake and the Fieldbrook-Glendale Community Services District. The
project cost is estimated to be $3,500,000 in current dollars. For this project, the District has
been awarded a State of California Department of Water Resources Proposition 84 grant via the
North Coast Integrated Regional Water Management Plan in the amount of $700,000. Similar to
the Techite Replacement project, the District has received a commitment for a Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation grant in the amount of $2,668,750.
FEMA has initiated its National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) process for this project. Once
this is completed, the District anticipates receiving the FEMA grant agreement. Any shortfall will
be funded by the District through financing and/or water rates.

The Emergency Intertie project is a multijurisdictional project that the District is leading. The

project partners are: HBMWD, the City of Arcata, the City of Eureka and the McKinleyville

Community Services District. This project installs new water transmission interconnections

between the agencies to allow for water supply redundancy in the event of a supply line

disruption. A State of California Department of Public Health Proposition 50 grant in the amount

of $3,648,550 has been received for this project. The Grant Agreement was executed at the
-10 -



SECTION, - 2C PAGE NO._{(.

beginning of the 2013/14 fiscal year. The project was put out to bid and a contractor was
selected. The construction began prior to the end of the 2013/14 fiscal year and was completed
prior to June 30, 2015. The assets created via this construction project were transferred to the
respective agencies via the terms and conditions of the Special Facilities Agreement dated May
3, 2013.

-11 -



8ECTION_12¢ PAGENO,_J F_

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC1
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
June 30, 2015

ASSETS:
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash & cash equivalents
Accounts receivable
Grants receivable
Interest receivable
Prepaid expenses
Deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS:
Restricted cash equivalents
Land
Projects in progress
Property & equipment, net

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension related deferred outflows

LIABILITIES:
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages, payroll taxes & benefits
Contract retentions payable
Interest payable
Accrued absences
Current other postemployment benefits obligation
Current portion of notes payable

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

a

g’

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:
Unearned grant revenue
Other postemployment benefits obligation, net
Net pension liability
Note payables, net
TQTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Pension related deferred inflows

NET POSITION:
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for credits to municipalities
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See accompanying notes,
-12-

SECTION. 2 2C PAGENO. ¥

535,868
773,318
518,932
5,408
166,251
5,000

2,004,777

3,421,185
1,371,972
1,036,707
20,356,678

28,191,319

261,630

137,568
137,392
125,838
8,444
271,937
67,311
685,092

1,433,582

30,005
691,690
1,969,634
4,930,551

9,055,462

559,254

17,149,714
707,178
1,269,406
403,085

(691,150)

$ 18,838,233




SECTION )z ¢ PAGE NO._ [
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

OPERATING REVENUES:

Water sales:
Municipal customers $ 4,800,525
Retail customers 318,861
Debt service receipts 547,337
Total water sales 5,666,723
Power sales 143,226
Other operating revenues 17,026
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES 5,826,975

OPERATING EXPENSES:

Payroll & related costs 2,716,049
Employee retirement contributions 321,684
Power & pumping 641,850
Engineering 82,218
Materials & supplies 128,631
Repairs & maintenance 190,358
Auto & travel expenses 56,462
Insurance 94,511
Depreciation p 1,056,242
Legal & accounting fees N 43,016
Professional assistance ' 126,006
Tax & license T 107,420
Training ~YX 23,950
Bad debt . aad 333
Other operating expenses < ) 96,603
Total operating expenses before reimbursements 5,685,423
Reimbursements for services & costs (224,308)
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES 5,461,115
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 365,860

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):

Tax revenues 811,219
Grant revenues 3,162,390
Grant expenses {337,671)
Interest revenues 23,260
Interest expense (26,838)
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 3,632,360
CHANGE IN NET POSITION 3,998,220

BEGINNING NET POSITION, AS RESTATED 14,840,013

ENDING NET POSITION $ 18,838,233

See accompanying notes.
13-



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT SE GTION‘—}LL-C-'—' PAGE NO.__2_;_Q__

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Receipts from customers $ 5812192
Payments to suppliers (2,060,222)
Payments to employees (2,957,649}
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 794,321
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Taxes for general operations 811,219
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 811,219
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL & RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments to acquire, construct & improve capital assets {5,152,001)
Receipts of grants for capital financing 3,611,848
Advances repaid to municipal partnership (335,427)
Principal paid on capital debt (681,515)
interest paid on capital debt (28,015)
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY
CAPITAL & RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES (2.685,110)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Interest received 23,594
NET CASH PROVIDED {USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVITIES 23,594
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH & CASI}E&,UVALENTS {1,055,976)
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGJN'NING OF YEAR 5,013,029
CASH & CASH EQUIVALEﬁTS,AT END OF YEAR $ 3957,053
FINANCIAL STATEMENT PRESENTATION REC{NClL[ATION
Cash & cash equivalents $ 535,868
Restricted cash equivalents 3,421,185
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $ 3,957,053

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME {LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating Income (loss) $ 365,860
Adjustments to reconcile cperating income {loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:

Depreciation 1,066,242
Changes in assets & liabilities:
Receivables {238,758)
Prepaid expenses (5.741)
Accounts payable related to operating activities {463,366)
Accrued liabilities 80,084
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED} BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 794,321

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Earned grant revenue of $3,316 recognized in the current year was received
in the prior year.

Grant funded infrastructure in the amount of $2,501,825 with an offsetting
liability was transferred to other jurisdictions.

See accompanying notes.
-14-



SECTION_12C PAGENO. 2]
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (the District) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
government units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted
standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting
principles.

This summary of significant accounting policies of the District is presented to assist in
understanding the financial statements. The financial statements and notes are representations
of management, who is responsible for their integrity and objectivity. These accounting policies
have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements.

Reporting Entity
The District has no oversight responsibility over any other governmental unit and is not
included in any other governmental “reporting entity” as defined in GASB pronouncements.
The Board of Directors are elected by the public and have the decision-making authority to
levy taxes, the power to designate management, the ability to significantly influence
operations, and the primary accountability for fiscal matters.

Nature of Activities ~
The District is a state-authorized special purposeegovernment established to provide water
services to the Humboldt Bay region. ILWRs formed in 1856 under provisions of the
Municipal Water District Act of 1911. Th& Etct provides retail water service to residential
customers, and it contracts with seyghr rﬂUnlclpaI agencies for the purchase of treated
domestic water for resale.

.
g

Basis of Presentation
The financial statements required by GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements —
and Management’s Discussion and Analysis -~ for State and Local Governments, as
amended by GASB Statement No. 63, include a statement of net position, a statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows.

The Disfrict utilizes an enterprise fund, which is a proprietary fund type. Proprietary funds
are used to account for activities similar to those found in the private sector, where the
determination of net income is necessary or useful to sound financial administration.
Enterprise funds account for goods or services that are provided to outside parties. The
District has elected to use the reporting model for special-purpose governments engaged
only in business-type activities. In accordance with the business-type activities reporting
model, the District prepares its statement of cash flows using the direct method.

Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting
Measurement focus refers to what is being measured. Basis of accounting refers to the
timing of the recognition of revenues and expenditures in the accounts and their reporting in
the financial statements.

Proprietary fund types are accounted for on an economic resources measurement focus

using the accrual basis of accounting in which revenues are recognized when earned and
expenses are recognized when the related liabilities are incurred.

-15 -



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIGSECTION J2 (. PAGE NO;_Zz_
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The proprietary fund distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from non-operating
items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and
producing and delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’'s principal ongoing
operations.

The principal operating revenues of the District are charges to customers for sales and
services. Operating expenses for proprietary funds include the cost of sales and services,
administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's practice to
first use specifically designated restricted resources before using unrestricted resources.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
The District evaluates the collectability of water sales and grants receivable in order to
determine the allowance for doubtful accounts. As of June 30, 2015, the District determined
that the various receivables are fully collectible and recorded $0 for the allowance for
doubtful accounts. Based on historical experience, the District does not expect amounts to
become uncollectible, however if they are, they will be charged to operations as a bad debt
expense. The impact of any bad debt expense recorded in the future is expected to be

immaterial to the financial statements.
#»
Cash and Cash Equivalents N
Cash and cash equivalents are conmdered:toﬁe cash on hand, demand deposits, cash with
a fiscal agent, and short-term highly ligig ﬁnvestments that are readily convertible to cash
and mature within 90 days of the dajg«actuired. Cash deposited in external investment
pools are considered to be cash equivajents when deposits and withdrawals may be made
at any time without prior notice or%tnalty. The District participates in two external
investment pools; the Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool and the Local Agency

Investment Fund (LAIF).

LAIF is a fund for pooling surplus cash of local government agencies and is chartered and
administered by the California State Treasurer's Office. LAIF has invested a portion of the
pool funds in Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to
credit risk with the full faith and credit of the State of California collateralizing these investments.
In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities are subject to market risk as to
changes in interest rates.

The Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool is administered by the County of
Humboldt Treasurer's Office and conforms to the California Government Code. The
County’s portfolio normally consists of U.S. Treasury issues, U.S. Agency agreements,
banker's acceptances, and the LAIF. All cash invested by the County in demand deposit
accounts is collateralized to 110 percent with approved U.S. Government securities, such as
Treasury Bills and other U.S. Treasury issues. Normal cash flow withdrawals for operations
are paid on a “one dollar net asset value”. Withdrawals of funds for another purpose, such
as total withdrawal from the County Pool or for an alternative investment of funds, may be
paid out based on fair market value at the County’s discretion.

The District's investment policy does not restrict the amount the District may deposit with
any one issuer and the policy states that all excess funds not required for immediate use be
deposited with LAIF or the Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool.

-16 -



8ECTION_J2< PAGENO.__23_
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The District accounts for cash equivalents in the Humboldt County Treasurer's Invesiment
Pool and the LAIF Pool at cost. Management considers the difference between book value
and fair value immaterial. Fair value is the amount at which a financial instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties.

Capital Assets
Capital assets are defined as assets with an initial cost of $1,000 and projects costing $5,000 or
more. All capital assets are valued at historical cost or esfimated historical cost if actual
historical cost is not available. Assets that individually may be below threshold amounts are
capitalized if collectively they are above the threshold amount.

Additions to and replacements of capital assets are recorded at original cost, which includes
material, labor, overhead, and an allowance for the cost of funds used during construction,
when significant. The costs of betterments or repairs that extend the life of a capital asset
are added to capital accounts.

Depreciation of all exhaustible capital assets is charged as an expense against operations,
with accumulated depreciation reflected in the statement of net position. Depreciation has
been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives are as follows:
l
Dam, pipeline, buildings, water collection sya‘t;r'ﬁz)South Bay
extension, Fieldbrook extension, Blue Lakg @xtension, Lindley

extension, Essex diversion, hydro plant—pdﬁs'fock and piping 40 Years
Pump station and related facilities . " 10-40 Years
Hydro plant turbine and generatorsxl "j.‘ 20 Years
Tools and shop equipment, office eqgtiipment, pipeline

connections, and hydro switchgear and controls 10 Years
Radio communication system and computers 5 Years
Vehicles 5-10 Years
Supplemental construction — except valves 40 Years
Supplemental construction — valves 20 Years

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenditures/expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Investments
The District's adopted investment policy seeks to promote the safety of principal, provide
adequate liquidity for operational needs, earn market rates of return on investments
consistent with liquidity needs and investment quality, and conform to legal requirements.

The District follows the authority governing investments for municipal governments set forth
in the California Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53686. The Code authorizes
the District to invest in obligations of the U.8. Treasury in the form of notes, bonds, bills or
instruments for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for payment. The
District may also invest in registered treasury notes, or bonds of the State of California and

-17 -



SECTION .J 2C_PAGENO._24__

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

commercial paper of “prime” quality as defined by California Government Code Section
53635 and as rated by Standard and Poors Corporation or Moody’s Commercial Paper
Record.

The District’s investment policy states that the District will structure its portfolio to meet cash
requirements for ongoing operations thereby avoiding the need to sell securities prior to their
maturity. The policy does not place formal limits on investment maturities.

Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources represent a consumption of or an addition to net
position that applies to a future period. These outflows and inflows will not be recognized as
expenses and revenues until the appropriate period.

Net Position
Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources. The District reports three categories of net position,
as follows:

Net investment in capital assets - consists of net capital assets reduced by outstanding
balances of any related debt obligations and deferred inflows of resources attributable to
the acquisition, construction, or improvemenfsof those assets and increased by balances
of deferred outflows of resources related t_gtfhﬁse assets.

Restricted net position - net position js, ognsidered restricted if its use is constrained to a
particular purpose. Restrictions a;_e_“ﬁi”ﬁo"sed by creditors, grantors, laws, or regulations.
The District has restricted net poélt_i_of,a for debt service, advance charges related to capital
projects per contracts, and for revenue credits to the seven municipal customers per
Crdinance 16 (see Notes 6, 9, 10 and 11).

Unrestricted net position - consists of all other net position that does not meet the definition
of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position” and is available for general
use by the District. A net position deficit of $691,150 exists at June 30, 2015. See Note 16
for further discussion.

Property Taxes
The lien date for secured property taxes is March 1 of each year. Taxes are levied as of
July 1 on all secured real property and are due and payable November 1 and February 1 of
the following fiscal year. Humboldt County is responsible for assessing, collecting, and
distributing property taxes in accordance with enabling legislation.

Since the passage of California Proposition 13, beginning with fiscal year 1978-79, taxes are
based either on a 1% rate applied to the 1975-76 assessed value of the property, or on 1%
of the sales price of the property on sales transactions and construction which occur after
the 1975-76 assessment. Assessed values on properties (exclusive of increases related to
sales transactions and improvements) can rise at a maximum of 2% per year. The amount
collected by the County is distributed in accordance with State law to the various public
agencies. Therefore, the District does not levy a specific tax rate but receives a share of the
property tax revenue based on State formula. The District's tax rate is $1.00/$100 of
assessed value, the maximum allowable under Proposition 13.

-18 -



SECTION_-/2<C pAGENO.2S
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

During fiscal year 1993-94, an alternate method of property tax allocation (the “Teeter Plan™)
was adopted by the County. Under this plan, the county auditor/controller distributes 100
percent of current secured taxes billed to taxing entities during the current year, whether
collected or not. The District recognizes property tax revenues (including tax increment
revenues) to the extent of each year's tax allocation received or to be received within 60
days after the end of each fiscal year.

Restricted Assets
Assets that are restricted as to withdrawal or use for other than current operations, for the
liquidation of long-term debts or for expenditure in the acquisition or construction of capital
assets are separately reported as restricted assets and not as current assefs.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net
position of the District's California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS) Plan
(the "Plan™) and additions to/deductions from the Plan's fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by CalPERS. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when currently due
and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.
CalPERS audited financial statements are pubp@ally available reports that can be obtained
at the CalPERS' website.

e 4‘

Y

Postemployment Benefits other than Pensblgs -
The District implemented GASB Statpm&nt No. 45 prospectively during the transition year
ending June 30, 2010. The District récouds a liahility on the Statement of Net Position for the
difference between the amount the District contributes for retirees and the actuarially required
contribution for funding postemployment benefits other than pension benefits. The District
prepared a computation of the required contribution for the year ended June 30, 2015 (see Note
14).

NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENT
Cash, cash equivalents, and investment at June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents:

Unrestricted:
U.S. Bank commercial checking (old) $ 1,105
U.S. Bank commercial checking (new) 436,585
Petty cash 650
LAIF 1,595
Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool 95,933
Total unrestricted cash and cash equivalents 535,868

-19 -



SECTION_J2¢_ PAGE NO._26__
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Restricted:

U.S. Bank Money Market Account 159,840

U.S. Bank Money Market Account restricted
for loan repayment 547,393
U.S. Bank “Prop 50” Capital Project Fund Account 294,155
Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool 2,419,797
Total restricted cash and cash equivalents 3,421,185
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 3957053

The U.S. Bank commercial checking account balances are carried at cost. One of the U.S.
Bank money market accounts is restricted for servicing the Safe Drinking Water State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan (see Note 9). The District transfers $136,834 quarterly from a fund in the
Humboldt County Treasurer's Investment Pool to the restricted U.S. Bank money market
account. U.S. Bank, acting as a fiscal agent, administers the semiannual loan payments for a
total annual payment of $547,337.

Restricted cash and cash equivalents include restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, laws,
regulations, and designations imposed by the Board of Directors (see Note 10). Restricted cash
and cash equivalents in the Humboldt County Treasurer’s Investment Pool are as follows:

e
Restricted for debt service o‘? A $ 47,822
Restricted for municipalities f‘ . 422,289
Restricted for capital projects Lval 1,949,686
Total restricted cash in County Invesmmpool $ 2419797

At June 30, 2015, the balances in the U.S“. Bank accounts exceeded federally insured limits by
$1,803,249. The amounts in government accounts held by U.S. Bank are collateralized at 110
percent by the Bank. The District has not experienced any losses in these accounts and
management believes that the District is not exposed to any significant credit risk related to
these accounts.

The District participates in two external investment pools: the Humboldt County Treasurer's
Investment Pool and the LAIF. These investments are exempted from the credit risk
categorization requirement because they are not securities.

NOTE 3 - ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable from customers at June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Resale customers:

City of Eureka $ 394,018
City of Arcata 80,648
Humboldt CSD 65,737
McKinleyville CSD 65,230
Others 42,109

Subtotal resale customers 647,742

-20 -



SECTION_32< PAGENO._21_
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Maintenance and operations charges to others 71,781
Domestic customers and others 42,410
Hydroelectric sales, Pacific Gas & Electric 11,385

Total accounts receivable $ 773318

NOTE 4 - GRANTS RECEIVABLE, UNEARNED GRANT REVENUE, GRANT REVENUES
AND GRANT EXPENSES

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA)

The District was awarded a capital grant from FEMA to be used for the Techite pipeline seismic
retrofit project. FEMA originally obligated $2,185,178 in funds and has since granted the
District's request for supplemental funding in the amount of $610,000. The grant is
administered by the California Office of Emergency Services (CalOES), formerly the California
Emergency Management Agency (CalEMA). Federal funds are available for 75 percent of the
total eligible costs of approximately $3,700,000. Payments are made on a reimbursement basis
with 10 percent retention withheld from each payment to be released at the project’s closeout.

FEMA and California Department of Water Resources (CDWR)

The District plans to use funding from FEMA and GDWR to replace the District's pipeline that
crosses over the Mad River to serve the Ci :gf*:Blue Lake and the Fieldbrook-Glendale
Community Services District. The project cost jg §slimated to be $3,500,000.

I
The District was awarded a Proposition ;ﬁﬂf(ﬁﬁund 1) capital grant from CDWR via the North
Coast Integrated Regional Water Manag&mnarit Plan (NCIRWMP) in the amount of $700,000.

FEMA has approved a Phase One funding request for $220,000, of which FEMA has obligated
a 75% Federal share of $165,000. These funds are available for eligible reimbursements which
tnclude a cultural resource survey and design plans. The District has until September of 2016
to complete Phase One. The grant is administered by CalOES.

Upon FEMA's determination of eligibility for construction funding, FEMA will consider the
District’s request to increase the project cost from $2,800,000 (with a $2,100,000 Federal share)
to $3,558,334 ($2,668,750 Federal share).

CDWR

The District was awarded a Proposition 84 (Round 2) capital grant from CDWR via NCIRWMP
in the amount of $667,000 to be used to replace pipe laterals in Collectors 1 and 1A. The
Proposition 84 Sub-Grantee Agreement for this grant was entered into on October 29, 2014.
Construction is expected to begin in the spring of 2016 and completed in the fall of 2016.

California Department of Public Health (CDPH)
The District was awarded a Proposition 50 capital grant from CDPH not to exceed $3,648,550 to

be used for new water transmission interconnections (interties) between the participating
jurisdictions to allow for water supply redundancy in the event of a supply line disruption. The
grant is administered by the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). Payments are
made on a reimbursement basis with 5% retention withheld only on the claims that the District
has withheld 5% from the contractor. There is no requirement that the District provide matching
funds.

-21 -



J2 2
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRI%%CTION-‘-—-—S-—- PAGE NO._E__
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Grants Receivable

Grants receivable for the year ended June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

CalOES Techite project $ 279,518
CalOES Blue Lake project 20,608
SWRCB Interties project 186,221
CDWR Blue Lake project 32,585

Total grants receivable $ 518,932

The CalOES Techite project grant receivable includes $279,518 of retentions on claims
submitted from April 2012 through June 2015. The CalOES Blue Lake project grant receivable
includes $10,341 of retentions on claims submitted from April 2014 through June 2015. The
CDWR Blue Lake project grant receivable includes $1,629 of retentions on claims submitted
from December 2014 through June 2015. The SWRCB grant receivable at includes $125,838
of retentions on claims submitted from January 2014 through June 2015. As of June 30, 2015,
the District has recorded contract retentions payable of $125,838 for amounts withheld from
payments to one of the contractors providing services on the Proposition 50 grant funded
interties project.

Unearned Grant Revenue p

i .

In May 2012, the District received an admmmtgaﬁie share allowance of $40,136 from CalOES
for the Techite pipeline project. During the yeép &nded June 30, 2014, the District received an
additional administrative allowance of $8 J'§'&»

For the year ended June 30, 2015, granYadmlnlstrative expenses incurred and thus earned
were $3,316.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, unearned grant revenue was $30,005.
Grant Revenues

Grant revenues for the year ended June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

CalOES Techite project $ 2,290,175
CalOES Blue Lake project 58,887
SWRCB Interties project 780,743
CDWR Blue Lake project 32.585

Total grant revenues $ 3,162,390

Grant Expenses

As outlined in a special facilities agreement between the participating jurisdictions, the District
has the right and obligation to complete the interties project funded by the Proposition 50 capital
grant. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District transferred portions of the constructed
property to the City of Arcata and the McKinleyville Community Services District. Amounts
transferred to the City of Arcata and the McKinleyville Community Services District are
$1,528,119 and $973,706, respectively.

-22-



- , 2
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRRECTION. JZC PAGENO. 21

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The transfer is considered to be a voluntary nonexchange transaction and as such, grant
expenses and the related liability are recognized in the period when the grantor approves the
costs as eligible. The District incurred $780,743 in eligible intertie construction costs during the
year ended June 30, 2015. The District has recognized $337,671 as grant expenses, a related
liability labeled property transfer payable, and as a current asset labeled property to be
transferred (see Notes 6 and 8). The asset and related liability were eliminated when the
property ownership was transferred to the City of Arcata and the McKinleyville Community
Services District during the year.

NOTE 5 - LAND
Land at June 30, 2015, consists of land and land rights of the General District, South Bay Water

extension, and District No. U-1. There were no changes in land during the year ended June 30,
2015.

NOTE 6 - PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Changes in property and equipment during the year ended June 30, 2015, are as foliows:

&
S

Balance ~h, Balance
06/30/14 _ . ™« Additions Deletions 06/30/15
Buildings $ 122132~ 261892 $ - $ 1483244
Equipment: L
Automotive 864,968 98,269 . 063,237
Mobile 462,661 53,229 - 515,890
Office 445,395 16,887 (6,461) 455,821
Radio communications 84,775 - - 84,775
Tools & shop 422,846 22,053 (47,090) 397,809
Water System Infrastructure:
Blue Lake extension 13,808 - - 13,808
Fieldbrook extension 300,559 - - 300,559
Lindley extension 11,995 - 11,995
South Bay water extension 1,490,263 - - 1,490,263
Essex diversion 7,549,757 52,452 - 7,602,209
Idled industrial pump station 482,819 - - 482,819
Meters 143,607 - - 143,607
Pipeline 6,575,392 4,225,727 10,801,119
Pumping plant 4,152,131 697,534 - 4,849,665
Storage tank 1,352,300 - - 1,352,300
Water treatment facility 11,302,573 45,669 - 11,348,242
Ruth Lake Infrastructure:
Ruth dam & works 7,096,523 - 7,096,523
Ruth hydroelectric plant 3,346,347 - - 3,346,347
Ruth Lake fishing access 118,041 - - 118,041
District No. U-1:
Supplemental development 5,354.898 - 5,354,898

-23 -



SECTION_[2¢,PAGE NO._20__

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Total property & equipment 52,793,010 5,473,712 (53,551) 58,213,171
Accumulated depreciation (36.817,763) (1,.056,242) 17,512 (37,856,493)

Net property & equipment 15,975,247 4,417,470 {36,039) 20,356,678
Projects in progress 1,597,849 717,030 (1,.278.172) 1,036,707

Total property & equipment, net $17.573.096 $ 5134500 $ (1.314211) $21.393,385

Total depreciation expense charged to operations for the year ended June 30, 2015, was
$1,056,242. All capital assets are depreciable except land and projects in progress.

The Hilfiker Pump Station No. 6 is a direct diversion facility at Essex that supplies industrial
water. The pump station was idled on May 1, 2009. The carrying value of the idled industrial
pump station is $125,643 as of June 30, 2015. The remainder of the industrial system is fully
depreciated. The idled industrial pump station may potentially be put back into service.

Constructed property in the amount of $2,501,825 transferred to other jurisdictions was
recognized as a current asset until the date of transfer (see Note 4).

A forklift with a cost of $36,039 was transferred between tools and shop equipment and mobile
equipment during the year.

Net investment in capital assets as of June 30, 201&5§consist of the following:

Land o $ 1,371,972
Projects in progress P ’“ 1,036,707
Property & equipment, net o~ 20,356,678
Current portion of notes payable %}~ (685,092)
Notes payable, net (4,930.551)

Total net investment in capital assets $17,149,714

Net position restricted for capital projects as of June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

Municipal customer advance charges for Ranney projects $ 975,251
Restricted for Ranney projects 294,155
Total net position restricted for capital projects $ 1,269,406

NOTE 7 - ACCRUED ABSENCES

Accrued absences consist of estimates of future obligations relating to accumulated unpaid
vacation and sick leave compensation. There are predetermined limits to the amount of vacation
and sick leave hours that can be accumulated by an employee. The District will pay the
employee at the end of each calendar year for any excess vacation time accumulated that year.

Upon retirement, an employee will receive compensation for unused accumulated vacation.
The employee also has the option under the District's California Public Employees’ Retirement
System (CalPERS) contract to convert 100% of the unused sick leave accrual to CalPERS
service credit, or to receive a 35% cash payment and convert the remainder to CalPERS
service credit. However, if an employee with less than ten years of employment terminates or
retires, the unused accumulated sick leave is not eligible for compensation or CalPERS service
credit conversion. Accrued absences as of June 30, 2015, consist of the following:

-24 -



SECTION_J 2¢ PAGENO, 3(

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Accrued vacation $ 141,935
Accrued sick leave 130,002
Total accrued absences 271,937

NOTE 8 - PROJECT ADVANCES FROM MUNICIPAL PARTNERS

The District has had to pay significant construction costs on the multijurisdictional interties
project before being reimbursed by the grantor. To help the District cover the cash shortfalls,
the City of Arcata and the McKinleyville Community Services District have advanced funds to
the District which were repaid when the project was completed. At June 30, 2015, all project
advances have been repaid.

NOTE 9 - LONG-TERM NOTES PAYABLE

California Safe Drinking Water State Revolving Fund {SRF) Note

The District has a loan with the California Department of Water Resources (acting on behalf of
the California Department of Health Services) under the provisions of the California SRF Law of
1997. The proceeds of the SRF loan were used to finance the construction of the Turbidity
Reduction Facility. The loan, which matures in Japdary of 2024, carries no interest and has a
repayment term of 20 years. The District pays $547,337 annually in two semiannual payments.
A U.S. Bank money market account is restricted. f‘o(, servicing the loan. The debt service for the
loan is paid in its entirety by the District's mumq'pal customers. Future debt service on the loan
is: -

p \_\
Year Ending g
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 547,337 $ - $ 547,337
2017 547,337 - 547,337
2018 547,337 - 547,337
2019 547,337 - 547,337
2020 547,337 - 547,337
2021 to 2024 1,915,678 - 1,915,678
Total 4,652,363 - 4,652,363
Due within one year (547,337) - (547,337)
Due after one year $ 4105026 $ - $ 4105,026

Water System Improvement Loan

The District has a loan, which matures in September of 2021, with Municipal Finance Corporation
(MFC) to finance various capital improvements to the water supply system. Under the ten-year
installment sales agreement, the District is obligated to pay semiannual installment payments of
principal and interest at the rate of 2.63% per annum on the unpaid principal balance. MFC
assigned its rights to receive and enforce the payments under the agreement to US Bank. The
debt service for the loan is paid in its entirety by the District's municipal water customers. Future
debt service on the loan is:

-25.



SECTION J= >z
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIE O N-2.& PAGE NO._ 32

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Year Ending
June 30 Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 137,755 $ 24,433 $ 162,188
2017 141,401 20,787 162,188
2018 145,145 17,043 162,188
2019 148,987 13,201 162,188
2020 152,931 9,257 162,188
2021 to 2022 237.061 6,222 243,283
Total 963,280 90,943 1,054,223
Due within one year (137.755) (24,433) (162,188)
Due after one year $ 825525 $ 66,510 $ 892035
Notes payable as of June 30, 2015, consists of the following:
SRF Note $ 4,652,363
MFC Note 963,280
Total notes payable 5,615,643
Less current portion (685.092)
Total notes payable, net $ 4930551

Net position restricted for debt service for the years ‘gpded June 30, 2015 was $707,178.
2"

NOTE 10 - NET POSITION
W
o
Restrictions on net position are impase#! by creditors, grantors, laws, and regulations.
Unrestricted net position as of June 30, 2015, has a deficit balance due to the impact of GASB

68 (See Note 186).

»

Restrictions on net position as designated by the Board of Directors are reported as unrestricted
net position. Since the unrestricted net position has a deficit balance for the year ended June
30, 2015, designations of net position are not appropriate.

NOTE 11 - WHOLESALE WATER CONTRACTS

The District is primarily a wholesale water provider. The District's Ordinance 16 as amended in
June 2006 establishes rates, charges, and conditions of service for water sales to the municipal
water customers. The costs of constructing, operating, maintaining, repairing and replacing the
water treatment facilities and maintaining reasonable reserves are allocated among the
municipal customers.

The District has long-term contracts with its wholesale customers that govern wholesale rates,
charges and conditions of service. The District has twenty-year contracts, effective July 1,
1999, in place with the following wholesale municipal customers:

City of Arcata

City of Blue Lake

City of Eureka

Fieldbrook-Glendale Community Services District

-26-



SECTION 12 ¢ 3
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT " ~——FAGENO. 23 _

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

¢ Humboldt Community Services District
¢ McKinleyville Community Services District
e Manila Community Services District

All operating, maintenance, and capital costs associated with the regional water system are
paid for by the wholesale customers. The rate structure is based on “Price Factor” formulas
which allocate, in proportionate shares, the operating, maintenance and capital costs of the
District to each of the wholesale customers. Municipal customers are billed monthly for water
usage based on their share of such operating, maintenance and capital costs.

Revenues received by the District, other than those associated with wholesale water sales, are
credited back to the wholesale municipal customers. These revenues include property tax
revenues, power sales, interest income, retail water service revenues and other miscellaneous
revenues. The revenue credit is applied ratably on a monthly basis during the course of the
year.

The seven wholesale municipal customers are initially billed based on the District's approved
budget, with the costs spread out evenly across the fiscal year. At year-end, the budgeted
costs are reconciled with actual costs. Any underpayments or overpayments are divided into
even monthly instaliments and applied to the municipalities’ billing during the course of the
following year. A
A
The District had a contract with Evergreen P ;'f@c., to supply wholesale industrial and retail
water which was cancelled when the millsa§ soid in February 2009. The mill had been
charged based on actual costs as incurpgi;l!l-:';_; The mill had been paying 45% of the District's
operation, maintenance, and capital enditure costs associated with all aspects of the
regional water supply except for the drinking water treatment. Beginning April 1, 2009, costs
were shifted to the seven municipal customers. Whereas the municipalities had previously been

paying 55% of costs, they currently pay 100%.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2009, the contracts with the municipal customers were
amended to provide greater specificity regarding remedies in the event of inaccuracies due to
metering equipment. The contracts were also amended to allow the District to retain $393,358
in overpayments due to the municipal customers as of June 30, 2009. The overpayments were
placed into the Municipal Supplemental Reserve Account dedicated for municipal customer
purposes and benefit. The account is normally designated as a partially restricted reserve per
Board of Director's policy; however, due to the deficit balance of unrestricted net assets,
designations are not appropriate for the year ended June 30, 2015 (see Note 10). As of June
30, 2015, the reserve account had a balance of $414,785.

As of June 30, 2015, the municipal customers overpaid $395,581, for operating, maintenance,
and capital costs. Overpayments in the amount of $346,435 were credited to the municipalities’
2014/2015 bilings. Overpayments in the amount of $395,581 will be credited to the
municipalities’ 2015/2016 billings. As of June 30, 2015, there were additional credits to the
municipalities in the amount of $7,504. At June 30, 2015, total net position restricted for credits
to the municipalities was $403,085.

The municipal water customers may be charged in advance in order to fund future capital
projects. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the municipal customers had balances in advance
charges of $975,251 for improvement projects (see Note 6).

- 27 -



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIGECTION _+) 2. PAGE NO._2Y__
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Additions to the District's general reserves may be charged to the wholesale customers should
the District need to replenish its general reserve level. For the year ended June 30, 2015, the
District charged the wholesale customers $100,000.

NOTE 12 - DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN

The District offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with the
Internal Revenue Code Section 457. The plan, available to all District employees, permits them
to defer a portion of their salary until future years. All amounts of compensation deferred under
the plan, all property and rights purchased with those amounts, and all income attributable to
those amounts, property or rights, are (until paid or made available to the employee or other
beneficiary) placed in trust for the benefit of the participants or their beneficiaries, and are not
the assets of the District.

Effective January 1, 2013, the District contributes $25 for each employee who is not currently
participating in the deferred compensation program. The District will provide a contribution
match of up to $50 per month for employees who are participating in the deferred compensation
program.

The District has a fiduciary responsibility to the pmtfiéipating employees in administration of the
plan, but is not liable for losses arising from dgpiciation or other declines in the value of the

plan assets. o va
U
,_V"--l"'\- -._"
2 )
Y

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN

General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Description

All qualified full-time and part-time employees are eligible to participate in the District's
Miscellaneous Employee Pension Plan, a cost-sharing multiple employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the California Public Employees’ Retirement System (CalPERS).
Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State statute and District resolution.
CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the pension plan
regarding benefit provisions, assumptions, and membership information. These reports can be
obtained at CalPERS' website (www.calpers.ca.gov) under "Forms and Publications”.

Benefits Provided

CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full time employment. Members
hired prior to January 1, 2013 with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with
statutorily reduced benefits. Members hired on or after January 1, 2013 with five years of iotal
service are eligible to retire at age 52 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible
for non-duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the
following: the Basic Death Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W
Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public
Employees’ Retirement Law.

-28-



iz ¢
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIGECTION 2. S PAGENO, 35

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The Plan's provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2015 are summarized as follows:

Prior to January 15, 2011

January 15, through December On or After
Hire date 2011 31, 2012 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years service 5 years service 5 years sefvice
Benefit payments Monthly for life  Monthly for life Monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 50-63 52 - 67
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible

compensation 1.10%1t02.5% 1.092%1t02418% 1.0%102.5%

Reguired employee contribution rates 6.891% 6.891% 6.891%
Required employer contribution rates 13.741% 13.741% 13.741%
Contributions

Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the employer
contribution rates for all public employers be determéhed on an annual basis by the actuary and
shall be effective on the July 1 following notgfe & a change in the rate. The total plan
contributions are determined through CaIPliRS' annual actuarial valuation process. The
actuarially determined rate is the estimategy ampunt necessary to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year,, mth an additional amount to finance any unfunded
accrued liability. The District is requwed tﬂ contribute the difference between the actuarially
determined rate and the contribution rate” of employees. For the measurement period ended
June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the average active employee contribution rate is 6.891
percent of annual pay, and the employer's contribution rate is 13.741 percent of annual payroll.
It is the responsibility of the District to make necessary accounting adjustments to reflect the
impact due to any Employer Paid Member Contributions or situations where members are
paying a portion of the employer contribution.

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the contributions recognized as part of pension expense for
the Plan were as follows:

Contributions - employer $ 229,022

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expenses and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources
Related to Pensions

As of June 30, 2015, the District reported net pension liabilities for its proportionate shares of
the net pension liability in the amount of $1,969,634.

The District’'s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proportionate share of the net
pension liability. The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2014, and the
total pension liability for the Plan used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2013 rolled forward to June 30, 2014 using standard
update procedures. The District's proportion of the net pension liability was based on a
projection of the District's long-term share of contributions to the Plan relative to the projected

-29 -



SECTION_J2C_PAGE NO._324 _
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The District's proportionate
share of the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2014 was as follows:

CalPERS
Proportion - June 30, 2013 0.0781%
Proportion - June 30, 2014 0.0797%
Change - Increase (Decrease) 0.0016%

For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District recognized pension expense of $190,051. At
June 30, 2015, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of

resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outlows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to measurement date $ 253,791
Differences between the employer's contributions and
the employer's proportionate share of contributions 7,839
Change in employer's proportion L 434
Net differences between projected and actual earmn,gé{, Fi
plan investments o, *'a. $ 558,820
Total SN $ 261,630 $ 559,254

Y,
$253,791 reported as deferred outflows ‘6f gesources related to contributions subsequent to the
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2016. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension expense as follows:

Increase
{Decrease)
Year Ended Pension
June 30 Expense
2016 $ (137,061)
2017 (137,061)
2018 (137,588)
2019 (139,705)
2020 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (551,415)

Actuarial Assumptions
For the measurement period ended June 30, 2014 (the measurement date), the total pension

liability for the Plan was determined by rolling forward the June 30, 2013 total pension liability.
The June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014 total pension liabilities for the Plan were based on the

following actuarial assumptions:

-30 -



SECTION 22¢._PAGENO3 T

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Actuarial Cost Method Entry-age normal cost methed
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 7.5%
Inflation 2.75%
Payroll Growth 3.0%
Projected Salary Increase Varies by entry age and service
Investment Rate of Return 7.5% (a)
Mortality Derived using CalPERS's membership
data for all funds
Post Retirement Benefit Contract COLA up to 2.75% until
increase purchasing power protection allowance

floor applies, 2.75% thereafter
(a) - Net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation

The mortality table used was developed based on CalPERS specific data. The table includes
20 years of mortality improvements using Sociely of Actuaries Scale BB. For more details on
this table, please refer to the 2014 experience study report.

All other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30} 2013 valuation were based on the results
of a January 2014 actuarial experience study fgrtQe period from 1997 to 2011, including
updates to salary increase, mortality, and retireﬁ;ynt rates. Further details of the Experience
Study can found on the CalPERS website (wwW palers.ca.gov) under Forms and Publications,
Discount Rate 'S\

The discount rate used to measure the Yo#al pension liability was 7.50 percent. To determine
whether the municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of a discount rate for each
plan, CalPERS stress tested plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be
different from the actuarially assumed discount rate. Based on the testing, none of the tested
plans run out of assets. Therefore, the current 7.50 percent discount rate is adequate and the
use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not necessary. The long term expected discount
rate of 7.50 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees Retirement Fund. The stress
test results are presented in a detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can
be obtained at CalPERS’ website (www.calpers.ca.gov) under the GASB 68 section.

According to Paragraph 30 of Statement 68, the long-term discount rate should be determined
without reduction for pension plan adminisfrative expense. The 7.50 percent investment return
assumption used in this accounting valuation is net of administrative expenses. Administrative
expenses are assumed to be 15 basis points. An investment return excluding administrative
expenses would have been 7.65 percent. Using this lower discount rate has resulted in a
slightly higher total pension liability and net pension liability. CalPERS deemed this difference
to be immaterial to the Public Agency Cost-Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension
Plan.

CalPERS is scheduled to review all actuarial assumptions as part of its regular Asset Liability
Management (ALM) review cycle that is scheduled to be completed in February 2018. Any
changes to the discount rate will require Board action and proper stakeholder outreach. For
these reasons, CalPERS expects to continue using a discount rate net of administrative
expenses for GASB 67 and 68 calculations through at least the 2017-18 fiscal year. CalPERS
will continue to check the materiality of the difference in these calculations.

-31-



SECTION_J2 C_PAGE NO._3% _
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was defermined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return
{expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS staff took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash
flows. Such cash flows were developed assuming that both members and employers will make
their required contributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. Using historical returns
of all the funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
short-term (first 10 years) and the long-term {11-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of
benefits was calculated for each fund. The expected rate of return was set by calculating the
single equivalent expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash
flows as the one calculated using both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of
return was then set equivalent to the single equivalent rate calculated above and rounded down
to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of
return was calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount
rate and asset allocation. These rates of reggfn are net of administrative expenses.

4

NewStilegic  Real Retum Real Return

Asset Class Allogation Years 1- 10 (a) Years 11+ (b)
Global Equity _ ,L-'--L“{ 7 47.00% 5.25% 571%
Global Fixed Income W) 19.00% 0.99% 2.43%
Inflation Sensitive 6.00% 0.45% 3.36%
Private Equity 12.00% 6.83% 6.95%
Real Estate 11.00% 4.50% 5.13%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.00% 4.50% 5.09%
Liquidity 2.00% -0.55% -1.05%

Total 100.00%

(a) - An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period.
(b) - An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period,

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rate

The following presents the District's proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan,
calculated using the discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the District's proportionate share
of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-
percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the current rate:

Discount Rate less 1% Current Discount Discount Rate plus 1%
6.5% 7.5% 8.5%

Net pension liability $ 3,310,216 $ 1,969,634 § 857,078

-39



SECTION_J 2 E-PAGE NO._%2%
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately
issued CalPERS financial reports available on CalPERS' website (www.calpers.ca.gov) under
Forms and Publications.

Payable to the Pension Plan

At June 30, 2015, the District reported a payable in the amount of $33,103 for the outstanding
amount of contributions to the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2015.

NOTE 14 - OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

Plan Description
The District provides a defined benefit healthcare plan (the “Retiree Health Plan”). The District

pays a certain percentage of eligible retirees’ actual costs subject to a maximum of $640 per
month.

The duration of retiree benefits provided by the District depends on the date an employee was
hired by the District. For all full-time regular employees hired by the District prior to July 8,
2004, the District will pay the medical costs premufm during the life of a retired subject to a
maximum of $640 per month.

«fl"

_J\_

For all full-time regular employees hired by,mé"Dlstnct after July 8, 2004, the District will pay
100% of the medical cost premium dunng gwré?nent subject to a maximum of $640 per menth,
for a maximum of 10 years or until the retu,:_:g,e Teaches age 65, whichever comes first.

Funding Policy
The District's Board of Directors will not be funding the plan in the current year but will follow a
pay-as-you-go approach. The Board will review the funding requirements and policy annually.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation
The District's annual other postemployment benefit (OPEB) cost (expense) is calculated based

on the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC). The District has elected to calculate
the ARC and related information using the alternative measurement method permitted by GASB
Statement No. 45 for employers in plans with fewer than one hundred total plan members. The
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal
cost each year and to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over the
remaining period of 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the District's annual OPEB cost of the year, the
amount actually contributed to the plan, and changes in its net OPEB obligation to the Retiree
Health Plan;

2015
Annual required contribution $ 227,019
interest on net OPEB obligation 34,226
Adjustment to annual required contribution (32,432)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 228,813

-33-



SECTION. J2¢ PAGE NO, Yo

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Estimated contributions made:

Premiums paid (61,814)

Implicit subsidy contributions (32,216)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 134,783
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 624,218
Net OPEB obligation - end of year $ 759.001
Current OPEB obligation $ 67,311
Noncurrent OPEB obligation 691,690
Total OPEB obligation $ 759.001

The District's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for the last three years is as follows:

% of Annual Net OPEB

Annual OPEB Amount OPEB Cost Obligation
Fiscal Year Ended Cost Contributed Confributed (Asset)
June 30, 2015 $ 228813 % 61,814 27% $ 759,001
June 30, 2014 $ 228416 % 57,551 26% $ 624,218
June 30, 2013 $ 228013 § 57,743 25% $ 484,631

’
Funding Status and Funding Progress

As of July 1, 2012, the actuarial accrued fiabilify, | %L) for benefits was $2,413,787, all of which
was unfunded. 2 'Q;-

The projection of future benefit paymenl{ fo# én ongoing plan involves estimates of the value of
reported amounts and assumptions about‘the probability of occurrences of events far info the
future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets
is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Methods and Assumptions
Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan (the

plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs
between the employer and plan members to that point. The methods and assumptions used
include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of short term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of
the calculations.

The following simplifying assumptions were made:

Retirement age for active employees - Based on the historical average retirement age for the
covered group, active plan members were assumed to retire at age 59, or at the first
subsequent year in which the member would qualify for benefits.

Marital Status - Marital status of members at the calculation date was assumed to continue
throughout retirement.
-34 -



SECTIONSI2<. _ PAGE NO. L1 _
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

Mortality - Life expectancies at the calculation date are based on the most recent mortality
tables published by the National Center for Health Statistics website (www.cdc.qov). The
calculation of OPEB liability for each year is based on the assumption that all participants will
live until their expected age as displayed in the mortality tables.

Turnover - The probability that an employee will remain employed until the assumed retirement
age was determined using non-group-specific age-based turnover data provided in Table 1 in
paragraph 35 of GASB Statement No. 45. In addition the expected future working lifetimes of
employees were determined using Table 2 in paragraph 35¢ of GASB Statement No. 45.

Healtheare cost trend rafe - Healthcare cost trend rates were selected based on a combination
of national and state trend surveys as well as professional judgment. The ultimate trend rate
was 3%.

Heath insurance premiums - 2012 health insurance premiums for retirees were used as a basis
for calculation of the present value of total benefits to be paid.

Medicare Coordination - Medicare was assumed as the primary payer for current and future
retirees at age 65.

)
Payroll increase - Payroll for current employees 46 expected to increase at the rate of
approximately 2.8% annually.

Discount rate - The calculation uses an,‘,gj‘i;gf’:frd;f discount rate of 5.5%. This is based on the
assumed long-term return on plan asset$.oriefnployer assets.

Actuarial cost method - The entry age actuarial cost method was used. The unfunded actuarial
accrued fiability is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an open basis.
The remaining amortization period at July 1, 2012, was twenty-seven years.

Plan for Funding
On an ongoing basis, the District will be reviewing its assumptions, comparing them against

actual experience and recalculating the needed funding with the goal of paying for
postemployment benefits out of interest earned on designated funds.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplemental information following the
notes fo these financial statements, presents multi-year trend information about whether the
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to actuarial liabilities
for benefits.

NOTE 15 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The
risk of loss is variable as to the deductible amount per occurrence. Liability losses up to $1
million and property losses up to $50,000, are covered through a pooled self-insurance
program, administered by the Association of California VWater Agencies — Joint Powers
Insurance Authority (ACWA-JPIA). Through participation in ACWA-JPIA, the District is covered
by commercial liability insurance for losses in excess of $1 million, up to an insured maximum of
-35-



SECTION_J 2 PAGE NO, Y Z_
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT - '
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

$60 million. Separately, the District insures for property damages in excess of the pooled limit
of $1 million, with commercial insurance for losses up to $100 million.

The ACWA-JPIA began operations on October 1, 1979, and has continued without interruption
since that time. The District is one of approximately two hundred and eighty-eight districts
participating in the pool. The responsibilities of the ACWA-JPIA and the District are as follows:

Responsibilities of the ACWA-JPIA:
a. Provide insurance coverage as necessary.

b. Assist members in obtaining insurance coverage for risks not included within the
coverage of the ACWA-JPIA.

c. Assist each members desighated risk manager with the implementation risk
management function.

d. Provide loss prevention and safety consulting services to members as required.

e. Provide claims adjusting and subrogation services for claims covered by the ACWA-
JPIA’s joint protection programs. ¢

o

W
f. Provide loss analysis and control in o_ng:é{rfto identify high exposure operations and to
evaluate proper levels of self—retentign,,éﬁa‘ﬂeductibIes.
-~
dg. Review members' contracts tc:f;__d"'gtérmine sufficiency of indemnity and insurance
provisions when requested.

h. Conduct risk management audits to review the participation of each member in the
programs.

i. The ACWA-JPIA shall have such other responsibilities as deemed necessary by the
Board of Directors and Executive Committee (of the ACWA-JPIA).

Responsibilities of the District:

a. The governing board of each member district shall appoint a representative and at least
one alternate representative to the Board of Directors.

b. Each member shall appoint an employee of the member to be responsible for the risk
management function within that member and serve as a liaison between the member
and the ACWA-JPIA as to risk management.

c. Each member shall maintain an active safety officer and/or committee, and shall
consider all recommendations of the ACWA-JPIA concerning unsafe practices.

d. Each member shall maintain its own set of records, including a loss log, in all categories

of risk covered by the joint protection program to insure accuracy of the ACWA-JPIA's
loss reporting system.

-36 -



SECTION_.) 2¢.
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT PAGENO._{2__

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

e. Each member shall pay its deposit premium and premium adjustments within thirty days
of the invoice date.

f. Each member shall provide the ACWA-JPIA with such other information or assistance as
may be necessary for the ACWA-JPIA to carry out the joint protection programs.

g. Each member shall cooperate with and assist the ACWA-JPIA, and any insurer of the
ACWA-JPIA, in all matters and covered claims and will comply with all bylaws, rules and
regulations adopted by the Board of Directors and Executive Committee of the ACWA-
JPIA.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. The
amounts of settlements have not exceeded the insurance coverage in each of the past three
fiscal years.

NOTE 16 - PRIOR YEAR ADJUSTMENT FOR PENSION LIABILITIES

Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Pensions — an Amendment of GASB No. 27 was implemented during the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2015. The revised requiements establish new financial reporting
requirements for state and local governments whish provide their employees with pension
benefits, including additional note dlsclosures d required supplementary information. In
addition, GASB No. 68 requires a state or Pp.E'al‘ government employer to recognize a net
pension liability and changes in the net péman liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources which arlse'frwﬂ other types of events related to pensions. During
the transition year, as permitted, beginniag balances for deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources will not be reported, except for deferred outflows of resources
related to contributions made after the measurement date of the beginning net pension liability
which is required to be reported by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Daie.
Beginning net position for governmental and business type activities were restated to
retroactively report the beginning net pension liability and deferred outfiows of resources related
to contributions made after the measurement date, as follows:

Proprietary
Fund

Net Position at June 30, 2014

as previously reported $17,171,011
Net Pension liability at June 30, 2014 (2,561,635)
Change in outflows of resources related

to contributions made after the

June 30, 2014 measurement date 230,637
Net position June 30, 2014 as restated $ 14,840,013

The combination of the prior year and current year pension liability adjustments under GASB
No. 68 caused the Unrestricted Net Position to be a deficit balance of $691,150 for the year
ended June 30, 2015.

- 37 -



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIGECTION_2¢ PAGENO._ 44
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2015

NOTE 17 - CONTINGENCIES

The District receives, on a cost-reimbursement basis, federal and state funds to camry out a variety
of projects and studies. As a recipient of federal and state funds, the District is responsible for
maintaining an internal control structure that ensures compliance with all laws and regulations
related to these programs. All federal and state program expenditures are subject to financial and
compliance audits by the awarding agency. In addition, federal funds are subject to an annual audit
process in accordance with OMB Circular A-133. Such audits could result in claims against the
District for disallowed costs or noncompliance with contract provisions. No provision has been
made for any liabilities which may arise from the noncompliance or questioned costs since the
amounts, if any, cannot be determined at this time.

On January 27, 2016, CalOES issued a draft audit letter questioning $378,404 of costs relating to
Federal Hazard Mitigation Grant Program funds for the Techite project. The District believes that
the findings from the 2012 audit causing the questioned costs have been resolved. Additionally, the
District believes that other District matching costs will qualify for funding under terms of the grant if
the $378,404 of questioned costs is ultimately determined to be disallowed. The outcome of this
audit is not known at the date the audit report was issued.

NOTE 18 — SUBSEQUENT EVENTS A

Ly
The District's management has evaluated subs.gg‘ﬁi;nt events through February 22, 2016, which
is the date the financial statements werg-awaiable to be issued, and concluded that no
additional adjustments to the financial st}!té‘ﬁ'fents or disclosures are required for the vear
ending June 30, 2015. )

Ry

-38 -



SECTION ] 2(_PAGE NO._Y9

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

&
€ g
04

v
&



SEGTION 12 C_PAGE NO, 16

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY

As of June 30, 2015

Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $
Covered - employee payroll $

Proportionate share of the net pension liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll

Plan's fiduciary net position $

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability

NOTE 1 - CHANGES IN BENEFITS AND ASSUMPTIONS
Benefit changes - There were no changes to benefit terms.

Changes in assumptions - There were no changes in assurpﬁtions.

Zs %
NOTE 2 - TEN YEAR TREND SCHEDULE Y gx._; 3

2015

0.03165%
1,969,634

1,644,389

119.78%

8,135,555

80.51%

The year ended June 30, 2015 was the first yeagqrﬂfmlementatlon for GASB 68, therefore, cnly one year of frend

information is shown. 9
W

-39 -



SECTION_J2¢_PAGENO. Y 7 _

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS

Contractually required contribution
(actuarially determined)

Contributions in relation to the actuarially
determined contributions

Contribution deficiency (excess)

Covered-employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage of covered-
employee payroll

NOTE 1 - VALUATION DATE
Valuation date:;

NOTE 2 - METHODS AND ASSUMPTIONS
Methods and assumptions used to determine
contributions rates:

Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Asset valuation method
Infiation

Salary increases

Investment rate of return

Retirement age
Mortality

As of June 30, 2015

June 30, 2015

$ 229,022
(229,022)

$ -
$ 1,644,389
13.93%

June 30, 2013

p »
)"&. l‘ ..'J
%
Trd
Ve { Entry-age normal
% Level percentage of payroll, closed
Y'Y 20vyears (a)
Smoothed value
2.75%
Varies by entry age and service
7.5% net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation
60 years
CalPERS Mortality Experience Study

(a) - Actuarial policy ACT-96-0SE specifies that all changes in liability due to plan amendments, changes in actuarial
assumptions, or changes in actuarial methodology are amortized separately over a 20-year period. In addition, all
gains or losses are tracked and the net unamortized gain or loss is amortized as a rolling 30-year amortization with
the exception of gains and losses in fiscal years 2008-09, 2009-10 and 2010-11 in which each years' gains or losses
will be isolated and amortized over fixed and declining 30-year periods (as opposed to the current rolling 30-year
amortization). Also, if a plan's accrued liability exceeds the actuarial value of assets, the annual contribution with
respect to the total unfunded liability may not be less than the amount produced by a 30-year amortization of the
unfunded liability. Finally, all plans are subfect to a minimum employer contribution rate equal to the employer normal
cost plus a 30-year amortization of surplus, if any.

NOTE 3 - TEN YEAR TREND SCHEDULE

The year ended June 30, 2015 was the first year of implementation for GASB 68, therefore, only one year of trend

information is shown.

-40 -



SECTION.J2<_ PAGE NO. 1%

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS FOR OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
As of June 30, 2015

Actuarial
Accrued Actuarial Annual
Liability Value Unfunded Covered UAAL as a %
Actuarial Entry Age of Assets -iability (UAAL Funded Payroll of Payroll
Valuaton (@) (b) (ab)  Status (bla) () ([2-bl/c)
ate
July 1, 2012 $ 2,413,787 $- $2,413,787 0% $ 1,567,071 154.0%
July 1, 2009 $ 1,994,945 $- $ 1,994,945 0% $ 1,520,676 131.2%

NOTE 1 - SCHEDULE DESCRIPTION

The District sponsors a defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan (the Plan) to subsidize healthcare benefits
to eligible retired employees. The above schedule presents information about the funded status for the Plan's two
actuarial valuations.

NOTE 2 - ACTUARIAL VALUATIONS

Actuarial valuations of an on-going plan involve estimates ot the, value of the reported amounts and assumptions
about the probability of occurrence of events far into the futurqwz{’!ounts determined regarding the funded status of
the plan and the annual required contribution of the Distriotféne subject to continual revision as actual resulis are
compared with past expectations and new estimates are Jexabout the future. Information regarding the actuarial
methods and assumptions for the July 1, 2012 actuayie| WA uation can be found in Note 14 of the basic financial
statements. The next actuarial valuation will be peg[qi\;k;éd‘ﬂuring the year ended June 30, 2016.

N

-49 -



SECTION,JZ< PAGENO. 44 __

OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



SECTION 42 PAGENO. G0

D
Hunter, HunteréHunt, LLI o
1315 Fourth Street CERTIFIEL PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bee 707476.0675
Eurcks, California 95501 ———tR,, www.hhh-cpa.com

Members of the AICPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING
STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States as well as accounting
systems prescribed by the State Controller's Office and state regulations governing special
districts, the financial statements of the business-type activities of Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District (the District), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2015, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which comprise the District’'s basic financial statements, and have issued our
report thereon dated February 22, 2016.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting p

A T
In planning and performing our audit of the flrfanmél statements, we considered the District's
internal control over financial reporting (mterna?‘gcmtrol) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the gw,gose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressmg an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control. Accordingly, we do not“axpress an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's
internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the preceding
paragraph and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs, we identified certain deficiencies in internal control that
we consider to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements wilt not be prevented, or
detected and corrected on a timely basis. We consider deficiency 2015-001 described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs to be a material weakness.

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is
less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged
with governance. We consider deficiencies 2015-002 to 2015-004 described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs to be significant deficiencies.

-42-



SECTION_§2< PAGENO._S7
Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are
free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct
and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we
do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance
or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

District’s Response to Findings

The District's response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and guestioned costs. The District's response was not subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements, and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in

accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

February 22, 2016 <y

-43-



SECTION_J2¢ PAGENO,_ 52

Hunter, Hunter & Hunt, LLP

6067
1315 Fourth Stremt CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Ph;: ;g:;G-OG?;
Eurcka, California 95501 e aSelen www.hhh-cpa.com
Members of the AICPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Board of Directors
Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Districts’ compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance Supplfement that
could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal programs for the
year ended June 30, 2015. The District's major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor's resuits section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to its federal progrars.

A
“

‘L:'I‘ Y
i‘\ﬁ'

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion qﬁ;}b;jinpliance for each of the District's major federal
programs based on our audit of the tyggscf, compliance requirements referred to above. We
conducted our audit of compliance in accapflance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and
OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements
referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program
occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the District's compliance
with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in
the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each
major federal program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the
District's compliance.

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance

requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each or its major
federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2015.

-44-



SECTION_JZC_PAGENO.52

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed instances of noncompliance, which are
required to be reported in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and which are described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-004. Our opinion on
each major federal program is not modified with respect to these matters.

The District's response to the noncompliance findings identified in our audit is described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's response was not
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we
express no opinion on the response.

Report on Internal Control over Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal
control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered the District's internal control
over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material effect on
each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal
program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

i,

District's internal control over compliance. ,
Our consideration of internal control over cqmpjcance was for the limited purpose described in
the first paragraph of this section and wa# rio¢'designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control over compliance that might bmmtft-rlaf weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
therefore, material weaknesses or significifit deficiencies may exist that were not identified. We
did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be
material weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified certain deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control
over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of
compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal
control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type
of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. We
consider the deficiency in internal control over compliance described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2015-004 to be a significant deficiency.

-45 -



SECTION_- 2< PAGE NO._S<X_

The District’s response to the internal control over compliance findings identified in our audit is
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. The District's
response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and,
accordingly, we express no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of
our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the

requirements of OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other
purpose.

February 22, 2016

- 46 -



SECTION_12<_ PAGENO. 55"

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2015

Pass-through Federal
Federal Agency, Pass-through Agency/ Program or Cluster Title Agreement # CFDA # Expenditures
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Pass-through from CA Govemnor's Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 1731-35-53 97.039 $ 2,290,175
Federal Emergency Management Agency
Pass-through from CA Governor's Office of Emergency Services
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program 1911-09-09R 97.039 58,887
Total U.S. Department of Homeland Security 2,349,062
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 2,349,062

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The above schedule includes the federal award activity of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District for the year ended June 30,
2015. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Prefit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts presented in, or used in
preparation of, the basic financial statements.

>

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ,’-"lr 5

Expsnditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrugl Ddgls oi’ accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following
the cost principles contained in OMB Circular A-87, Cost pring‘plgﬁé'swte, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reiq;(igéj;gtment.

L

N

- 47 -



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

SECTION | - SUMMARY OF AUDITORS’ RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor's report issued: Unqualified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness(es) identified? X __Yes No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered
to be material weakness(es)? X Yes None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements
noted: Yes X No

Federal Awards

Internal control over major federal programs:

Material weakness(es) identified? Yes _ X No
Significant deficiencies identified not considered ’
to be material weaknesses? f,."" 2 X Yes None reported
L "
Type of auditor's report issued: P %9=* Unqualified

JF- 3

Any audit findings disclosed that are requifed to be
Reported in accordance with Circular A-ﬁ“~33,
Section .510(a) of OMB Circular A-133 X __Yes No

Identification of major programs:

CFDA Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
97.039 Hazard Mitigation Grant Program

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Types

A and B programs: $300,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes X __No

-48 -

SECTION_J2<_PAGE NO.

¢



SECTION_J2C PAGENO. § #
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT e
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

SECTION Hl - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT
Finding 2015-001

Criteria - Expenditures incurred during the prior fiscal year but paid in the current fiscal year
should not be recorded as current fiscal year accounts payable. All contract payments held in
retention by the District at the fiscal year-end should be recorded as current fiscal year contract
retentions payable. Capital additions should be recognized in the same period in which the
expenditures (including amounts retained from payment) are incurred.

Condition - For the year ended June 30, 2015, the District did not remove $407,970 of contract
expenditures from accounts payable and fixed assets, and did not properly record $125,838 in
amounts retained from contract payments as contract retentions payable.

Cause - The District maintains the accounting records on a cash basis during the fiscal year.
The accounting records are converted to accrual basis at year-end. The District's internal
controls over financial reporting did not identify the misstatements in a timely manner.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the material weakness would be to
overstate accounts payable by $407,970, oversta}e fixed assets by $407,970 understate
contract retentions payable by $125,838, and oyergtate accounts payable by $125,838, the
items noted above were corrected, so there is no@ffect upon the financial statements issued.

™.

o,

Recommendation - We recommend that 'E;g?af—end closing procedures include a thorough
examination and review of all expenditdfeS.and contract retentions to ensure that they are

accounted for in the proper period. N

Actions Taken - District management reviewed the auditor’s findings and respectfully provided
the following in response:

Management and the accounting staff have reviewed the internal accounting control procedures
relating to grant revenue accrual including retention for proper recording in the financial records
to ensure that they are accounted for in the proper period. As mentioned above, the items
noted by the auditor were corrected and there was no effect upon the financial statemenis
issued.

This finding is considered a material weakness.

- 49 -



SECTION_J 2& PAGENO. 5%
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

Finding 2015-002

Criteria — The District should properly verify and allocate the value of fixed assets transferred to
other municipalities.

Condition — Transfers to municipalities for fixed assets constructed as part of the Intertie project
were correct in total, but the amounts transferred to each municipality were incorrect.

Cause - Management did not properly review the individual municipality transfers or confirm
balances with engineers and the receiving municipalities.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the significant deficiency would have
no effect upon the financial statements issued, the receiving municipalities could have misstated
values of the fixed assets received.

Recommendation - We recommend that management confirm the valuations of fixed assets to
be transferred with appropriate professionals and the affected municipalities.

Actiong Taken - District management and accounting staff reviewed the auditor’s findings and
respectfully provided the following in response:

Management and the accounting staff have revi ;a.?ms internal accounting control procedures
relating to valuing fixed assets. The situatiop,}&(_.asset transfers to other municipalities was
unique to the Prop 50 Intertie Grant construstidet project and most likely will not re-occur in the
near future. However, staff will endeavq;[?&'éh'sure that proper allocations are performed and
communicated to other municipalities. Caorgination with the other municipalities did occur once
the issue was identified. As mentioned above, the items noted by the auditor were corrected
and there was no effect upon the financial statements issued.

This finding is considered a significant deficiency.

-50-



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIC
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

Finding 2015-003

Criteria - The District should prepare a depreciation schedule that is reconciled to the capital
asset account balances and depreciation expense should be calculated.

Condition - The asset addition and deletion schedules prepared by management did not include
all capital additions. As a result, the cost basis of the assets according to the schedules did not
match the capital asset account balances according to the general ledger. Depreciation
expense was not calculated.

Cause - Management did not prepare a depreciation schedule. The asset additions report that
management used to prepare the depreciation schedule was not complete. Management did
not calculate depreciation expense.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potentiai effect of the significant deficiency would be a
difference of $503,501 in the asset cost basis according to the depreciation schedule compared
to the asset cost basis according to the general ledger, as well as the omission of depreciation
expense. The items noted above were corrected, so there is no effect upon the financial
statements issued.

Recommendation - We recommend that managegment create a depreciation schedule that
reconciles the asset costs to the capital asset’ abcount balances, as well as calculating
depreciation expense and accumulated deprec;atf&g

=0 Ve
Actions Taken - District management ang. aewuntlng staff reviewed the auditor’s findings and
respectfully provided the following in respon;e

Management and the accounting staff have reviewed the internal accounting control procedures
relating to the preparation and reconciliation of the depreciation schedule and capital account
balances to ensure that proper reconciliations are performed. As mentioned above, the items
noted by the auditor were corrected and there was no effect upon the financial statemenis
issued.

This finding is considered a significant deficiency.

-51-

SECTION 42C _ PAGE NO.5%_

It



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRIGFCTION.2&  PAGE NO, 00 __
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

Finding 2015-004

Criteria - The District should reconcile grant revenues recorded in the general ledger to the
detail of grant activity maintained outside of the general ledger.

Condition — Grant funds received to reimburse costs incurred by other municipalities were
recorded as revenue, and previously unearned revenue earned for administrative expenses was
not recorded in the general ledger.

Cause - Management did not prepare a complete reconciliation of grant activity for each grant
that provided for timely and detailed identification of reimbursements and unearned grant
revenue balances.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the significant deficiency would be an
overstatement of state grant revenue of $10,545 from reimbursements to outside agencies, and
an understatement of federal grant revenue for $3,316 from administrative costs, the items
noted above were corrected, so there is no effect upon the financial statements issued.

Recommendation - We recommend that management track grant activity in a manner that easily
allows for complete tracking of revenues and expenses.
&

Actions Taken - District management and accou;rﬁn@ staff reviewed the auditor's findings and
respectfully provided the following in response:,,

P
Management and the accounting staff havgigvmwed and updated its internal accounting control
procedures relating to the grant revenuég rconciliation to ensure that a more thorough review
of the grant revenues reconciliations is performed. As mentioned above, the items noted by the
auditor were corrected and there was no effect upon the financial statements issued.

This finding is considered a significant deficiency.

-52 -



SECTION _J2¢ PAGENO.G |
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT

SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
June 30, 2015

SECTION Ill - FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS - MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD
PROGRAMS AUDIT

See Finding 2015-004. This finding is considered a significant deficiency and relates to the
major programs as foliows:

U.S. Department of Homeland Security
Hazard Mitigation Grant Program - CFDA No. 97.039
Grant Period - 2/13/12 to 10/07/15

-53 -



SECTIO ;
HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT N-‘-jz-—c'-...PAGE NO. §= 2
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

June 30, 2014

Finding 2014-001

Criteria - Expenditures incurred during the current fiscal year but paid in the following fiscal year
should be recorded as current fiscal year accounts payable. All contract payments held in
retention by the District at the fiscal year-end should be recorded as current fiscal year contract
retentions payable. Capital additions should be recognized in the same period in which the
expenditures (including amounts retained from payment) are incurred.

Condition - For the year ended June 30, 2014, the District did not recognize $407,970 of
contract expenditures as accounts payable and property to be transferred, and did not record
$95,531 in amounts retained from contract payments as contract retentions payable and
property to be transferred.

Cause - The District maintains the accounting records on a cash basis during the fiscal year.
The accounting records are converted to accrual basis at year-end. The District’s internal
controls over financial reporting did not identify the misstatements in a timely manner.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the material weakness would be to
understate accounts payable by $407,970, understate contract retentions payable by $95,531,
understate property to be transferred by $503,501, understate property transfer payable by
$503,501, and understate grant expenses by $503.‘$Q1, the items noted above were corrected,
so there is no effect upon the financial statement{issuéd.

3

Recommendation - We recommend that t{j? ??'.jfgfar';end closing procedures include a thorough
examination and review of all expenditdfaSsand contract retentions to ensure that they are
accounted for in the proper period.

Current Status - Partially Implemented. See current year finding 2015-001.

-54 -



HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRFETION 2<_ PAGE NO, 63 -
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
June 30, 2014

Finding 2014-002

Criteria - Bank reconciliations at the end of the fiscal year should be prepared for all cash
accounts.

Condition - Bank reconciliations at year-end were requested but not provided to the auditors for
the cash accounts held with the Humboldt County Treasurer's Pooled Investment Fund. It
appeared that the reconciliations were not performed.

Cause - Management did not provide a bank reconciliation for the Humboldt County Treasurer's
Pooled Investment Fund. Audit procedures identified a significant error in the ending cash
balance of the fund that could have been identified if a bank reconciliation had been prepared.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the significant deficiency would be to
understate cash equivalents by $58,395 and understate tax revenues by the same amount, the
items noted above were corrected, so there is no effect upon the financial statements issued.

Recommendation - We recommend that management provide all bank reconciliations for all
cash accounts.

Current Status - Implemented.

Finding 2014003 A

”"fﬁ.l S

Criteria - The depreciation schedule shogj;gj }é’ reconciled to the capital asset account balances.

Conditon - The depreciation schedule prepared by management had mathematical
inaccuracies and did not include all capital additions. As a result, the cost basis of the assets
according to the depreciation schedule did not match the capital asset account balances
according to the general ledger, and depreciation expense was understated in the general
ledger.

Cause - Management did not reconcile the depreciation schedule to the capital asset account
balances. The asset additions report that management used to prepare the depreciation
schedule was not complete. Audit procedures identified significant differences that could have
been identified if a reconciliation had been prepared.

Effect or Potential Effect - Although the potential effect of the significant deficiency would be a
difference of $146,800 in the asset cost basis according to the depreciation schedule compared
to the asset cost basis according to the general ledger, as well as an understatement of $1,500
in depreciation expense, the items noted above were corrected, so there is no effect upon the
financial statements issued.

Recommendation - We recommend that management reconcile the depreciation schedule to
the capital asset account balances.

Current Status - Partially Implemented. See current year finding 2015-003.

-55-



SECTION 2] PAGE NO. |

e e

Paul Helliker
L.

From: Paul Helliker

Sent: Wednesday, February 24, 2016 5:00 PM

To: ‘Cherry, Carol@CalQOES’; John Friedenbach

Subject: RE: Draft compliance report

Attachments: HBMWD RFQ for Engr - Techite Project.pdf; SOQ Rating Sheet for Selection team

{Techite).xlsx; Confirmations of Publication of the RFQ Advertisement.pdf; Board Memo
re Techite and BLFGSD Professional Servuce Proposals.docx

Hi, Carol — thank you for the opportunity to review the draft compliance report. We are prepared to submit a plan to
ensure that all federal procurement provisions are included in future projects at Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
that receive federal funding. We look forward to receiving the guidelines referenced in the draft report.

Per your request, attached are the following:

RFQ solicitation (including a list of firms that received it)

Copies of the receipts from the publications in which the RFQ was advertised

Scoring sheet for the proposals received

Memo to the HBMWD Board of Directors summarizing the RFQ process, the proposals received and the rationale for
selection

Please let us know if there are any other materials that you would like (such as the responses to the RFQ that were
received).

For this project, HBMWD has expended $4,244,380 and has received $2,795,178 in reimbursement from FEMA, which
represents 65.8% of the total. This includes the original funding request of $2,185,178, approved on February 13,

2012 and the supplemental request for reimbursement of $610,000, approved on April 25, 2014. As noted in our Grant
Close Out correspondence dated September 3, 2015, the District incurred an additional $548,061 in expenses above the
grant approved project costs.

Thanks again,

Paul Helliker

General Manager

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
828 7" Street

Eureka, CA 95501

(707) 443-5018

From: Cherry,VCaroI@C-alOES [mailto:Carol.Cherry@CalOES.ca.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, January 27, 2016 2:21 PM

To: Paul Helliker; John Friedenbach
Subject: Draft compliance report

Good Afternoon Everyone,

| have attached a copy of the “Draft” compliance review report. As stated in our conference call yesterday, we need
additional documentation from the Water District for the procurement of the engineer. It is my understanding the



District obtained the engineer services via a “Request for Qualifications” process. Please provide the following
documentation to support the RFQ:

Copy of official RFQ advertisement

Summary of all RFQ's received

Questions and Scoring of each RFQ received

Justification for selection process is the best RFQ was not chosen

Please provide the requested documentation by February 26, 2016
If you have any questions, please give me a call at 916-845-8778.
Thank you,

Carol Cherry

3650 Schriever Avenue
Mather, CA 95655
(916) 845-8778

Save Our

Water



Operations



SECTION_J2 @ PAGENO,_!___
Memo to: HBMWD Board of Directors
From: Dale Davidsen, Superintendent
Date: March 3, 2016
Subject: Essex/Ruth February Operational Report

Ruth Lake, Upper Mad River and Hydro Plant

1. The high flow at Mad River above Ruth Reservoir (Zenia Bridge) during the
month was measured on February 1 at 923 cfs and the low flow was measured
on February 17 at 116 cfs.

2. The conditions at Ruth Lake in February were as follows:

a. The lake level on February 29, 2016 was 2654.36 feet which is:
3.00 feet higher than January 31, 2016

1.00 feet higher than February 28, 2015

1.42 feet above the ten year average

0.36 feet above the spillway

el

3. We measured 4.89 inches of rain at Ruth Headquarters during the month with a
high reading of 1.80 inches measured on February 18 and 19, each day.

4. Ruth hydro power production was 820,800 kWh during the month with 1
curtailment and 45,578 kW lost production.

5. The high discharge flow from the lake this month was 1,602 cfs on February 1
and the low release flow from the lake was 238 cfs on February 17.

Winzler Control, TRF and Lower Mad River

6. The river at Winzler Control Center reached a high recorded flow of 7,190 cfs
and a level of 26.2 feet on February 1. The low river flow was on February 17,
with a flow of 814 cfs and a level of 23.2 feet.

7. The domestic water conditions for 29 days in February were as follows:
a. The monthly turbidity average was 0.06 NTU, which meets Public Health
Secondary Standards.
b. We pumped 224.483 million gallons at an average of 7.741 MGD.

c. The maximum metered daily municipal customer use was 8.961 MGD on
February 2.

8. The Turbidity Reduction Facility ran 29 days in February. The conditions were as
follows:
a. Filtered water production was 228.833 million gallons.
b. Average monthly source water turbidity was 0.88 NTU.
¢. Average monthly filtered water turbidity was 0.06 NTU.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

SECTION_J3¢ PAGE NO._Z:

D e e —

February 3™ — Safety Award Drawing — This year Jasson Klingonsmith was the
lucky winner.

February 4™ — SB198 Safety Meeting — We have a new safety committee for
this year; they are Carol McKibben and Tim Farrell with Steve Marshall being
our scribe. Soon, Chris Merz will become our scribe as part of the new
Assistant Maintenance Supervisor’s position duties.

February 5™ — I went to Ruth to look at the surficial slide above the access road
to the hydro plant with Brian and USFS. We met Fred Leviton - USFS
geologist and Adam Dresser - USFS hydrologist at the dam and walked the slide
with them. Fred agreed the slide has moved some due to the recent heavy rains.
He will send us his report when complete.

February 8™ _ Someone hit the fence around the Morris Booster Pump Station
over the weekend. Our crew repaired the fence and I reported it to the Sheriff’s
Department. I have not heard anything more from the Sheriff’s office.

February 9™ — Maintenance crew started 90 day BIT inspections on commercial
fleet vehicles.

February 10™
a. Safety meeting - CL2 leak response training.

b. John, Steve and I attended CERS (California Environmental Reporting
System) training in Eureka.

February 9™ — Maintenance crew replaced the gates at the I[W Reservoir site.
Someone stole the gates so we replaced them and welded them on.

February 23™ — John and Thavisak toured Essex and TRF to review and report
on our hazardous materials inventory.

On Febrvary 25™ and 26" - Annual Hearing and Respiratory Exams were
conducted by Mad River Occupational Health. These examinations are required
for our employees that could be required to use respirators and it provides a
good baseline of information to help safeguard the health of our employees.

February 29" — Maintenance crew removed the McKinleyville meter for routine
calibration.



SECTION .} 35 PAGE NO._ >

R ~-=—| ake Elevation 10!

Ruth Lake Elevation

;

2660.0

T

o,

f!, a!'\- - -
)
i — e

A,

2655.0

"“*@K,.:

Year Avg

=
=y
~

s

el

2650.0 -

o~

= | ake Elevation

s T

2 :

i P

] o
= = 4= ©
- wo E
w @ 0 =
- e =]
[=] m O o
[n] - ™ v
=

2640.0 -

2635.0 -

2630.0 -

2625.0 -+
2620.0

i

- 9T/2T
T/t
BL/TT
WL

i w TZ/0T

_ 7

_ L £2/6

L 6/6

L 9z/8

- ZT/8

- 62/t

- ST/L

_ F T/t

| 179

- €/9

- 02fs

| - 9/8
_ - 2ZfY

8/
sz/e

_ L TT/E

-9zft
_ [A 14

_ . 8ZfT

LST/T
—T/1

Date

4000 -— -

— Mad River at

Zenia Br 2015,

cfs

e Mad River at

Zenia Br 2016,

cfs

=«-=Ten Year Avg
2006- 2015

© nlrum,‘l._-\l.“.t\

Flow at Zenia Bridge

i ——

]

3500

e
Q
Q
=}
o

2500 -

sj2 - Moj4

e,

- 0g/fe1
-9t/z1
z/et
81/T1
w11
- 1Z/0r
Lefot
w_mw\m
- 6/6
. 9z/8
-TT/8
- 62/L
L ST/2
- T/
. £1/9
- €/9
A oz/s
io/s

A

A

‘_\-r.--.m.._

Date




Inches

River Level, ft

35 A

30 -

20 -

SEGTION_J %4 PAGENO._Y__

——\Water Year 14-15
Cumulative !

|
e \Nater Year 15-16
Cumulative

- — --10 Year Average

~— Historical
Cumulative
Average '83-'15 l

T

T

i

a i T ik oo e

- 20000 . River Level
2016, ft
e 10 Year Avg
- River Level, ft
[ 15000 5
= g = 2015 Flow at
E 2949 Bridge, cfs
a
2
B <2016 Flow at
10000 299 Bridge, cfs
=em 10 Year Avg
River Flow, cfs
5000
0

- 25000

e River Level
2015, ft




secTioN_J 3 bpaceNo.__L__

Confidential: Documents submitted under General Order 66-C, §82.8 and PU Code §583

Pacific Gas and
o0 4 Electric Company®

Purchase / Sales invoice
Invoice Number: 64703

Delivery Period Start:01/01/2016
Delivery Period End: 01/31/2016
invoice Date: 02/17/2016

Due Date; 03/01/2016

Log Number: 19HQ51
Account Code: 2320900
Meter Channel: LIGOOB
Contract Start: 04/10/1983

From:

Pacific Gas and Electric Company
77 Beale Street

San Francisco, CA 94105

Contract Manager: Nancy Breckenridge
Phone: 415-973-4092
Email: NJB6@pge.com

Settlement Analyst: Kimberly Song
Phone: 415-973-5815

Fax: 415-973-9505

Email: KSS5W@pge.com

To:

HUMBOLDT BAY MWD
P. 0. Box 95

Eureka, CA 95501

Project Name: HUMBOLDT BAY MWD
Payment Method: CHECK
Vendor Number: 1024538

Contact: Becky Moyle

Phone: 707-443-5018

Fax: 707-443-5731

Email: MOYLE@HBMWD.COM

Payment Name Quantity Unit Amount

Energy Payment 01/01/2016 - 01/31/2016 907.104 MWh $-26,273.69

As-Delivered Capacity Payment 756.404 MWh $-2,140.83

Net Total 5-28,414.52

Total Amount Due to HUMBOLDT BAY MWD on Due Date: 03/01/2016 USD 5 28,414.52
Page 1of 3

19H051 | HUMBOLDT BAY MWD | 64703



Total Kwh Production for Period
Production Ending 1/1/2016
On Peak 11,313,641
Part Peak 55,296,869 328,025
Off Peak 79,444,968 428,379
Super Off Peak 25,263,931 150,699
Grand To; _1 71,319,409 907,103

SECTION 32 b pagGENO. 2.

Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District
Ruth Hydro Production Report - Since June 1983

Average Monthly
Kwh Production

28,935
141,424
203,184

64,614

438,157

Grand Total Revenues

No. of Months of Operation

Average $/Kwh

$8,471,534.10

391

$0.0494



e

sECTION_13Y_ PAGE NO,_3

aunp Aewy

[Ludy

LCHIpald Ad Juslung

Yuow
yole  Adenugag  Aenuer Jequieoe(] JoquwaAaoN JSQoPO Jequsydeg  jsnbBny Alnp

g HMM 850°962°S
[ejo)] abelaAy |enuUY [eoLIO)SIH

e

1
h

e

SINOH Bemoliy uj eyeq |Iy
aye] Yiny @ jue|d 211308|80IpAH uljesS09
uonoNpold dAjeINWNY |ENJaY “SA |B2LI0)SIH

000°000°L

0000002

000'000'

000°'000't

000°000's

000°000°9

2

o



Confidential: Documents submitted under General Order 66-C, §§2.8 and PU Code §583

sECTioN J2 b page No._ 4

Payment Calculation For Energy

Winter Period Payment

Energy Rate Rate Amount
Date Period TOD! MW Levels Mwh Rate (5/MWh) % Due
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 PP 0.0to13 24%0256 328.0250 SRACB 31.2921 100 $10,264.57
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 oP 00tol3 428.3790 SRACB 28.9883 100 $12,417.98
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 SO 0.0to 13 150.6995 SRACB 23.8298 100 $3,591.14
SRAC B Subtotal for level 0.0 to 1.3: 907.1035 $26,273.69
Energy Rate Rate Amount
Date Period TOD! MW Levels MWh Rate {$/MWh) % Due
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 PP 1.301 to Total 0.0000 SRACB 31.2921 100 $0.00
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 OP 1.301 to Total 0.0000 5SRACB 28.9883 100 $0.00
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 S0 1.301 to Total 0.0000 SRACB 23.8298 100 $0.00
SRAC B Subtotal for level 1.301 to Total: 0.0000 $0.00
Winter Period Subtotal: $26,273.69
Energy Total: $26,273.69

TOD? = Time Of Deliveries, PK = Peak, PP = Partial Peak, OP = Off Peak, SO = Super Off Peak

Energy line loss adjustments, in accordance with the Settlement Agreement approved by the CPUC Decision 06-07-032, are being
applied to the generation delivered after March 31, 2009 23:59 for energy payments.

15H051 | HUMBOLDT BAY MWD | 64703

Page 2 of 3



Confidential: Documents submitted under General Order 66-C, §82.8 and PU Code §583

SECTION ) 3 b PAGENO._Y

Payment Calculation For As-Delivered Capacity

Winter Period Payment

Rate Rate Rate Allocation Amount
Date Period TOD! MW Level MWh Name? {$/mwy) % CLAF? Factor Due
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 PP 0.0to13 328.025 CSCFIXG0 50,000.00 100 0.991 0.0001308 $2,125.976
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 OP  00to13 428370 CSCFIX50 50,000.00 100 0.991 0.0000007 $14.858
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 S0 0.0to1.3 150.700 CSCFIX50 50,000.00 100 0.991 0.0000000 $0.000
CSCFIX50 Subtotal for level 0.0 to 1.3: 756.404 $2,140.83
Rate Rate Rate Allocation Amount
Date Period TOD! MW Level MWh Name? {$/mwy) % CLAF Factor Due
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 PP 1.301 to Total 0.000 CSCFIXS0 50,000.00 100 0.991 0.0001308 50.000
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 OP  1.301toTotal 0.000 CSCFIXS0 50,000.00 100  ©0S91  0.0000007 $0.000
01/01/16 to 01/31/16 S0 1.301 to Total 0.000 CSCFIX50 50,000.00 100 0.991 0.0000000 $0.000
CSCFIX50 Subtotal for level 1.301 to Total: 0.000 50.00
Winter Period Subtotal: $2,140.83
As-Delivered Capacity Total: $2,140.83
TOD! = Time Of Deliveries, PK = Peak, PP = Partial Peak, OP = Off Peak, SO = Super Off Peak
Rate Name?=
e  FSC = Forecasted Shortage Cost
e  (CSC = Current Shortage Cost
CLAF® = Capacity Loss Adjustment Factor
Page 30f3

19H0O51 | HUMBOLDT BAY MWD | 64703



910e/6l/c

SEGTION 932 pace No._(o

(9102-110Z) PoId 9MN99|3 0JPAH\POIY OIPAH\SUSIRIBAOVD)

Yiuo
o R o
\wu dmu O J.O. & Ov» o
R P ¥ & of 8 Y o & &
& & & & & ¢ & & F & ¢ ¥
———— e e e T N ...:ﬂunool g O
| 3 sa
“ ®HON| |“||_.-_|r:.-l-_.__.l._.s.h_.._l”a”_h_.....-lut_“i”mMLulem-Jb-}i‘:{.wktt‘ﬂ.._....._:. .r._..-..i...“.. .cnr- _ OOO~OON
GTOT seesee s ., , . e
. * ._.- g R P X
PTOZ =oovne . - - ._.lil ——en! ——— 00000V <
. % ., ,. " i | a
€I07 === \ \ - . " P -
g S ; Ve & —. 000009 =
ZI0T cevors Y . o .,........r ..... m. _
S = .._. _-__.f_....l. -
1102 =~ : > — A 000008 2 |
-- !Il-. . b ) ]
L ] ,’ w
F—————— e — 000°000°T =
=
xz
— —_— - ————— 000°00Z'T
ST0Z-600Z (HM)) uollanpo.d oJpAH AlyIUO :AMNSGH ;
£0L°L06 L8L'S0E'S Zob'sre‘'z L92'82Z'y LLO'CLS Y 09€'¥6.'S [enuuy [210]
G16'0LS £28'699 9€6'09) [o9Lcze 9€9'6S 1 lequadeq
961Gyl 018's¥ | G6L°LG1 89.'29¢ 108922 i 8qIBAON
v16'Ly) SLL'8hl 218'8L) 90.'6.L1 000'6v2 1200}90
|sor'srL 0Z0's¥ | 892'691 [0s8'ipL |eovvze Jlaquiaydeg
116807} 0zZ'erL 827891 AL 2.8'96}) ) ~isnbiny|
665'0G) €056V ls22'v9L 12098l _ BYY 26} ~ Anp
S50V L 0£9°Lv1 ¥P02S L 181°8EL 00S'€L9 aunf
€08°1G] |896°'961 S6L'2S ) |888‘css 9/1'02. Aepy
86290} £68'GYS FAV A4 % _ |zsv'zes 281298 ludy
§65°192 ~ |e1e'Los 1T£'S09 1SE0LY 06€'898 ~ Yolew
_ oL'69. |0 GG0'EL2 _|se8‘06e |sseers _ Arenuga|
£0L‘206 119'2€9 200'Lv ¥Z.'296 00€'65Z G69°'LEL Asenuep
9102 5102 7102 £10Z ZLoZ L1L0Z yjuow

910Z - LLOZAD 104 (HMM) uononpoud au399|3 oipAH Ajyjuop
pusiq 1ajep [edidiuny Aeg jpjoquiny




RCEA, RREDC, LAFCO



SECTION_K__PAGENO. | _
Redwood Coast Energy Authority

633 3™ Street

Eureka, CA 95501

Phone: (707) 269-1700 Toll-Free (800) 931-RCEA  Fax: (707) 269-1777
E-mail: info@redwoodenergy.org Web: www.redwoodenergy.org

MEETING AGENDA
Redwood Coast Energy Resource Center February 22, 2016
633 3™ Street, Eureka, CA 95501 Monday, 3:15 p.m.

Redwood Coast Energy Authority will accommodate those with special needs. Arrangements for people with
disabilities who attend RCEA meetings can be made in advance by contacting Lexie Fischer at 262-1700 by noon
the day of the meeting.

. ROLL CALL
Il. REPORTS FROM MEMBER ENTITIES
lil. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS

This time is provided for people to address the Board or submit written communications on matters not on the agenda.
At the conclusion of all oral & written communications, the Board may respond to statements. Any request that
requires Board action will be set by the Board for a future agenda or referred to staff.

IV. CONSENT CALENDAR

All matters on the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine by the Board and are enacted on one motion.
There is no separate discussion of any of these items. If discussion is required, that item is removed from the
Consent Calendar and considered separately. At the end of the reading of the Consent Calendar, Board members or
members of the public can request that an item be removed for separate discussion.

A. Approve Minutes of January 11, 2016 Board Meeting.
B. Approve attached Warrants.
C. Accept attached Financial Reports.

V. REMOVED FROM CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS

Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be heard under this section.

VI.NEW BUSINESS
A. Community Choice Aggregation
Schedule and implementation planning update.

Second Reading and Consideration of Adoption of Ordinance No. 2016-1
Authorizing the Implementation of a Community Choice Aggregation Program by
RCEA as the Community Choice Aggregator.

VIl. STAFF REPORTS
A. Matthew Marshall, Executive Director

VIi. ADJOURNMENT

The next RCEA Board of Directors Business Meeting is scheduled for
Monday, March 21%, 2016 at 3:15p.m.



sECTION_F_ PAGENO. <

Redwocd Region
Economic Development
Commission

520 1 5 RERNOPD REGION ECONOWIC DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION, ;.
At the Prosperity Center 520 E Street, Eureka, CA

February 22, 2016 at 6:30 pm
AGENDA

l. Call to Order & Flag Salute

Ii. Approval of Agenda and Minutes
A. Approval of Agenda for February 22, 2016
B. Approval of Minutes of the Board of Directors for January 25, 2018

il. Public Input — for non-agenda items

V. Program — Randall Weaver, Labor Market Consultant, Employment Develocpment Department,
State of California, discussing Humboldt County’s Labor Force

V. Consent Calendar
A Acceptance of Agency-wide Financial Report: January 31, 2016

V1. Reports — No Action Required
A Loan Portfoio Reports: December 31, 2015; January 31, 2016
B. Executive Director's Report
C. Minutes of Executive Committee Meeting: January 14, 2016 information only

VIi. ©Old Business
None

Vill. New Business
A. Discussion of FY 2016/2017 Budget
B. Discussion and Consideration of Position Regarding Changes o the Humboldt Bay Area Plan
and Coastal Zoning Regulation to Allow Flexible Uses in Industral/Coastal-Dependent Zone

IX. Member Reports
A. Willow Creek
B. Ferndale

X. ﬁigendaiProgram Requests for future Board of Directors Meetings
Xl. Adjourn

The Redwood Region Economic Development Commission will, on request, make agendas available in appropriate
afternative formats fo persons with & disability, as requiwed by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of
1990 (42 U S.C. Sec. 12132), and the federal rules and regulations adopted in implementation thereof. Individuals
who need this agenda in an afternative format or who need a disability-related modification or accommodation in order
fo participate in the meeting should contact the Board Secretary at {(707) 445-9651, Notification 48 hours prior o the
meeling will enable the Commission to make reasonable arrangements for accommodations.

MEMEER AGENCIES

City ol Arcata « City of Blue Lake » Lty of Evreka = Ciiy of Ferndale » City ¢f Fertona » City nl Ripo Dell » Cily ¢f Trinidad
County n{ Humboidt - Humboldt Bay Harber, Recreation and Conservation District « Humboldt Bay Municipal Water Districi
Humboldl GonmiLrity Services Disteict « Mantla Commurnity Services Disirtet = MeKinleyatlle Community Services Disirict

Orick Commuenity Services Dislriel = Regwoeds Communily Enlleye Disirict + Hoopa Valley Tribe

Willow Creek Cammunity Services Drstricl - Orlzans Toimenity Services Dislricl . Refiway Commuaity Sarveres Districs



3

4 peENO.__

SECTION

Juaun.tedaq yuswdojaas( Juawhiorduy
UOISIAI(] UOIJBULIOJU] 3O3R\ J0GE ]
U0I189}] 1580 YLION
JUBI[NSUOY) 193]\ 0. ]
I2ARIA\A Apuey

MIIAIDA(Q) JTWIOU 0I5

Ayuno7 1pjoquingy




Arewruung «

S98eA\ «

BECTION_ILLL_PAGENO.__ Y

JuawiAorduwy JioS «
SoLISNpU| «

JuaAo[duwau ) 23 9210, J0qeT «

sotdo], weaso.




4

SECTION ¥ ‘! PAGE NO.

pua

SAfCEL ETRC A0, LOqE e Juati SO dWaU [EMSIH QTN aa 2nes

1], Jedj G

—

JuawiAojdwiy 29 9210, J0qeT




YI0Z €10C TT0Z TI0Z O107 600

— | ii o . -

SECTION 1< PAGENO:_(o__

Ayjepdsoq
1B ains]

SI0UAISS Y)feaH
)} jeuonexnp3

selin
B uoneuodsues|
‘opes)

-

——

il

e B OZ-SO0E SPER 1A JRIO 0] U6 e 3 diauSogl s AUsnpg apa /oo

EBumm 991, mo,_g ur m_ucm(_,_.,_.



SECTION {1 _PACENO._ & __

STOZ—-
VI0Z -
€107
ZI0Z =~
T10Z-=-
ot0z——| |

Y} LD 1A STHAEAG LR ST PU | e st (AT S aaa s

pua.j, .:mmcf m EmE\ﬂo_QEmc : \stou




L] R =0 s o T i e o (TR T B T e A B R R L Tl [

G107 .En_Emqu Em:&oEEm:D m.m.% qns




SECTION_!=Y} | PAGENO._\__

9HON Bd

oupopus

noApisis

Ayuu)

S0 ] e a0 00T AN A idas 23008

G10Z 1oquiada( - JuawAojdwau( jeuoiday aanereduwon



SECTION Y. PAGENO. |0

%008  %0'0L %0°09 %0°0S %00y %0O0E %007 %0OT %00

i auoN led

D ——
| |

OouopUIN

| Auuug

NOADISIS

TLISEE LRy ____u.:..h_r JIVELSM S

SHOM 9 0 219U



section < pace No, U

%/1'00Z'8 '58das
\RjeeH '3 [euopeonp3

%9 ‘009°Z ‘seapuas
SSaUISNY 9 |BUOISSBI0L]

%E

‘009t "seRIARDY |ejauBU]d

%7 ‘008 ‘vopewuoyy | -

ra

-

”

%61 ‘D0E’s ‘seplnN
® uopeuodsues) ‘apesi

[ % ‘000z ‘Bupmzejnuey L

[ %€ ‘009°t ‘uoponusucy

%I

‘ose Bujfdo] pue Sujug

ETOT AR L sdEmayreniiy &

%2 ‘008 ‘wue] |e0y |

L0 AOGET puE £ISA Pl a1/

7 ‘Apeydsol g sansga]

%TT 00€"S

| %v‘000' ‘seapues syio |
7

%L

‘00Z “USWILLBSAOY) |Rlopod

%L ‘D0S’'E
“UaLILLIADS) a)els

“uawuIencs) [e301

202 ‘0056

CH0Z EmE\mo_QEm %\Smsﬁ_:_




SECTION_j< & PAGENO._[2—

%% ‘Uoijeaiay
Buljques Quawasnuly

—

[%1 seamses sapo]

%L1 ‘vopensujupy| |
Ngnd J8NO

_msﬂ QuUaILIBACS) jequL |

%9
49pIO iqnd B oRsN[ [

%1 ‘U01IR0.d B4

%L
‘swesfold jeiusiuoaiaug

%V ‘@auesissy
[eD05 73 a1e) Yijeay

N,
)

\
\ [%0 ‘euopeonp3

%0T 19410 IV

3 4 e

%S
‘anpesigal g aanmoaxy

SHELLAR [E IR Sy L el ARl o st e AE LEn ) dmt AiaE ) o

JUSWULIDAOK) [BIOT]



E

%0
666-00S

%0
661-052

SECTION E'Y{ PAGE NO.

%1
6vZ-001

%T |,
66-0S

1 Fer Ao ALSTIEL OUAgIUm A PUE [0Sy & DT JelIEND PULULL Y E 2100 L aT aam oaanog

mmo\moEEm Aq mmm::m:m Jo mm_m




section (Y pageno. 1

+000 666-00S 66¥-0ST m#m.a.n 66-0S 60t

6101 6°S

A03a1eT) SAS Aq SPAAORIT 0 USUINA + LO 7 101IENTY P S0 E 2R L G AT S :

1089187 9z1S Aq seakorduuy JO JoquInp

S EARLE LN



L5

S8ECTION_1“41__ PAGE NO.

uoryrur g

uoIu 61$

durues [eqriy [eqLiy 103.11q

oL L R = e T T (8 e B R R s A M RS e A

mom:&mu:m _mnz r_L

yuduAojdury




% QUL 947- SLON PG~  ¥E- NOADSIS == &G OUPOPUBN == 90T IPIOGUINH ~+—  KPEISBYS-~r— %G SUNG=tmr

€10 (4174 1oz 010¢ 600¢ 8007 1002 9007 v007

e o Y e i S d 3 o

. _@. [oe]  [s58]  [seq] _2.3_ _83_ [c%s]  [1se]  [ee]
; — - =
682' mhu.-_ll._vum.ﬂ_. [zv27] [vzz'1] 000'Z

SECTION |~ “1__PAGENO.__[(s

b3

_meu.m_ _Su.m_ o

P BN P W e g BROEDSY
IIIIV PQg .H.n_ _mmb H.—_ SO9T'IT ﬁﬁhﬂ.ﬂ[—; J*QMG .—..H_.r F.l! ll”»lli.m 00001
i ES o T i _

P —

N

e y— - Y —mmmm ,"
II._Nva".n— ﬁ_.nmm.ﬁ.n * mvml_..n.n - mr.rleu!nrﬁlﬂ S m .E.M%,.......lli.m. 000°2Y

_ 60821 _
o] [em] pem [ [ NEC

I....\.\..\\JE_

i
000PT
w

. oot

FLOZ-E+007 S2nE10EL W g-uopEsns

SULII m S\moa w m -Uo N



%

SECTION_[- L1  PAGE NO

%o UL %6L'8 NOAD[SIS == 9680~ MMYSe=tie 94G°0- CUPOPUSN =im  96°TZ IP(OGUINHwB=r  0"E+ SUON BQ=N= %'t NGt

£T0C [4174 44174 118474 600T 8002 £00T 9002

rﬂq.mﬂiraqjﬁqir i%&ﬁdﬁlfﬂm@ﬂl Jﬂ.ﬂlrﬂo}mwl-

= — Bind J..- .mwl i e -
120056 vhe'ebs  TEL'SPS  EIETVS  LBL'TYS TIprvvs 83& 126058  815'es$ 333

| ’ j!l
ve1'Lzrs  068TZIS #.m.oua m#.ﬁa L8¢'e2T$ e
4 £82°6ET
LEL'TNTS  LE5'vpTS g55'9STS  STSOSTS $

+ i .
TSTES  OLSTIEs  To0 Bocs  ZBE'GEZS  9sg'zoss

_£9L'81ES zec'szeg  VL89YES |
VE— L6T'7pes  BVE'LEES

q.lt|| ey

P ——

95L°Z6¢ ~.§.mﬁ_ (sev'aces | _ols.uc«.? mmwm\mm‘ﬁ
iena] |DEITTFS d Wsmmom ez wamami |00 $EE | pas'osts |

— Il-ll_lli-.l.. %

891805 801'86bS

STEPLPS  SBO'MLS

z00'5255 |

A R ; 6SE°'TLSS IPT'L9SS %
—e—""ces's §LT'195% Sn.wmmm/'/

- s66'g9s$ r9Rerss . .\ﬂ.ﬂmm 000°009¢
Lse'osg  CSST6SS ~+

Sm.u_wm ﬁo.ﬂmm 082919

000°0045
{000) €107 - £0OZ SONSNEIS JBAOHWALON SNSURY S

s1d1909y seaAojdwiz pied ON YU Swiaig

EL0E EOE-SINSneIS 1A fo]d g LR snsUay o5 [ @

syd1eoay wLI m E»o_mﬁm-:o N



SECTION_Y-*1 PAGENO._ %

BWOUOS

eIseys

Ipjoquiny

19A1IQ )onJy J3jiea)
-10)oel] g AneaH

uosiadsa|es |i1e1ay

asinpN paiaisiday Ajuno)

GTOF 8B | IS nSH ADATTS BIE G aHE AN AuaLgo i (EunEed 2 L g ad g

(A[inoy ueajy) sadepn




o.9

SECTION_L.4_PAGEN

a1y IMoIn

LT -

16+
90T +

WwISLINO],

sNpodad 159.104

Surimdenuep aYdIN

S9JIAIAS UOIIBAOUU]
9 JUSWASeURIN

S9JIAISG
110ddng jusunsaau]

OUBUIUTE
% UOTIONIISUO)
SwalsAS 29 Suiprng

pooy
3 ‘98eraaag By Aewadg

Y3[eaH PayISIaAIQ

a1epdp s198.1e]




20

PAGE NO.

—)

=

5
2
(7]

dpusnud] pug disson aamos

siqeuue) :Awouody ayy ui yueydayyg oy,




Jeym mouy 3 uop isnl am - uryj e Si sigeuue)
ssauagoad ur ayepdn syadie]

9NSSI UB a.1e SodepA

21n3[NJ [BLINdUA.IAD.1IUD UB dABY I\
S9SsauIsnq [[BWS JO AWIOU0I3 UR 3.1e A\

310M 0] awoY SAe3s Ipjoquiny

sursea.2ap AJipeais usawLordwaup

SUDJULIYS SI 92.10J J0ge]

Arewuuung




i 2

e e e

o]
=
@
&
u,._,
i
=
Q
=
0
D

sjuawIwo) /suonsang)




Public Hearing



secTion (-1 pace NO, |

e e e i)

HUMBOLDT BAY MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT
To: Board of Directors

From: Paul Helliker

Date: March 3, 2016

Subject: Retail Rate Adjustments

At the December, 2015 Board meeting, we discussed with the Board the need for a rate adjustment, to
balance expenses and revenues. At the meeting, the Board adopted alternative 2C, which would
phase in a monthly charge in Fairhaven to fund future capital improvements. This alternative did not
change the base monthly charge, but increased the consumption charge by 31%. This alternative
would generate 38% of its revenues from base charges and 62% from commodity charges.

Both before and after the January Board meeting, we held individual meetings with our largest
commercial and industrial customers, to discuss the proposed rate structure and impacts on their water
bills. DG Fairhaven Power has been offline since January 1, and is currently negotiating with PG&E to
receive a price that can allow them to continue to operate. Depending on the price they negotiate, the
proposed water rates may or may not have much impact on their profits. The other large industrial
customers understood the need to continue to fund operations and capital improvements, but wanted to
know if another significant increase would be coming in another five years, and we said that we hoped
the new capital charge schedule would be the last major rate increase.

At the January 14 Board meeting, the Board approved the Proposition 218 notice, which was then
mailed out to HBMWD’s retail customers, in time to meet the 45-day advance notice requirement prior
to the rate hearing, which is scheduled for March 9 at 5:30 p.m. The notice provided customers
information on the reasons for the rate increase, how to get more information and how to file a protest.
If protest letters are received from a majority of property owners, the rate increase cannot go forward.

Two public meetings were held during the comment/protest period, to brief participants on the reasons
for the rate increase and to answer their questions. The first was held on February 9 at the HBMWD
Board room, from 4 p.m. until 7 p.m. No customers attended. The second was held on February 17 at
the Samoa Fire Hall from 4-7 p.m., and 6 customers attended. We briefed them on the reason for the
rate increase, and we answered their questions about how wholesale costs are apportioned, what
information we used in the preparation of the capital improvement plan, what future rate increases
might occur, etc.

To date, no protest letters have been received. For a protest to be successful, 103 protest letters would
need to be received by the end of the public hearing. Staff recommend that the Board conduct the
public hearing, hear and respond to testimony, and adopt the rate increase as proposed.



ECTION L.~ PAGENO. | ___

Resolution No. 2016-02

Resolution of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District Board of
Directors Increasing the District’s Rates for Retail Water Service

WHEREAS, Section 71614 of the California Water Code states that water districts may fix
the rates at which water shall be sold and different rates may be established for
different classes or conditions of service; and

WHEREAS, the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District (District) is a water district formed
under the California Water Code; and

WHEREAS, Article 6 of the District’s Ordinance No. 13 (establishing rates, rules and
regulations for retail water service) states that rates for retail water service are subject
to change by resolutions of the Board; and

WHEREAS, the District has not changed rates for retail water service since 2009 and this
Resolution supercedes Resolution 2009-05; and

WHEREAS, the District has performed a rate study to determine the revenue requirements of
the retail system and developed a rate schedule to meet these revenue requirements;
and

WHEREAS, the District has notified its customers of the proposed rate changes, and

WHEREAS, the District held a full and fair public hearing to allow public input on the water
rates, and

WHEREAS, Notice of the public hearing was given pursuant to Government Code Section
61123(b) and Article XIII D, Section 6(a) (1) of the California Constitution; and

WHEREAS, a majority protest, as defined by Article XIII D, Section 6(a)(2) of the California
Constitution, does not exist with respect to the proposed charges; and

WHEREAS, the Board desires to increase the water charges, and:

WHEREAS, the consumption charge per hundred cubic foot set forth shall include an annual
“pass through” as allowed by California Government Code section 53756,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay

Municipal Water District hereby establishes the rates for retail water service and other
charges as follows:

Resolution 2016-02 Page 1 of 4



=

SECTION_L-"1 _ PAGE NO.

3o 7 a8ed 70-910z uonnjosay

£E0v €0 E0'V €0y €0y ¢1'895 8T 048 =) I 1 895 u8
€0'P E0'F €0y e0v 0 0L°SgE 98 LE€ aT'¢ 0L SEE w9
e0'v to'v 3084 E0v €0 ov'zee 99 ve? 9T'T OF CeT ub
0y E0v 1874 €0'v E0'F 07911 9€°8TT 9T ¢ 0Z'9TT 3
E0'v e0'y €0 E0'1 13084 ETvS 6€ 95 a1'e ET¥S uC
084 0 €0y £0'F €0y vL8E 06 0 9T ¢ vL'8€E wS'T
€0t €0y €0’y g0'v €0v 660€ ST €€ 91'¢ 66'0¢ al
€0V €0v €0 £0v €0y vZ'€T ov'ST 9T'Z v €T ._M\\mmw
ozoz 6102 8102 LT02Z 910T aSieys ST/v10Z
- adiey) - adiey) - adiey) - adiey) —adiey) ey - a81ey) aley aseq azIS
Wawade|day | juswadejday | uawade|day | Juswsoejday Juawade|day | aseg maN . Juswade|day 8unisixy SEETTY]
leade) lende) (10 1) leyde) leade) ARiauow leyde)
P1S uonnqlsiq usaeyne, ayl apisino pajedo ssauisng ||ews pue 23sawog -z Alodare
€E'9¢ oT°0¢ L8'ET vo'LT P11t ¢1'89S 0E €45 8T'S 189S a8
€E0L OT°0E LBEC r9°L1 V1T 0L'SEE 83 OrE 8T S 0L'SEE a9
EE°9E 0T°0¢ L8ET r9'LT V1T Ot'2eT 85 LET 81's Or TET o
€E0E 0T°0¢ LB'EC Yo' LT 13N 0Z'9T1 8ET7T 8T S 0Z 9T1 u€
€E9¢E 0T°0g LB'ET ¥9'LT v TT €TrS T 6S 819 €TSS T4
£€€°9¢€ 0T°0€ LB'ET ¥SLT IF'IT vL'8E (4334 8T S VL &E uST
£E'9¢ 0T 0€ L8'ET ¥9°LT TV'TT 66°0€ LT 9¢ 8T'S 66°0¢ ul
€€'9€ 01°0¢ LY'ET v9'LT 'TT YT €T T8z 8T'S YT ET _.M\\Mm
rdir4 6T0C 810 L1I0T 9T0¢ asreyy ST/¥10Z
- adley) - adley) - adley) - adley) —adiey) a1ey . - 98aeyn ajey aseg 7IS
dwadeday | uawadepday | Juswadejdsy | Juswade|day Juawadeday | aseg man Apuomw juswade|day Supspa BELE T
[ende) jelde) lende) lelde) [eyde) [eyde)

PlD uolNQLISIQ UaABLIIE] BY) UIYHM PBIed0] SS3UISng ||EWS pue JRsawog - T AloSa1e)

ADUVHD FDIAYIS HILVM DISvE




secrion_ L _PRGENO. S

vJo ¢ a8ed 0-9107 Uonnjossy

S/TS peay Ja1aw Jo awade|das Jo4
— ad1e) 931A135 UOIIIUU0IY
00F'ZS | waisAs 0} uoirauuod 104 qzs wawdied-uou 01 ang
— @8aey) uoIBUUD) — adley?) 23jAI9S UOHIIULIITY
1500 Iy ad.eyy yoojped 0£S SJuUnoJ3e mau dn Sunas 1oy
— 984 Buissado0.d uoneaddy
SIDUVYHI HIHIO
280 090 000°00T<
L0'¢ [AN " 000°00T-T00S
06'T or'1 0005-T0ST
LLT ot'1 00ST-T0S
000 000 00s-0
ajey maN ajey waliny {43) a8uey a8esn
(323} 2113 Jad) s3LvY
AJIAYIS HILYM AFHILIIN
89 TYY'T T6'vFL LL96T'T ZT0ST'T ¥Z 6ST L6 066 sjuswisaAu| ejonbss 8
£6'99€T 9104 LL7967'T €6'T90T 0L L6066 ‘0D poompay “HIe) 8
79'/8¢ 006 €9'8LL #S¢09 €S L ¢0'S6S 19M0Od uaaeylie4 oq 9
sadiey?) a.l4 Aqpuess- ¢ Aso3ae)
AN 44 1898 0L'SEE LV LTY LLT8 0L Sg€ piengjsec) sn 9
€0°81F €€°C8 04'5€E ¢L90% 0'TL 04 SE€ 33y 13 JoqueH Aeg 1pjoquiny 9
¥ L8¢ v0'sS ot'zee T eng t0TL O TET Bowes Joumoj ¢
T5°90¢€ TTEL Ov'2ET 08 80t oraL - . Qv cee 19Mod uaaeylle4 q v
ssauisng ag.e
adseyd 9T0Z ST/v10Z
aseg - adieyd ajey adiey) aseg - adiey) arey
Alquow uswadeiday | aseg maN Alyuowy uawe[day aseg 3upsix3y oS 19
MaN [ende) |eyden

ssauisng afieq - ¢ Alo8aje)




secToN_L4 _page No.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of the Humboldt Bay Municipal Water
District hereby establishes a rate adjustment formula for inflation based on any annual increase
change in the Consumer Price Index (CPI for West —Size B/C) with rates to be adjusted each July 1%
through the calendar year 2021.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the consumption charge per hundred cubic feet set forth above
shall be subject to a “pass through” adjustment. The pass through adjustment shall be calculated for
each fiscal year by subtracting the District’s actual commodity cost of water (per 100 cf) for the most
recent calendar year 2015. The actual commodity cost of water (per 100 cf) for a year shall be
calculated by dividing the total of all Humboldt Bay Municipal Water District charges for water
delivered during the year by the number of 100 cf of water delivered.

and BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that these rates shall be effective as of April 1, 2016.
The Board finds and determines:

a. Revenues derived from the water service charge will not exceed the funds required to
provide water service.

b. Revenues derived from the water service charge will not be used for any purpose other
than providing water service.

c. The amount of the charges imposed by this Resolution upon any parcel or person as an
incident of property ownership will not exceed the proportional cost of the service
attributable to the parcel.

d. No charge will be imposed under this Resolution for a service unless that service is
actually used by, or immediately available to, the owner of the property in question.

Adopted and approved this 9th day of March 2016 by the following roll call vote:

AYES:
NOES:
ABSENT:
Attest:
Barbara Hecathorn, President J. Bruce Rupp, Secretary/Treasurer

Resolution 2016-02 Page 4 of 4



